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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER
ERFERL

Li Xuechun Z=24h

Chairman /&

Dear Shareholders,

During the year, in light of the efforts made by all staff under the
leadership of the Board and management, we spared no effort in
overcoming various impacts caused by the COVID pandemic and
successfully dealt with the unexpected dual controls over energy
consumption and carbon emission, thereby turning risks into
opportunities, and challenges into stepping stones. We not only
ensured our normal production and operation activities, but also
actively led and dominated the market. As a result, our business
development has been in remarkable progress with various favorable
achievements, demonstrating a dynamic and vibrant development
trend.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the audited turnover of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB21.5 billion, representing
an increase of approximately 29% as compared to 2020. Profit
attributable to Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1.3
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 103%.
Dividends for 2021 (including interim and final dividends) amounted to
HK21.5 cents (dividends for 2020: HK9.9 cents) maintaining a stable
dividend payout ratio of 35%.
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The fierce competition in the industry in 2021 was evidenced by the
high frequency of change and volatility of the prices of our products.
Such fierce competition was mainly due to the status of excess
supply over demand in the market as a result of the significant
increase in production capacity, which was caused by the new
facilities built by large corn processing enterprises in Northeast China,
a region with abundant corn resources, in recent years.

Our major raw materials for production are corn and coal, accounting
for 59% and 15% of our total cost of production, respectively. During
the year, the average prices of corn and coal increased significantly
by 35% and 37%, respectively. Rising prices of raw materials
inevitably posed certain challenges to our operations. However, the
increasing prices of raw materials were usually passed on to the
downstream clients over a period of time. With the prices of our major
products including MSG, animal nutrition, high-end amino acid, and
xanthan gum rising across the board during the year (especially the
fourth quarter), we successfully passed on the rising cost pressure to
our downstream clients, thus maintaining our profitability.

In terms of our product portfolio, our key products can be classified
into two categories, namely, cash cow products and star products.
QOur cash cow products include MSG and xanthan gum products
and hold leading positions in the global market, of which we pursue
the strategy to maximise our revenue with our existing market share.
In other words, we will not wage price wars to increase our market
share. Our star products, including animal nutrition product (such as
threonine and lysine) and high-end amino acid products, have high
growth potential with growing market share, and we have established
leading positions in these market segments. Particularly in addition
to its high growth potential, our high-end amino acid products enjoy
higher profitability, which also create synergy with our food additives
and animal nutrition products at the product application level so
as to optimise our collection of food additives and animal nutrition
products.
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From the perspective of trading volume and development potential,
animal nutrition products demonstrate huge development room. As
| recall, when we started our foray into the animal nutrition market,
certain investors raised doubt as to our penetration into this fiercely
competitive market. Looking back, we believe the right decision
was made, as the animal nutrition segment has become one of our
major businesses. By operating profit, the animal nutrition segment
has become one of the most profitable businesses that fuels our
high growth engine, transforming us into a formidable competitor in
the animal nutrition industry. In contrast with our competitors, our
product portfolio is the most complete product line, which comprises
threonine, lysine, tryptophan, valine and isoleucine, thereby holding
the leading position.

From the perspective of our overall core competitiveness, our
advantages depend on: 1) our leading bio-fermentation technology; 2)
our capability to integrate resources; and 3) our capability to control
production scale and core costs.

Focus and risk diversification represent our business philosophy,
based on which, we focus on our core bio-fermentation technology
and adopted the strategy for diversity development to diversify risks.
Due to our strategy to diversify the product portfolio, production
base, and market and customer base, we have mitigated the risks
arising from the reliance on a single product, a single production
base, and a single market and customer base. This also explains
that we strive to become the world’s leading corn biochemical
enterprise by accelerating the integration of global resources and
internationalisation plan.
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We adopt the “Dual High-quality Objectives” tactics as our strategic
mission for 2022, including (1) high-quality internationalisation by
accelerating the establishment of a more complete international
production and sales network; and (2) the high-quality operation
of the existing production and operation capacity to maintain and
consolidate our leading position in the Chinese market so that we
will advance our business expansion and become an industrial
powerhouse.

For the details of our future plan, please refer to the Outlook and
Future Plan section in the Management Review.

At last, | express my heartfelt appreciation to the Board, management,
and staff for their diligence and dedication, as well as my sincere
gratitude to the Shareholders, financial institutions, clients, and all
stakeholders who have long cared for and supported our Group.

Li Xuechun
Chairman
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Market Overview

During the year, the market was still affected by the COVID pandemic.
Market demand has not fully recovered to the pre-pandemic level. In
addition, the market experienced the impacts from the unexpected
dual controls over energy consumption and carbon emission, some
production and operation activities were disrupted during the year.

The fierce competition in the industry in 2021 was evidenced by the
high frequency of change and volatility of the prices of products. Such
fierce competition was mainly due to the status of excess supply
over demand in the market as a result of the significant increase in
production capacity, which was caused by the new facilities built by
large corn processing enterprises in Northeast China, a region with
abundant corn resources, in recent years.

Driven by the high cost of raw materials, prices of key products, such
as MSG, threonine, lysine, high-end amino acid and xanthan gum
products increased significantly during the year (especially in the
fourth quarter).

The corn price increased significantly and maintained at a high level,
which was mainly due to the increased feed demand, increased corn
production cost (such as fertiliser) and demand recovery from the
corn processing sector.

In 2021, China had approximately 300 million tonnes of corn supply,
of which approximately 272 million tonnes were self-produced and
approximately 28 million tonnes were imported, according to the
official data.

The coal price also increased significantly during the year, especially
after the supply shortage happened in September 2021, which
resulted in a power shortage in China. However, some market players
in corn processing have their own power plants in their production
bases and can access to low-cost local coal resources. So, the
impact was minimised.
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Business and Financial Review XK KRB RE

Overall Performance BEERE

The table below illustrates the trend of the Group’s revenue in the TERAPREEBTAFHOBABL

past five years
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Revenue/Gross profit/Gross profit margin of the Group REBEBERA EFREF=E

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t+—-RALFE

2020
—EEF

Revenue (RMB’000) WA (AREFT) 21,539,841 16,690,736 29.1

Gross profit (RMB’000) EF(AREFT) 3,905,276 2,816,354 38.7

Gross profit margin (%) E K (%) 18.1 16.9 1.2 ppts.
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Profit attributable to the Shareholders % R AE AR & R

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-—A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
—T_FTF
RMB’000
AREF T

629,901

—E-—fF
RMB’000
AR®T R

As reported 1,280,640 103.3

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue
increased by 29.1% to approximately RMB21,539.8 million as
compared to 2020, primarily due to increased revenue contribution
from food additives, animal nutrition and high-end amino acid.

The Group’s overall gross profit increased by 38.7% to approximately
RMB3,905.3 million in 2021 as compared to 2020, primarily due
to the increases in the gross profit of animal nutrition and high-end
amino acid products.

Selling and marketing expenses increased by 1.2% to approximately
RMB1,401.2 million in 2021 as compared to 2020.

Administrative expenses increased by 16.2% to approximately
RMB949.0 million in 2021 as compared to 2020.

Finance income decreased by 37.5% to approximately RMB118.5
million in 2021 as compared to 2020.

Finance costs decreased by 16.2% to approximately RMB172.7
million in 2021 as compared to 2020.

Profit attributable to the Shareholders increased by 103.3% to
approximately RMB1,280.6 million in 2021 as compared to 2020.

During the year, the average prices of corn and coal increased
significantly by 34.7% and 37.4%, respectively. The increase in prices
of raw materials brought challenges to our operations. However, we
passed on the cost pressure to our downstream customers, with
price increases across the board (especially in the fourth quarter) for
our main products, such as MSG, animal nutrition, high-end amino
acid and xanthan gum, thereby maintaining our profitability.

With a diversified product development plan and further expansion
of high-end amino acid product pipeline by the Group, the business
structure of multiple growth drivers has been established, enhancing
the core competitiveness of the Company.
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From the perspective of our product portfolio, our key products can
be classified as cash cow products and star products. Our cash
cow products include MSG and xanthan gum products, of which
we are the largest manufacturer in the global market. Our strategy is
to maximise our revenue with our existing market share and create
strong and stable cashflow for the Company. Our star products,
including animal nutrition product (such as threonine and lysine)
and high-end amino acid products, have high growth potential with
growing market share, and we have established leading positions in
these market segments.

Analysis of Five Product Segments

The Group’s products are organised into five product segments
including: 1. Food additives (main products include MSG, compound
seasoning, starch sweeteners, glutamic acid and corn oil), 2. Animal
nutrition (main products include threonine, lysine and corn refined
products), 3. High-end amino acid (main products include valine,
leucine, isoleucine, glutamine, and hyaluronic acid), 4. Colloid (main
products include xanthan gum and gellan gum), and 5. Others (main
products include fertilisers, synthetic ammonia and pharmaceuticals,
etc.).

Detailed sales and gross profit analysis by five segments for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Food Animal

additives nutrition

REA A Byes

Revenue O 10,388,668 7,619,865
Gross profit ER 1,424,804 1,369,052
Gross profit margin EIES 13.7% 18.0%

HHRMNEREAAERE RN EE
mANEREFERMAEERM BN
TEMBRRBLERBES  ARMARE
BRmsmaARER HMANKBEERA
MHNET  BERRANZKKEL SRR F]
AERRARENRERE -RMNPEE
mBRPNEEER (HFaEMEAERE) &
BEAEARER ARAREEREN 5
BT RA  RPEEEELT S D BN
RBEME -

REEmD B

AEBNEROBREEERD M BFE1.R
mA B (ERERBRKRE - EARAKM -
BMEHRE  AREMERR)  29YER
(FEEREEHIMK  BREMERRERE
m) 3 EREREAR (TEERBREMEAK
Al Exalk AR NERER)
4B (IEEREEERBNG&LRE) &
5. HM (EZERBREH AKE EmF) -

BE_ZE-_—GFR-_F-_FTF+_A=+—
ABLEEFE HRE>BEDNFMBEENRTE
R OHT -

BE-_FE--F1+-"A=t—-HLEE

High-end
amino acid Colloid Others
BEIER B Hity
1,415,394 1,042,705 1,073,209 21,539,841
587,868 341,116 182,436 3,905,276
41.5% 32.7% 17.0% 18.1%

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Food Animal

additives nutrition

R A A YER

Revenue /N 9,058,574 5,070,823
Gross profit el 1,426,424 680,133
Gross profit margin ER=E 15.7% 13.4%

BE-E2_ZF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

High-end
amino acid Colloid Others
AR R R 2he Hith
943,406 881,496 736,437 16,690,736
346,547 194,854 168,396 2,816,354
36.7% 22.1% 22.9% 16.9%
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TRENAEEEEZE T -_—FR-_T=-F
FH_A=+—HLEFEZREREDHWA :

The table below sets out the revenue of the Group by products for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-—A=+—RHLEE

Product

2021
—E-—F
RMB’000
AR®T T

2020
—ECFF

RMB'000
ARBTT

Food additives BRAME
MSG LK 45 8,515,656 7,191,798 18.4
Starch sweeteners R B R 1,421,350 1,388,796 2.3
Glutamic acid Aabk 366,378 416,344 (12.0)
Compound seasoning BA AR 82,150 55,699 47.5
Corn oil oK) 3,134 5,937 (47.2)
Animal nutrition BYEE
Corn refined products FORIRIRE @ 3,577,678 2,816,820 27.0
Threonine ek 2,394,716 1,279,870 87.1
Lysine Bak 1,647,471 974,133 69.1
High-end amino acid EERER
High-end amino acid products SiEREREER 1,415,394 943,406 50.0
Colloid B
Xanthan gum =RB 968,753 821,294 18.0
Gellan gum LB 73,952 60,202 22.8
Others Hith
Fertilisers et 647,122 384,207 68.4
Synthetic ammonia AR 263,081 182,676 44.0
Pharmaceuticals m 147,614 153,061 (8.6)
Others Hity 15,392 16,493 6.7)
21,539,841 16,690,736 29.1
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1.

Food additives

Revenue generated from the sales of food additive products
increased to approximately RMB10,388.7 million in 2021,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,330.1 million,
or 14.7%, as compared to 2020, mainly due to increased
revenue of MSG. The increased revenue of MSG was primarily
due to the effect of an increase in the ASP of MSG during the
year.

Gross profit of food additive products decreased to
approximately RMB1,424.8 million, representing a slight
decrease of 0.1% as compared to 2020, mainly due to a slight
decrease of profit contribution from MSG. Gross profit margin of
food additive products was 13.7%, representing a decrease of
2.0 percentage points as compared to 2020.

Key products:

MSG: During the year, MSG price showed a noticeable
upward trend despite significant fluctuation, with the ASP of
approximately RMB7,674 per tonne, representing an increase
of approximately 24.0% as compared to 2020. The increase
in ASP was mainly due to the increased prices of major raw
materials during the year and part of the cost pressure was
successfully passed on to our downstream customers by way
of price adjustment. The Group led the market by adjusting the
MSG price actively and maximised its profitability. The sales
volume was approximately 1,109,687 tonnes, representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 4.5%.

Animal nutrition

Revenue generated from the sales of animal nutrition products
increased to approximately RMB7,619.9 million in 2021,
representing an increase of approximately RMB2,549.1 million,
or 50.3%, as compared to 2020, mainly due to increased
revenue of threonine and lysine.

Gross profit of animal nutrition products increased to
RMB1,369.1 million, representing an increase of 101.3%
as compared to 2020, mainly due to increased gross profit
contribution of threonine and lysine. Gross profit margin of
animal nutrition products was 18.0%, representing an increase
of 4.6 percentage points as compared to 2020.
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B -
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Key products:

Threonine: Threonine is classified as a major type of animal
nutrition product, an essential amino acid which maintains body
protein balance. Our threonine is mainly used as an animal
feed additive. Revenue of threonine significantly increased by
about 87.1% in 2021 as compared to 2020, primarily due to the
increased ASP of threonine from approximately RMB6,903 per
tonne in 2020 to approximately RMB9,718 per tonne in 2021.
The increase in ASP was mainly due to the supply shortage in
the international markets caused by the COVID pandemic. The
recovering market demand of the PRC and international markets
was taken place in 2021. Sales volume of threonine increased
from approximately 185,421 tonnes in 2020 to approximately
246,411 tonnes in 2021, representing a year-on-year increase of
32.9%.

Lysine: The revenue of lysine was approximately RMB1,647.5
million, representing an increase of approximately 69.1% as
compared to 2020. The sales volume was approximately
255,863 tonnes, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 18.4%. It shared the same reason with threonine
for the increase in revenue, ASP and sales volume.

High-end amino acid

During the year, our high-end amino acid products recorded
a good performance with sales of approximately RMB1,415.4
million, representing an increase of approximately 50.0% as
compared to 2020.

Revenue of high-end amino acid products increased due to (i)
the improvement of production technology, which increased the
production yield and production volume. During the year, the
sales volume of Tryptophan, Isoleucine and BCAA increased;
and (i) the launch of new products, such as Theanine, Erythritol
and Polyglutamic acid.

Gross profit of high-end amino acid products increased by
69.6% to RMB587.9 million as compared to 2020. Gross
profit margin of high-end amino acid products was 41.5%,
representing an increase of 4.8 percentage points as compared
to 2020.

Our high-end amino acid products focus on the health and
wellness and feeding industries and generally enjoy higher
profitability. Our production technology for high-end amino
acid products continues to improve with increasingly enhanced
operating efficiency, which facilitates the development and
launch of new products.
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Colloid

Revenue generated from the sales of colloid products increased
to approximately RMB1,042.7 million in 2021, representing
an increase of approximately RMB161.2 million, or 18.3%,
as compared to 2020, mainly due to increased revenue of
xanthan gum. Demand of Xanthum gum was still behind the
pre-pandemic stage which led to decrease in sales volume.
As supply of Xanthum gum was also affected by the COVID-
pandemic, the ASP increased during the year.

Gross profit of colloid products increased to RMB341.1 million,
representing an increase of 75.1% as compared to 2020, mainly
due to increased gross profit contribution from xanthan gum.
Gross profit margin of colloid products was 32.7%, representing
an increase of 10.6 percentage points as compared to 2020.

Others

Revenue generated from the sales of other products increased
to approximately RMB1,073.2 million in 2021, representing
an increase of approximately RMB336.8 million, or 45.7%, as
compared to 2020, mainly due to increased revenue of fertilisers.
Following the ease of African Swine Fever, there was increase
in feed demand which in turn increased demand in crops. Due
to increased demand of crops, demand and ASP of fertilisers
increased.

Gross profit of other products increased to RMB182.4 million,
representing an increase of 8.3% as compared to 2020. Gross
profit margin of other products was 17.0%, representing a
decrease of 5.9 percentage points as compared to 2020.
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Analysis of Key Production Costs
Production costs
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FEEEREDHM
EERA

Years ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—-f% —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT NS
Major raw materials FEEMH
e Corn kernels o TORFEM 10,449,791 59.1 8,148,988 56.4 28.2
e Liquid ammonia o R&A 482,911 2.7 340,939 2.4 41.6
e Sulphuric acid o Wil 182,696 1.0 65,179 05 180.3
e Soybeans e KT 37,966 0.2 48,182 0.3 21.2)
Energy BER
e Coal o ik 2,661,883 15.0 2,105,143 14.6 26.4
Depreciation e 1,047,071 5.9 1,068,115 7.4 (2.0)
Employee benefits EERBH 701,291 4.0 684,628 4.7 2.4
Others Hit 2,127,444 12.1 1,974,855 13.7 77
Total cost of production BEERA 17,691,053 100.0 14,436,029 100.0 22.5

Corn kernels EKEER

In 2021, corn kernels accounted for approximately 59.1% (2020:
56.4%) of the total cost of production, representing an increase of 2.7
percentage points, mainly due to change in the price of corn kernels.
The average price of corn kernels for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB2,350 per tonne, representing a
significant increase of 34.7% as compared to 2020. The corn price
increase was mainly due to the increased feed demand, increased
corn production cost (such as fertiliser) and demand recovery from
the corn processing sector.
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The total cost of corn kernels increased by 28.2% in 2021, which was
mainly due to the increase in the average unit cost of corn kernels as
compared to 2020.

The following chart shows the price trend of corn kernel from the first
half of 2019 to the second half of 2021:

BT —F o EOKFEA A A A
28.2% * T B MM EKBR A FHEMKA
B_TTHFER-

TENREZE—NFLFFE_ZT-—F
TEE R KERAERBE

Price Trend of Corn Kernel
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Liquid ammonia

Liquid ammonia accounted for approximately 2.7% (2020: 2.4%)
of total cost of production in 2021. The average unit cost of liquid
ammonia in 2021 increased to approximately RMB3,385 per
tonne, which represents an increase of approximately RMB938 per
tonne, or 38.3%, from 2020. Due to the higher average unit cost of
liquid ammonia and the increased consumption volume as actual
production volume of threonine increased during the year, the total
cost of liquid ammonia increased by 41.6% in 2021 as compared to
2020.

Sulphuric acid

Sulphuric acid accounted for approximately 1.0% (2020: 0.5%) of
total cost of production in 2021. The average unit cost of sulphuric
acid increased to approximately RMB338 per tonne, representing a
rise of approximately RMB214 per tonne, or 172.6%, as compared to
2020.

BR

BEM T —FREERAY27%(ZF
ZEF 24%) —E-_—FEREFHEA
A EFHEHOARKIS T RIEET
FEMIE N AR 038705(38.3% ° AN
ABRRFHEMK A RS RGRBERES
EINBECEESEN  RENERAR-F
ZEFIEIMN41.6% °

L

MBE T -~ FREEREN10%(ZF
“TFE05%) METHEUKAEES
WA ARW338TT M- T T FHELE O
IARE214708172.6% °



Soybeans

In 2021, soybeans accounted for approximately 0.2% (2020: 0.3%)
of the total cost of production. The average unit cost of soybeans
was approximately RMB5,517 per tonne, representing an increase
of approximately RMB1,123 per tonne, or 25.6%, as compared to
2020. The total cost of soybeans decreased by 21.2% in 2021 mainly
due to the drop of consumption volume as actual production volume
of xanthan gum decreased during the year as compared to 2020.

Coal

Coal accounted for 15.0% (2020: 14.6%) of total cost of production
in 2021. The average unit cost of coal in 2021 was RMB360 per
tonne, representing an increase of RMB98 per tonne, or 37.4%, as
compared to 2020. The coal price increased significantly during the
year, especially after the supply shortage happened in September
2021, which resulted in a power shortage in China. However, the
Chinese government implemented some measures to restore the
coal inventory and supply so as to stabilize the coal price in the fourth
quarter in 2021.

The Group’s major production plants in Shaanxi, Inner Mongolia,
Hulunbeir, Xinjiang and Heilongjiang have our own power plants with
access to lower-cost coal in the regions by purchasing directly from
the coal mines with long-term contracts to guarantee our coal supply
volume. As a result, our production plants were not affected by the
power shortage.

Other production costs

The cost of depreciation and employee benefits was stable mainly
due to the fact that the annual production capacities were unchanged
during the year.
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Production

The annual designed production capacity of each of the major
products by product categories were as follows:

EE
RERBREDHNE LI REMNFRTER
LU

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-—A=+—RHLEE

Food additives B oA inE

MSG (Note) URAE (A1 aE)

Starch sweeteners (Note) AN E R A (B 77)
Animal nutrition s
Threonine (Note) galte (M)
Lysine (Note) WBRBE (M)
Colloid B 48

Xanthan gum (Note) ERB ()
Others HA

Fertilisers (Note) BB (B 3E)

2021 2020

—E-—-F —TE_EF

Tonnes Tonnes

THg i
1,330,000 1,330,000 -
720,000 720,000 -
243,000 243,000 -
200,000 200,000 -
65,000 65,000 -
1,080,000 1,080,000 -

Note: The annual designed production capacity is expressed on pro-rata basis.

Analysis of Capacity Usage of Major Product Lines

Business strategy of production remained unchanged and the
Group set production volume according to market demand in
order to minimise the risk from pricing competition. During the year,
the capacity utilisation rate of MSG remained stable, which was
around 84%. The capacity utilisation rate of starch sweeteners was
only around 54% in 2021, due to the oversupply in the market.
Threonine and lysine, as classified in the Animal nutrition segment,
benefiting from the increasing demand of oversea markets. The
Group determined its output based on market demand with capacity
utilisation rate of threonine and lysine reached full capacity during the
year. Xanthan gum product, as classified in the Colloid segment, had
weak market demand. In 2021, the capacity utilisation rate of xanthan
gum was only around 56%.
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Other Financial Information
Other income

In 2021, other income amounted to RMB223.1 million, which was
mainly comprised of the income from the sales of waste products,
amortisation of deferred income and government grants.

Other loss

It mainly represented net foreign exchange losses and fair value
losses on change in fair value of foreign exchange swap contracts,
which was for hedging the foreign exchange risk of our USD bank
borrowings.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by approximately RMB16.2
million, or 1.2%, in 2021. It is no significant change during the year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB132.4
million, or 16.2%, in 2021. The increase was due to an increase in
research and development expenses and employee benefit expenses.

Net impairment losses on financial assets

The increased net impairment losses on financial assets mainly
represented the Group recorded a full provision of RMB50.0 million
that was the loan to a third party. As at 31 December 2021, the
loan receivable was past due for collection as the third party was in
financial difficulties. Due to increasing credit risk, the Group measured
the impairment as lifetime expected credit losses.

Finance income

Finance income mainly represented interest income from bank
deposits and foreign exchange gain from our USD bonds and
syndication bank loan. The interest income from bank deposits and
bank balance amounted to RMB36.3 million, a decrease of 16.9%.
This was mainly due to the decrease in our working capital during
the year. On the other hand, the Group recorded an exchange gain
on financing activities of approximately RMB82.3 million (2020: an
exchange gain of RMB145.9 million), mainly due to the exchange
difference of USD bonds and bank borrowings denominated in USD
in 2021.
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Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group in 2021 decreased, mainly as interest
expense decreased by approximately RMB33.3 million, as interest
rate bearing for syndication loan is much lower than the interest rate
bearing of the 3-year 5.875% USD bonds issued on 28 August 2018
which are fully expired and repaid in August 2021.

Staff costs

Staff costs of the Group increased by approximately RMB56.0 million,
or approximately 5.3%, from approximately RMB1,065.0 million in
2020 to approximately RMB1,121.0 million in 2021. The increase was
mainly due to an increase in number of staffs.

Depreciation

Depreciation expense of the Group decreased by approximately
RMB9.0 million, or 0.7%, from RMB1,246.8 million in 2020 to
RMB1,237.8 million in 2021.

Income tax expense

The income tax expenses for the year ended 31 December
2021 mainly represented the PRC EIT. Seven subsidiaries of the
Group including Hulunbeir Fufeng, Shandong Fufeng, Shenhua
Pharmaceutical, Baoji Fufeng, IM Fufeng, Xinjiang Fufeng and
Longjiang Fufeng have obtained the approvals to become a new and
high-technology enterprise and had been entitled to a preferential
income tax rate of 15% (2020: 15%). The qualification of new and
high-technology enterprise is subject to renewal for each three years
interval.

According to the Ministry of Finance Announcement No. 23, 2020,
“The notice on extending enterprise income tax policies of the western
region development strategy issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
State Administration of Taxation and the National Development and
Reform Commission” (8 B & A & 2020 4 55 23 5% “ B B &F -~ 71 75
BE BRERNEZUNTCEOBARABECLEMEHEIERD
N 457) taking effect from 1 January 2021, companies set up in the
western region and falling into certain encouraged industry catalogue
promulgated by the PRC government will be entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15%.
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Four subsidiaries of the Group, including Baoji Fufeng, IM Fufeng,
Hulunbeir Fufeng and Xinjiang Fufeng, were set up in the western
development region and fall into the encouraged industry catalogue,
and therefore they are entitled to the above said preferential tax rate
of 15% (2020: 15%).

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC EIT which is
calculated based on the applicable tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on
the assessable profits of the subsidiaries in accordance with PRC tax
laws and regulations except for those as discussed above.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to income
tax at a rate of 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) on assessable profits up
to HKD2,000,000.00; and 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on any part of
assessable profits over HKD2,000,000.00 for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Group’s subsidiary in the United States is subject to state income
tax at a rate of approximately 8.84% and 9.5% (2020: 8.84% and
9.5%) and a federal income tax at a rate of approximately 21%
(2020: 21%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Dividend

The Board recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
HK11.7 cents per share, subject to Shareholders’ approval at the
annual general meeting.

The final dividend will be payable on or about 30 June 2022 to
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 10 June 2022.

The sum of paid interim dividend (HK9.8 cents per share) and
proposed final dividend is HK21.5 cents per share (2020: HK9.9
cents).

USD Bonds

The Company issued USD350 million three-year USD bonds on
28 August 2018 with a fixed interest rate of 5.875% per annum.
The gross proceeds of the USD bonds issue, before deduction
of underwriting discounts and commissions and other estimated
expenses in connection with the bond issue, amounted to
approximately USD349.6 million, which the Company was mainly
used to refinance then existing debt and for business development
purposes.
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The Company completed the repurchase of USD96,664,000 in
aggregate principal amount of USD bonds (the “Repurchased
Bonds”) which were repurchased during 6 November 2018 to 13 May
2020, representing approximately 27.62% of the aggregate principal
amount of USD bonds originally issued. The Repurchased Bonds
were cancelled before 30 June 2020. The balance of USD bonds was
fully repaid on 30 August 2021.

Syndication bank facilities

On 9 March 2021, the Company (as borrower) and certain of its
subsidiaries (as guarantors) entered into a facilities agreement
(“Agreement”) with certain major banks (as lenders) pursuant to
which a USD term and revolving loan facilities up to USD400 million
with a term of 36 months from initial funding has been granted to
the Company at the rate of interest equivalent to the aggregate of a
margin rate of 1.80% per annum plus the London interbank offered
rate administered by ICE Benchmark Administration Limited on the
relevant date in respect of the USD loan. The purpose of the loan
is mainly to refinance the USD bonds and part of bank loan of the
Company and for the Group’s general corporate purposes. The
utilisation drawdown of the syndication bank facilities, amounted to
USD400 million, was made on 24 August 2021. Furthermore, as
disclosed in the announcement made by the Company on 4 June
2021, as per the Agreement, it would constitute a change of control
event if Mr. Li Xuechun, being the controlling shareholder of the
Group, ceases to beneficially own at least 35% of the issued share
capital of the Company or ceases to be the single largest shareholder.
On and at any time after the occurrence of a change of control event,
(i) the Lender shall not be obliged to fund the utilisation of the term
loan facility, and (ii) if the lenders so required, the lenders shall, by not
less than five days notice to the Company, require all outstanding
loans, together with accrued interest and all other amounts accrued
under the finance documents in connection with the loan facilities
immediately due and payable.

Except for the above, the Group had no other committed banking
facilities as at 31 December 2021. The Directors believe that the
Group’s liquidity position is relatively stable and that the Group has
sufficient banking facilities to repay or renew existing short term bank
loans and other borrowings.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalent
and restricted bank deposits were RMB4,054.8 million (2020:
RMB1,231.2 million) whereas current bank borrowings and current
other borrowings were approximately RMB1,722.3 million and Nil
respectively (2020: RMB1,361.1 million and RMB1,647.7 million).
Non-current bank borrowings and non-current other borrowings were
approximately RMB2,504.8 million and Nil (2020: RMB464.4 million
and Nil), respectively.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December, 2021, the total assets of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB21,510.8 million (2020: RMB19,355.7 million)
whereas the total borrowings amounted to RMB4,227.0 million
(2020: RMBS3,473.2 million). The gearing ratio was approximately
19.7% (2020: 17.9%). which is calculated based on the Group’s total
interest-bearing borrowings over total assets.

Foreign exchange exposure

On 22 April 2020, the Company entered into a USD150,000,000
foreign exchange swap agreement. It was mainly for hedging the
exposure to foreign exchange risk of the remain outstanding balance
of Company’s USD Bonds which were issued on 28 August 2018.
Subsequently, the abovementioned USD150,000,000 foreign
exchange swap agreement was expired and settled on 30 August
2021. The Company has entered into a new USD200,000,000
foreign exchange swap agreement on 24 August 2021. Such foreign
exchange swap agreement is mainly for hedging part of the exposure
to foreign exchange risk of the USD400 million syndicated loan facility
entered into by the Company on 9 March 2021, and of which the
utilisation of the full USD400 million was made on 24 August 2021.

The Company entered into one USD38,000,000 foreign exchange
swap agreement on 3 November 2019. It was for hedging the full
exposure to foreign exchange risk of the Company’s USD bank loan
amounted to USD38,000,000.
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Except for the above, the Directors do not consider that the exposure
to foreign exchange risk is significant to the Group’s operation as
the Group operated mainly in the PRC and most of the Group’s
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB. Foreign
currencies were, however, received for the export sales of products,
the issuance of USD bonds and draw-down of bank borrowings.
Such proceeds were subject to foreign exchange risk before receiving
and converting them into RMB. The foreign currencies received for
export sales were converted into RMB depend on needs and market
conditions. The Group manages foreign exchange risk arising from
proceeds from issuance of USD bonds and bank borrowings by
partially applying cross currency swaps to mitigate exposures arising
from the fluctuations in foreign currencies of bonds and borrowings.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2021, RMB500.0 million of term deposits (2020:
Nil) were pledged to certain banks to secure bank borrowings of
RMB500.0 million (2020: Nil) of the Group and RMB3.0 million of
restricted bank deposits (2020: Nil) were pledged for issuance of
bank acceptance notes (2020: Nil).

The long-term bank borrowings and syndication loan were secured by
the pledge of the capital stock of certain subsidiaries of the Company,
which are Acquest Honour, Summit Challenge, Absolute Divine
and Expand Base. The guarantors are all holding companies that
collectively control the operation and assets of its PRC subsidiaries of
the Group.

Related Party Transactions

The related party transactions set out in Note 33(a) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, did not constitute a transaction
which fall under the definition of “connected transaction” in Chapter
14A of Listing Rules.
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Outlook and Future Plan

1.  We adopt the “Dual High-quality Objectives” tactics as
our strategic mission for 2022, including 1) high-quality
internationalisation by accelerating the establishment of a more
complete international production and sales network; and 2) the
high-quality operation of the existing production and operation
capacity to maintain and consolidate our leading position in the
Chinese market so that we will advance our business expansion
and become an industrial powerhouse.

2. By strengthening the B2C model, we will provide industrial
customers with tailor-made product solutions and strengthen
the marketing capabilities of B2C consumer products, adding
the product driven model to our bulk trade raw material model.

3. We will establish a scientific research facility in Qingdao to
enhance systematic research and technical capabilities, including
the basic research and development (such as independent
yeast research) and the research and development of product
applications.

4. We will establish a market intelligence unit, focusing on
researching market information and trends, so as to formulate
a more accurate pricing strategy of our products, as well as
procurement strategy of raw materials.

Other Information
Material acquisition or disposal of subsidiary and
associated company

The Group had no other material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or associated companies for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Employees

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 15,000
employees. Employees’ remuneration was paid in accordance with
relevant policies in the PRC. Appropriate salaries and bonuses were
paid which were commensurate with the actual practices of the
Group. Other corresponding benefits include pension, unemployment
insurance, housing allowance, etc. Please refer to the paragraph
headed “Share option schemes’ under the “Directors’ Report”
section below for the share options granted to certain Directors and
employees of the Group pursuant to the Post-IPO and New share
option schemes.
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Purchase, redemption or sales of listed securities of the
Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, and is responsible for reviewing
the Group’s audit, interim and annual accounts of the Group and
the system of internal control. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group.

Closure of register of members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 24 May
2022 to 27 May 2022 (both dates inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to determine the
identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting to be held on 27 May 2022, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch registrar in Hong Kong. Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2022.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 8 June
2022 to 10 June 2022 (both dates inclusive), during which no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch registrar in
Hong Kong. Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 7 June 2022.

Annual general meeting

The annual general meeting is expected to be held on 27 May 2022.
A notice convening the annual general meeting will be dispatched to
the Shareholders in due course.
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It is the highlights of 2021 ESG Report. For details, please refer to the BT —FESGHREMNBE WFEEE

full report on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. HWE BT R ARA B A o

Regulatory Structure EEERE

e Establishing the ESG Committee of the Board o KIUEESESGEZE®E

Environmental RIE

e Continuously increasing investment in environmental protection e FHENMKERERIEMEA  EHZIE
and promoting a number of energy saving and emission ﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁxﬂﬁ?ﬁa i}

reduction measures

e Strictly implementing cleaner production and circular economic o EBREMBIREEMBRLEER
model

e All environmental inspections meet national and local standards e FBHERRBEVEIBREHMFELE

e Emission concentration of greenhouse gases decreasing year- e RBERBHNEEZFT TR 2021F 5

by-year to approximately 353 tCO, e/million RMB revenue in
2021 (or approximately 56 tCO, e/million USD revenue), well

below the MSCI World Index average
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Social

Attaching great importance to product quality management and
ensuring food safety

Timely and effectively handling customer complaints and
protecting consumer rights and interests

Protecting employee rights, providing training and diversified
activities

Focusing on employee health and safety

Improving supply chain management mechanism to achieve
win-win social responsibility with supply chain partners

Anti-corruption, establishing a sound monitoring and reporting
mechanism

Actively participating in social welfare

Governance

Committing to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices, constantly reviewing and enhancing
internal controls and risk management procedures

Independent directors accounting for 50% of the Board
members

Directors and senior management attending training and
continuing professional development
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Continuous efforts are made
to review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and risk
management procedures in light of changes in regulations and
developments in best practices.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions set out in the CG Code contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. During the year of 2021, the
Company had complied with the CG Code for the year from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021 except for the following:

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code: The Independent non-
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors should attend
the general meetings of the Company. However, due to other
commitments, the Independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Xu
Zheng Hong and Mr. Zhang You Ming did not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2021. All the
Directors have given the Board and the committees of which they are
members the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds
and qualifications through regular attendance and active participation.
The Directors will also endeavor to attend future general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of Shareholders.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises (i) three executive Directors, Mr. Li Xuechun,
Mr. Li Deheng, and Mr. Li Guangyu; and (i) three Independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Lau Chung Wai, Mr. Xu Zheng Hong and Mr.
Zhang You Ming. Mr. Li Xuechun is the chairman of the Board. Mr.
Li Xuechun is the father of Mr. Li Guangyu and the brother- in-law of
Mr. Li Deheng. The Group has appointed Mr. Li Deheng as the chief
executive officer since 1 June 2020.

For details of the Directors’ biographical information, please
refer to the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management”.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contributions of the Board and Management
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success and
interest of the Group through its leadership and supervision. The
principal tasks of the Board are to:

—  provide entrepreneurial leadership for the Company with a
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risks
to be assessed and managed;

—  set the Company’s strategic aims, ensuring that the necessary
financial and human resources are in place for the Company to
meet its objectives and review its management performance;
and

—  set the Company’s values and standards and ensure that its
obligations to its Shareholders and others are understood and
met.

No event or condition of material uncertainties was found that may
cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern during the year. The Directors were responsible for
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the financial
statements of the Company, in all material respects, in accordance
with applicable regulatory requirements.

The Division of Responsibilities Between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should
be separated. Mr. Li Xuechun, being the chairman of the Group,
is responsible for the orderly conduct and operation of the Board
while Mr. Li Deheng, being the Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
is responsible for the daily operations of the Group. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
is clearly established.
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The main duties of the Chairman include providing leadership for
and overseeing the functioning of the Board; formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company; ensuring that all directors of
the Board are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and giving each director an opportunity to express his view at board
meetings; ensuring that directors receive adequate information, which
must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner; ensuring that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities; ensuring
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in
a timely manner; drawing up and approving the agenda for each
board meeting taking into account, where appropriate, any matters
proposed by the other directors for inclusion in the agenda; taking
responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established; encouraging all directors to make
a full and active contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company;
ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and that views of Shareholders are
communicated to the Board as a whole; and facilitating the effective
contribution of Directors and ensuring constructive relations between
executive Directors and non-executive Directors.

The duties of the Chief Executive Officer include taking responsibility
for the Group’s operation and management; implementing decisions
and plans approved by the Board; making day-to-day operational and
managerial decision; and coordinating overall business operations.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
term of two years. They are subject to retirement and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent and the Company has
received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the
Independent non-executive Directors of the Company pursuant to
the Listing Rules. As the three Independent non-executive Directors,
representing over one-third of the Board, constituted a proper
balance of power maintaining full and effective control of both the
Group and its executive management.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and
reports to the Chairman of the Board and the General Manager. He
is responsible for advising the Board on governance matters. For the
year under review, the Company Secretary has more than 28 years of
working experience in finance and accounting including over 14 years
experience as company secretary of Hong Kong Listing Company. He
confirmed he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

Skills, Knowledge, Experience and Attributes
of Directors

All Directors of the Board had served in office during the year. Every
Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their understanding
and commit to high standards of corporate governance. The
executive Directors bring their perspectives to the Board through
their deep understanding of the Group’s business. The Independent
non-executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience,
understanding of local and global economies, and knowledge of
capital markets to the Group’s business. The Company is responsible
for arranging and funding suitable continuous professional
development programmes for all Directors to hone and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

Upon appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company
has been encouraging the Directors and senior executives to enrol in
a wide range of professional development courses or and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance or act and
corporate governance practices organised by professional bodies
and independent auditors so that they can continuously update and
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

DREMWE

NRAMERARBZBER YANEFET
FRAKEER RAERELNETERES
SREEZRE NOBEFE AFANEHEES
BEHBHREAER BEENBFBELTA
AEBRARMER4FZER RERED
BN ORI/ NN HEEEE -

EERE - A8 EREEH

MEESEZEFTANAFERBAKH -
EEEAREMEARE IR NERRR
ZEHL - ERIRPMPIE R KA R
BKFPZERER ATEFEBYAKHE
EBZRATRAMBREZEHEAEES -
BYIFATEFIRBAT 2 RERER
B R 2R Z BB RHEARTE A
ERKEXRBZABEMELER - XRAAE
AEEREREZCHMNEDRECRERR
BRTE NERNMEFRS 2 B MR -

EERBREESEERRE

REAMAESEE  SFTEEERE—
ARBZ ABER RBARD R R EE
BERIERF U R AEEE—R AT RE
ERELAARGEEZER  WBIRE
SERER EDRAIREMIERESRET
2 EE

E=MEREENABEN  RAURKHZ
ERTREIARA - 4 RRAR—EHBE
ERERITHRABREHEXER BT X
BEERBEBLETARR - QEHESIZOE K&
TEEAFRIEZAEXERRENEE
RS HFEE N ME— T RITBEEANEL
FBE



From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; the company secretary
also organises and arranges seminars on the latest development of
applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to assist them
in discharging their duties.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training with an emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of a director of a listed company in compliance
with the new requirement of the CG Code on continuous professional
development during the year:

Director

Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Li Xuechun B A
Mr. Li Deheng TEELE
Mr. Li Guangyu TERLAE

Mr. Su Chen Hung (appointed on BIRREE(RZTZ—
15 June 2021 and resigned on

25 December 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors HUIHHTEF
Mr. Lau Chung Wai BfFEEE
Mr. Xu Zheng Hong FFIEREA
Mr. Zhang You Ming RAREAEE

(appointed on 1 April 2021)
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Board Meetings

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring
the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role, setting agenda
for board meetings, and taking into account any matters proposed by
other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. Agenda and related board
papers are circulated at least 7 days before the time of a board or
committee meeting where possible.

EEgg=

IRARREERE RREFERIHA
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BEMEFRAZAAFENANE &3
BRERENTEXEEEOERTES RN
HETZESGEHA M7 RS -

33



34

FUFENG GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings. The chairman
also ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely and
clear information. Directors are encouraged to update their skills,
knowledge and familiarity with the Company through their initial
induction, ongoing participation at board and committee meetings,
and through meeting key people at head office and in the divisions.

All Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
who regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory
matters. Any Director, who wishes to do so in the furtherance of his
or her duties, may seek independent professional advice through the
chairman at the Company’s expense. The availability of professional
advice extends to the Audit, Remuneration and other Committees.

Regular Board meetings will be held at least four times a year and the
Board will convene other meetings when necessary. Before a Board
meeting is convened, relevant documents will be sent to the Directors
for their review pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CG Code. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, five regular Board meetings and
one annual general meeting were held. Individual attendance of each
director at the Board meeting and the annual general meeting during
2021 is set out below:

TRNAEEERESEER LMAESY
HENBENNNRER TRTERES
WEERE BERRBFENER TEERE
EEBMBEMENRERAN FE2EE
EghZEgem UNETEEEAER
BE LTS E - NEE ARG - A
AR INRE AR RNATBRE

FMEEENAZRARMENRE  ARMW
ERATHREZ QAT AMERRRESRE
MEMER ERNEEARETREMSEBG
ITRERSFBUEXRER  ERAARFESE -
EZZEBe FHEZBEEREMZE R
SFREXER -

ExgEERIBTOREHEE EFE
BRAEFEHAHEMER AHEZSS
A ERIE EMARRREEEATAHE
AXHERATEFHERRN -BE_F——
FT-A=+t—"BLFE EFSLETH
REHEZRLE - ABRRBFRE - FEFER
R FREEEReRMNERAFAEN
BRI E e &7 an T

Annual
Board general
meeting meeting
attendance attendance
BRREFAE
Director EEgHER i FE =R
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Li Xuechun (Chairman) TBMS g (FHER) 5/5 11
Mr. Li Deheng TEEEE 5/5 0/1
Mr. Li Guangyu TERLEE 5/5 0/1
Mr. Su Chen Hung (appointed on BIRAEE(RZE=—F 1/5 0/1
15 June 2021 and resigned on ANATHBEZRIRER
25 December 2021) —E_—F+_A-_t+HB®E)
Independent non-executive Directors B ITEE
Mr. Lau Chung Wai D fhag A 5/5 11
Mr. Xu Zheng Hong FFIER A 55 01
Mr. Zhang You Ming sk R B4 3/5 0/1
(appointed on 1 April 2021) (RZE=_—FMA—HEZME)
Ms. Zheng Yu (resigned on 1 April 2021) ¥+ (R ——F0U A —HEHT) 2/5 0/




Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the company secretary or
the secretary to the Board and, together with any supporting Board
papers, are available to all Board members. Board meetings are
structured to encourage open and frank discussions to ensure the
non-executive Directors provide effective enquiries to each executive
Director. When necessary, the Independent non-executive Directors
meet privately to discuss matters which are relevant to their specific
responsibility.

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established four committees: Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and ESG Committee. All
committees have its terms of reference which fulfill the principles set
out in the CG Code. The secretary of the Board takes minutes of the
meetings of these committees and the work of these committees is
reported to the Board.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against
the Directors. Throughout the year, no claim had been made against
the Directors and the officers of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board have adopted a policy of the Board diversity and
discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the same.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of
Board members. It endeavors to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
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Having reviewed the Board composition, the Company had one
female independent non-executive Director from December 2012 to
March 2021. As at the date of this report, all of the Board members
are male. The Company recognises the importance and benefits of
gender diversity at the Board level and shall continue to take initiatives
to identify female candidate(s) to enhance the gender diversity among
the Board members. We will appoint, subject to the above, at least
one female representation in our Board before 31 December 2024.

Our diversity philosophy including the gender diversity was generally
followed in the workforce throughout the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021. As of the date of this report, 79% of our total
workforce (including senior management) were male. We will continue
with our efforts to increase gender diversity across our workforce.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of Model Code, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

Model Code on Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with the Model
Code for the year ended of 31 December 2021.
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Accountability and Auditor’s Remuneration

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
consolidated financial statements of the Group. This responsibility has
also been mentioned in the independent auditor’s report on page 61.

The Board had conducted a review on the system of risk
management and internal control of the Group and considers that
the system of risk management and internal control is effectively
operated.

The professional fee payable to the auditors of the Group in respect
of the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors of the
Group is as follows:

PR EE

EZIR
FFEZRS

Type of services

Audit services
Non-audit services
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Amount

&8

(RMB’000)
(AR®TIT)

4,255
2,793

7,048

Non-audit services mainly represented the professional fee payable
of the Group for the service related to the projects of internal control
review.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code, comprises three Independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Lau Chung Wai, Mr. Xu Zheng Hong and Mr.
Zhang You Ming. Mr. Lau Chung Wai is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee are to review the
Group’s audit, interim and annual accounts of the Group and the
system of risk management and internal control of the Group.
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The Audit Committee meetings will be held at least twice a year. For
the year ended of 31 December 2021, two Audit Committee meetings
were held with Mr. Lau Chung Wai and Mr. Xu Zheng Hong attended
all the meetings. Ms. Zheng Yu (resigned on 1 April 2021) and Mr.
Zhang You Ming (appointed on 1 April 2021) attended on a meeting,
respectively.

The purpose of the meetings was to review the Group’s results for the
year 2020, the interim results for the year 2021 as well as discussing
the risk management assessment and the internal control review and
the audit of the Group. The Group’s 2020 annual report and 2021
interim report have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which
was of the opinion that such reports were prepared in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that an effective system of internal control
and risk management practices are essential in ensuring good
corporate governance and pursuing the achievement of the strategic
goals of the Group. The Board also acknowledges that it is the
Board’s responsibility to ensure that the Group maintains sound and
effective internal controls to safeguard the assets of the Group at all
times, it has conducted a review of the risk management and internal
control systems during the reporting year.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Risk management and internal control framework
Risk Management

In order to continuously improve the risk management and internal
control systems, as well as to enhance the level of management
and risk prevention capabilities, the Company has developed a Risk
Management Manual, established risk management strategy and
structure, as well as defined the measures for risk assessment and
risk management reporting procedures during the reporting year. The
organisational structure for risk management is set out as follows:

Board Level

EXEEM
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Board and Audit Committee

EXEEREREES

Management Level
EEERE

The Board and Audit Committee oversee the structure and
performance of the risk management functions, and assess the
effectiveness of the underlying risk management system.

The Risk Management Team of the Group comprises an executive
Director and management personnel from the Group. The team aims
to promote the awareness of risk management in daily operations.
The Risk Management Team is responsible for coordinating
and conducting risk assessments in accordance with the Risk
Management Manual.

Risk Management Team
[ B B 3 /N AR

Business Unit Person in Charge

EEXRKENAR
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Management of business units work together with the Risk
Management Team to perform risk assessment at operational level,
and is responsible for monitoring and managing the risks identified in
activities and operations. Risk Management Team is responsible for
reporting risk management status to the Board and Audit Committee.

The four key steps in the risk management process are:

o Risk identification and assessment — identify the key risks
of the Group and analyse the risk by considering the possibility
of occurrence and the impact to the Group;

° Risk handling — adopt an appropriate risk management
strategy (i.e. risk response) for each key risk;

° Risk monitoring — apply monitoring mechanism to ensure
the risk response are operated effectively;

° Risk reporting — summarise the result of risk assessment
and report to Risk Management Team.

In the risk management process, the top risks within the Group
are identified and assessed; and the respective risk management
measures as well as the corresponding mitigating controls are
discussed, agreed and implemented by the management. Risk
assessment results are reported by Risk Management Team to the
Board and Audit Committee annually.

Internal Control

The Company has established internal audit function and regularly
carries out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control in order
to ensure that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and
ever changing business environment.
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In addition, the Board and the Audit Committee have also appointed
professional accounting firms to take turns to review, on behalf of
the Board and the Audit Committee, the effectiveness of the internal
control system for all the principal business of the Group. The Audit
Committee formulates and approves the scope of review for the
professional accounting firms, who have already reported to the
Board and the Audit Committee on the main results of internal control
review. According to the results, there is room for improvement, but
no material issues. The Group will provide proper follow-up on all the
recommendations by the professional accounting firms, to ensure the
execution of such recommendations within a reasonable timeframe.
The Board and the Audit Committee are of the view that the main
part of the Group’s internal control system has been implemented on
a reasonable basis.

Review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems

The Risk Management Team assisted by professional accounting
firms has made the annual risk assessment during the year. It is
reported to Audit Committee. Key risks are identified and their
responsive mitigating controls are documented in the risk registers
and reported to the Board by the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Team.

Through the Audit Committee and risk management team, the Board
has reviewed the risk management and internal control of business
operations for the year ended 31 December 2021, and considered
that the risk management and internal control systems were effective
and sufficient. The management has provided confirmation as to the
effectiveness of the system for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
the Audit Committee and the Board. The review covers all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and
risk management functions. No significant areas of concern that may
affect the Company to achieve strategic goals have been identified.

Disclosure of inside information

The Company has established policies and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information to ensure that
disclosures are made and/or announcements are published on a
timely basis in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.
The Company has implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs and has in place a strict
prohibition on unauthorised use of inside information.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee established in compliance with the CG
Code, comprises an executive Director, Mr. Li Xuechun and three
Independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lau Chung Wai, Mr. Xu
Zheng Hong and Mr. Zhang You Ming. Mr. Lau Chung Wai is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee are to review,
develop and approve the Group’s policy on remuneration of all
Directors and senior management for the purpose of retaining and
attracting talent to manage the Group effectively. The Directors and
their associates do not participate in the decisions in relation to their
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee considers factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors and senior management,
employment conditions else where in the Group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration so as to align management
incentives with Shareholders’ interests.

The Remuneration Committee meetings will be held at least once a
year. For the year ended of 31 December 2021, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held. Mr. Lau Chung Wai, Mr. Li Xuechun,
Mr. Xu Zheng Hong and Mr. Zhang You Ming attended the meeting.
The meeting of the Remuneration Committee was duly held for
reviewing and determination of the annual remuneration package of
a new executive Director. The Remuneration Committee consults the
chairman and chief executive officer about its proposal relating to the
remuneration of the new executive Director.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The biographical details of the senior management are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of
this annual report.

The remuneration paid/payable to senior management other than the
Directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 fell
within the following band:

RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 20
March 2012 in compliance with the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for the appointing of new directors either to
fill casual vacancies or as additional Board members. The Nomination
Committee comprises one executive Director, Mr. Li Xuechun and
three Independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lau Chung Wai,
Mr. Xu Zheng Hong and Mr. Zhang You Ming. Mr. Li Xuechun is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. For the year ended of 31
December 2021, two Nomination Committee meetings were held. Mr.
Li Xuechun, Mr. Lau Chung Wai and Mr. Xu Zheng Hong attended
two meetings. Mr. Zhang You Ming attended one meeting.

ESG Committee

The Company has established the ESG Committee on 31 August
2021. The ESG Committee is responsible for the promotion of the
development and implementation of the environmental, social and
governance works of the Group. The ESG Committee comprises
two executive Directors, Mr. Li Xuechun and Mr. Li Deheng and
three Independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lau Chung Wai,
Mr. Xu Zheng Hong and Mr. Zhang You Ming. Mr. Li Xuechun is the
chairman of the ESG Committee. For the year ended of 31 December
2021, no ESG Committee meeting were held.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company recognises the importance of good communications
with the Shareholders and the investment community and also
recognises the value of providing current and relevant information
to Shareholders and the investors. The Board has established
a Shareholders’ communication policy setting out the principles
of the Company in relation to the Shareholders’ communication,
with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders and investors are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to current and relevant
information about the Company.

The Company maintains on-going dialogue with Shareholders to
communicate with them and encourage their participation through
annual general meetings or other general meetings.

Registered Shareholders are notified by post for the Shareholders’
meetings. Notice of meeting contains agenda, proposed resolutions
and postal voting form.
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All registered Shareholders are entitled to attend annual and
extraordinary general meetings, provided that their shares have been
recorded in the Register of Shareholders.

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational and
financial performance information to Shareholders and the annual
general meeting of the Company provides a forum for Shareholders to
exchange views directly with the Board, which together help enhance
and facilitate communication with Shareholders. Shareholders who
are unable to attend a general meeting may complete and return to
the Company’s Share Registrar the proxy form enclosed with notice
of meeting to give proxy to their representatives, another Shareholder
or chairman of the meetings.
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Investor Relations and Communications

The Company recognises the importance of efficient and effective
communications with the investor community. Briefings and
meetings with institutional investors are conducted regularly to
provide them with up-to-date and comprehensive information
about the Group’s development. Besides, the Company facilitates
the initiation and coverage of the Company published by research
analysts of well- received investment banks which are instrumental
in providing investors with independent and professional evaluations
of the Company. Moreover, the Group participates in different
international forums and overseas non-deal roadshows to elaborate
on the Group’s business development plans to global investors.
Furthermore, the Company arranges site visits for institutional
investors to our main plants in China. Last but not least, the
Company has established a function dedicated to investor relations
and engaged an external public relations company to take care of
investor relations matters. The Company also maintains a website
(http://www.fufeng-group.com) which renders Shareholders,
investors and the general public direct access to the information of
the Company on a timely basis.

In order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow them to engage actively with the Company,
a shareholders communication policy of the Company has been
established. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Company via the Company’s website at
www.fufeng-group.com. Shareholders may also make enquiries with
the Board at the general meetings of the Company.

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy and considered it to be effective.

Constitutional Documents
There was no change in the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Board has the pleasure in presenting the report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Result and Appropriations
Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out under the consolidated income statement on page 68.

Interim dividend paid after the interim period of HK9.8 cents
(equivalent to RMB8.16 cents (2020: HK5.8 cents (equivalent to
RMB5.22 cents)) per Share totaling HKD248,297,000 (equivalent to
RMB206,712,000). The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK11.7 cents (equivalent to RMB9.5 cents) per Share
totaling HKD296,436,000 (equivalent to RMB240,765,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Material Acquisitions or Disposal of
Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

The Group had no other material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or associated companies for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Reserves and Distributable Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Notes 25 and 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to RMB543,374,000 (2020:
RMB318,956,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and of the Company are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors
As at the date of this report, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xuechun (Chairman)
Mr. Li Deheng
Mr. Li Guangyu
Mr. Su Chen Hung
(appointed on 15 June 2021 and resigned on 25 December 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chung Wai

Mr. Xu Zheng Hong

Mr. Zhang You Ming (appointed on 1 April 2021)
Ms. Zheng Yu (resigned on 1 April 2021)

Biographical details of the directors of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”.

According to Article 87 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Li Xuechun and Mr. Lau Chung Wai should retire by rotation
and, being eligible, consider to offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Director, Mr. Li Xuechun, proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from Listing
Date. They are renewable automatically for successive terms of one
year each commencing from the day following the expiry of the then
current term unless and until (i) terminated by either party there to
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice with the last
day of the notice falling on the last day of the initial term or any time
thereafter; or (i) the Director not being re-elected as a Director or
being removed by shareholders at general meeting of the Company
in accordance with its articles of association.

The Independent non-executive Director, Mr. Lau Chung Wai,
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has renewed a service contract with the Company for two years
commencing from 12 June 2021 and is subject to the requirement
on rotation, removal, vacation or termination of office according to
the articles of association of the Company, the relevant laws and the
Listing Rules.
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As at 31 December 2021, there was no service contract which was
not determinable by the employer within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation) between any
company in the Group and any Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Contract of Significance

The Company neither has any contract of significance between the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries nor any contract of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

Business Review

Review and analysis of the Group’s activities can be found in the
Management Review and ESG Highlight of this annual report which
forms part of this directors’ report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with relevant
requirements could lead to adverse impact on business operation
and financial position of the Group. During the year, as far as
the Company is aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that
has a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and
Other Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. The Group maintains a good relationship with
suppliers and customers. During the Year, there was no material
and significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares
The interest and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of the SFO) as at 31 December 2021, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

Long position

Name of Director

Li Xuechun

Li Deheng

FiEl

Name of company

The Company

PAN/NEC]
The Company

ZAN/NC]

Capacity

Interests of controlled
corporation (Note 1)
PRGN AR (M 1)

Interests of controlled
corporation (Note 2)
REH R EER (Hi72)
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Percentage of
interests to

total issued

Number and share capital
class of securities (approximate)
R

ERITRA

BEASL

HEHERER (K8
995,217,461 Shares 39.28%
995,217,461 % 39.28%
35,320,160 Shares 1.39%
35,320,160 & 1.39%
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Notes:

1. The interest in these Shares is held by Motivator Enterprises Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li Xuechun,
an executive Director and the chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Li
Xuechun is deemed to be interested in all Shares held by Motivator Enterprises
Limited under the SFO.

2. The interest in these Shares is held by Empire Spring Investments Limited, the
entire issued shares capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Li Deheng, an executive Director. Accordingly, Mr Li Deheng is deemed to be
interested in all Shares held by Empire Spring Investments Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had an interest or
short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of interests required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Byt

1. L Z R 15 4 25 B Motivator Enterprises Limited 4
HEHNEHITRABAQRPTERTREETRTE
WEEREERER UL BIRESF R EEG
2= B4 4 A 45 48, A 7 Motivator Enterprises Limited FIT
HEBRHPHEEES -

2. It 5 i 193 45 %5 FR Empire Spring Investments Limited 33
B EEMERTREAARTESTTEHLELELE
BREAR Wt REBEEHFRBEG - FEEL
4 4% 48 & 7 Empire Spring Investments Limited AT 2
B D RS A o
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Interests of Person Holding 5% or More
Interests

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position
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RZZEZ—F+_A=+—HB BEEHFK
HEHRPIFEIBHRREFEZE LM
THAL (BEEFHEARARSTHRABRI)
R AR P HEEERNRR

"R

Percentage of
interests to

Class and total issued
Name of Group number of share capital
member Capacity securities (approximate)
A
EERITRA
BEARSL
AEERELNTER EHERIREE (M8
Motivator Enterprises  The Company Beneficial interests 995,217,461 Shares 39.28%
Limited (Note 1)
Motivator Enterprises 2N 2 7] EmfEm 995,217,461 i% 39.28%
Limited (#/5£ 7)
Shi Guiling (Note 2)  The Company Interests of spouse 995,217,461 Shares 39.28%
SRR (#t2) 2NN fo B 995,217,461 i 39.28%
Treetop Asset The Company Beneficial interests 408,364,314 Shares 16.12%
Management SA
Treetop Asset N/NC] EntkEs 408,364,314 % 16.12%
Management SA
Notes: Htat -

1. The interest in these Shares is held by Motivator Enterprises Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li Xuechun,
an executive Director and the chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Li
Xuechun is deemed to be interested in all Shares held by Motivator Enterprises
Limited under the SFO.

2. Ms. Shi Guiling is the spouse of Mr. Li Xuechun. Accordingly, she is also deemed
to be interested in the 995,217,461 Shares held by Motivator Enterprises Limited,
which in turn is also deemed to be interested by Mr. Li Xuechun under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO, there was no person who had any interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.

1. I Z R4 4 25 B Motivator Enterprises Limited 15 6
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2. FERZIARFEMALEZRESB St BIEE
% R BB &M - 1% I5 4 % 4 5 Motivator Enterprises
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in the below section of share options, no time
during the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or the
Company’s holding Company, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
neither the Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right.

Share Option Scheme

On 10 January 2007, the Shareholders approved the adoption of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. A summary of the principal terms
of the Share Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the
Listing Rules, are as follow:

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant the share options to the eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any Invested Entity.

Under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Directors may
grant share options to the following persons or entities (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for shares in accordance with the
provisions of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Listing
Rules:

(@ any employee (whether full-time or part-time and including any
executive Director but not any non- executive Director) of the
Group or any entity in which any member of the Group holds an
equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);

(b) any non-executive Director (including Independent non-executive
Directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and

(e) any consultant, adviser, manager, officer or entity that provide
research, development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options and the share options granted
under any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding share options) to each grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being.

In respect of any particular option, the Directors shall be entitled at
any time within 10 years commencing on 8 February 2007 to make
an offer for the grant of a share option. For any option granted under
the Share Option Scheme, the maximum period as the Directors
may determine shall not be later than 10 years. There is no minimum
period required under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme for holding
of the share options before it can be exercised. The Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme has expired on 7 February 2017.

An offer of the grant of the option shall be regarded as having been
accepted when the duplicate of the letter by the grantee together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HKD1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company.

The exercise price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.
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On 12 May 2017, the Shareholders approved the adoption of the
New Share Option Scheme. A summary of the principal terms of the
Share Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules, are as follow:

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant the share options to the eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any Invested Entity.

Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant share
options to the following persons or entities (the “Eligible Participants”)
to subscribe for shares in accordance with the provisions of the New
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules:

(@ any employee (whether full-time or part-time and including any
executive Director but not any non- executive Director) of the
Group or any entity in which any member of the Group holds an
equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);

(b) any non-executive Director (including Independent non-executive
Directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and

(e) any consultant, adviser, manager, officer or entity that provide
research, development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options and the share options granted
under any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding share options) to each grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being.
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In respect of any particular option, the Directors shall be entitled at
any time within 10 years commencing on 12 May 2017 to make an
offer for the grant of a share option. For any option granted under the
New Share Option Scheme, the maximum period as the Directors
may determine shall not be later than 10 years. There is no minimum
period required under the New Share Option Scheme for holding
of the share options before it can be exercised. As at 31 December
2021, the Share Option Scheme has a remaining life of up to 12 May
2027.

An offer of the grant of the option shall be regarded as having been
accepted when the duplicate of the letter by the grantee together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HKD1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company.

The exercise price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all shareholders on
10 January 2007, the scheme mandate limit for the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme allow the Company to issue a maximum
of 160,000,000 share options under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, representing 6.32% of the issued share capital of
2,533,639,037 Shares of the Company. The Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme has expired on 7 February 2017. Based on share options
were granted and still exercisable under Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, the outstanding number of the shares available for issue
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is 3,600,000, representing
0.14% of the issued share capital of 2,533,639,037 Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2021.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders in annual
general meeting dated on 12 May 2017, the scheme mandate limit
for the New Share Option Scheme allow the Company to issue
a maximum of 212,668,463 share options under the New Share
Option Scheme, representing 8.39% of the issued share capital of
2,533,639,037 Shares of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

In addition, the outstanding number of the shares available for issue
under the New Share Option Scheme is 212,668,463, representing
8.39% of the issued share capital of 2,533,639,037 Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2021.
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Under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Company granted
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 16,600,000 Shares,
14,700,000 Shares and 300,000 Shares on 9 April 2015, 9 November
2016 and 30 December 2016 respectively to Directors and eligible
employees. Moreover, under the New Share Option Scheme, the
Company granted options to subscribe for an aggregate of 5,000,000
Shares, 1,600,000 Shares, 2,000,000 Shares, 2,200,000 Shares
and 5,000,000 Shares on 25 August 2017, 29 December 2017, 28
June 2018, 31 March 2021 and 4 June 2021 respectively to eligible
employees. Details of the share options granted and outstanding for
the period ended 31 December 2021, are as follows:

BEEBRARBREBERETE - AQF
SRR —ZE-—RAFHEANA - ZF—-RF
+—AhABRER-ZE—XRF+_A=+HM
EENAEREERTEREUNRBAH
16,600,000 % f% {7 ~ 14,700,000 & i% 15 K&
300,000 A& A& 1 = ko - IR IR FT RE AR AT &)
KRB RR—ZE—tFENARZ=Z+HAB -
Z—t+F+=A=+NH" :‘_/\fﬁ/\ﬁ
—FTNR - ZE—F=A=+—RAKR=ZE
—FRANBREEREERTHEARREMN
B gﬁ & #£5,000,000 % 8% 15 ~ 1,600,000 A% f%
3~ 2,000,000 f% f% 13 + 2,200,000 f% f% 13 &
5,000,000 fgfn - EFREHERBE T =—

%+ = A=+ — B BN AT R
BT

Number of share options
EREHA
Revised/
Adjusted
At Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed At exercise
Director and eligible 1 January during during during during 31 December Date of price Exercise
employees Note 2021 the year the year the year the year grant (HKD) period
i/
R e
3 RER RER RER RER %[
ESRREKER -A-8 it % L A% REEE  (Bn) TSR
Under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme
REERDBRRE
BRETH
Zheng Yu B 300,000 - - - = 300,000 911/2016 350 911018-
(Former Independent 311272021
non-executive Director)
BRTBUAHTEE)
Eligible employees B 3,000,000 - - = = 3,000,000 911/2016 350  911/2018-
8/11/2022
AEKES
Eligible employees C 300,000 - - = = 300000 3012/2016 382 301212018 -
29/12/2022
ERES
Under the New Share
Option Scheme
REFBRES Y
Eligible employees D 5,000,000 - - (6,000,000) - - 25/8/2017 49  25/8/2019-
24/8/2023
AERES
Eligible employees E - 2,200,000 - - - 2,200,000 31/3/2021 295  31/3/2023 -
30132027
AEKES
Su Chen Hung F = 5,000,000 = = = 5,000,000 416/2021 268 416/2023 -
(Former Executive Director) 3/6/2027
L VNCIE e
8,600,000 7,200,000 - (6,000,000) - 1080000
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The fair value, which was determined by an independent
qualified appraiser using Binomial Option Pricing Model, of
the options granted as at the grant dates is approximately
RMB30,216,000. The following assumptions were adopted to
calculate the fair value of the options on the grant date:
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RHENERESB YA EREEMD
BB R A B EE G
BN EL A ARE 30,216,000 7T °
M ER R BHERERFER
WEERERT ¢

Granted on 9 April 2015

R-ZE-AFMANBARE

Average share price FH (B
Exercise price I8
Expected life of options BB ETE AT
Expected volatility TERHR I8
Expected dividend yield ER SRS

Risk free rate =& b | &

HKD4.89 7% T
HKD5.69 7% T
5.0 years £
43.11%
2.26%

0.99%

The fair value, which was determined by an independent
qualified appraiser using Binomial Option Pricing Model, of
the options granted as at the grant dates is approximately
RMB17,515,000. The following assumptions were adopted to
calculate the fair value of the options on the grant date:

REMBRERB LA ERGEMD
REBBZEBR-_EABAETEENG
HHAFELHABARKE17,515,0007T °
BT ERE T B E B E A T E T
MEBERET

Granted on 9 November 2016
R=Z2E—A"E+—-AhBHEH

Average share price
Exercise price
Expected life of options
Expected volatility
Expected dividend yield
Risk free rate

LRI
e
R TR B
Wi K
WA IR 8 %
TEBHE

HKD3.45 % 7T
HKD3.50 7% 7T
6.0 years ¢
44.79%
2.15%

1.39%

The fair value, which was determined by an independent
qualified appraiser using Binomial Option Pricing Model, of
the options granted as at the grant dates is approximately
RMB414,000. The following assumptions were adopted to
calculate the fair value of the options on the grant date:

Average share price FHRR(E
Exercise price 1118
Expected life of options BB ETE AT
Expected volatility SEERAE]
Expected dividend yield TEFHIR B &

Risk free rate =& b ) 2=

RHEWBERERBLASERGEEMD
B AHER —EA e EEA
BEHRAFEHNAAREA414,0007T © 5
FFERE ML B B AR E QB FTER N
BT

Granted on 30 December 2016

R-B-AF+-A=1+HERH

HKD3.81 & 7T
HKD3.82 % 7T
6.0 years &
44.52%
2.18%

1.70%
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D) The fair value, which was determined by an independent D) MBYAEERGEMAEL B BER
qualified appraiser using Binomial Option Pricing Model, of the “IEAAREERAGTENERED
options as at the grant date was approximately RMB7,852,000. NEELHABARET7,852,0007T © FLET
The following assumptions were adopted to calculate the fair ERREBHEREQNFERANRE
value of the options on the grant date: B3UNNE

Granted on 25 August 2017

R-ZFE—tHENAZTHEARE

Average share price f& 7 9 E HKD4.95 78 7T
Exercise price T E HKD4.96 /& 7T
Expected life of options ERETERT F H 6.0 years &
Expected volatility TEFHR IR 44.41%
Expected dividend yield TEETRR B % 3.75%
Risk free rate =& b R 2= 1.37%
E) The fair value, which was determined by an independent E) BERENAFERBLAERMGEMZE
qualified appraiser using Binomial Option Pricing Model, of the R_EAPREERAE REER
options as at the grant date was approximately RMB1,156,000. A4 B AR5 1,156,000 7T ° s E R IRE
The following assumptions were adopted to calculate the fair A A A P EEARNRERET

value of the options on the grant date:

Granted on 31 March 2021

R=B=-_—F=A=+—HB8H

Average share price T RE HKD2.807& 7T
Exercise price T E HKD2.95 & 7T
Expected life of options B ETERT T HA 6.0 years £
Expected volatility TEFHR I8 44.35%
Expected dividend yield THETRR B % 6.93%

Risk free rate =R b I = 1.22%




F)  The fair value, which was determined by an independent
qualified appraiser using Binomial Option Pricing Model, of the
options as at the grant date was approximately RMB2,459,000.
The following assumptions were adopted to calculate the fair
value of the options on the grant date:
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F) BERENAFERBLAERMGEMZ
BoBEAPECEREATE N EREA
H#) A AR 2 459,000 < st EREE
BHEREAFERANBRNT

Granted on 4 June 2021

R-SEBE-—FXANARH

Average share price FHRE
Exercise price 1T{RE

Expected life of options BIREETFH
Expected volatility TERTE IR

B RS %
TEBFIE

Expected dividend yield
Risk free rate

HKD2.67 /& 7T
HKD2.6878 7T
6.0 years &
43.84%
7.26%

0.99%

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers taken together were less than 30% of the total
sales for the year 2021.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers taken together were less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year 2021.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at 30 March 2022, being the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, to the best knowledge of the Directors and
based on the information publicly available to the Company, there
was sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules.

FEEFRHAER
AEBERAESRAARPEENHEERE
AREZB - —FHERELRG0% -

AEBRAHERRENBERESHKER
SE_T_—FBREREINI0%-

BEEEH
FRBETTRFEENERERREES
DE2BREMEABHIELHHEH -

RANARERE
R-ZF-—#F=A=+A AAFERHEANY
SHERTTAS) - REEMRMRREA
RADAMBER ARAABRARRSE
& AR & EMRAIMBIE «
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Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and as at 31 December
2021, the Company has purchased liabilities insurance for the
Directors, which provides appropriate insurance for the Group’s
directors. At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of Directors or
an associated company.

Purchase, Redemption or Sales of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of the
association of the Company and the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

Corporate Governance Report

The listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
took place on 8 February 2007 and the Directors are of the opinion
that the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code since then.

Subsequent Events
Details of the significant events occurring after the balance sheet date
are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditor

A resolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as independent
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Li Xuechun
Chairman

30 March 2022
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_
pwc

To the Shareholders of Fufeng Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Fufeng Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 68 to 200, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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We have identified “Revenue Recognition” as a key audit matter in our
audit.

Key Audit Matter
Revenue recognition

Refer to note 2.22 and note 5 to the Group’s consolidated financial
Staterments.

Revenue from sales of goods amounted to RMB21,540 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Revenue is recognised when control
of the underlying products has been transferred to the customers.

We focused on this area due to the huge volume of revenue
transactions generated from sales of numerous kinds of products
to a large number of customers that occurred in many different
locations. In relation to export sales, it usually takes more time for
control of products to pass over to customers than domestic sales.
There is potential risk of misstatement in relation to whether revenue
is recognised in the correct reporting periods.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We evaluated and validated management’s key controls that
are present in the Group’s sales process from end-to-end, from
customer order’s approval, sales recording, all the way through to
reconciliations with cash receipts and customers’ records.

We conducted testing of sales revenue recorded covering different
products, locations and customers, by examining the relevant
supporting documents including customer orders, goods delivery
notes and customs declaration notices. In addition, we confirmed
certain customers’ receivable balances at the balance sheet date
and their transaction amounts during the year, and tested the
reconciliations between the book amounts and confirmed amounts
if these were different. The items tested were selected on a sample
basis by considering the amount, nature and characteristics of those
customers.

Our work also included testing of a sample of manual revenue-
related journal entries by inquiring management of the nature of these
journals and inspection of the supporting documents.

Furthermore, one of our focused audit efforts was testing export
sales transactions that took place shortly before and after the balance
sheet date, by reconciling recognised revenue with the goods delivery
notes and customs declaration notices to assess whether revenue
was recognised in the correct reporting periods.

We found the Group’s sales transactions being tested were
recognised in a manner consistent with the Group’s revenue
recognition accounting policy.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

B BENERE (F)

BB E T S O I B AR AR
MEE

BMNER THAHYBRRBEERES T
T 7 e 70 BRAF 288 5R 1 28 B B oK #E AR Rt
BMEAERE YTHASEHEMERNZE
BiERE - WPHER BT (FREBR)WMER
PIMER BRI 2N AR EREEAM B R
BT ERABENRNTRATAMEMBALEA
FHAREREE - G BREBRSKFHR
& BETERERB(EBEFENETH
it AR - BEAHERBRMFERARER -
i AR BRI A] A BRFF Sk #E ARSI A2 - IR A 3R
BHREMEBIELERAETES HITB
WARERERES H P BRRAELOLE
RTE - R B RIS RRIR AL AT ARVEE K -

ERB(EBFEMENETENNBRES
BPERTEXRHE RS TEXEREE -
BAIIL

o HBIMFERRFFREBRM GRS G
MBEBRFEEAERRANORR &
FARBITERIZF LB S L ER - A
RERZEEMEENETERE (FAR
FIE R ERE - ANIKFEAT8E S R B3R
wiE ERER ERRL HERER
MBE S Z £ BEE RBEH B REEM
BYMERERRANER SV REEE
BRBRMEMNERE R A o

W2 R AT AR B0 PO H R B - LA SR 3T
MBI BEMLEY BEE

i
NEZEHINERERRER -

o HEEFMERASTERNBEMERE
SrtARTMERRENAENE -

65



66

FUFENG GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B BENERE (F

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continuea)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mang, Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022

B BENERE (F)
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - - —F+-A=+—HILFE

Years ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—BHLEE

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2021 2020
- ZTEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Revenue A 5 21,539,841 16,690,736
Cost of sales SHE AR 8 (17,634,565) (13,874,382)
Gross profit EF 3,905,276 2,816,354
Selling and marketing expenses HENMTISHEER 8 (1,401,171) (1,384,993)
Administrative expenses THMAX 8 (949,021) (816,618)
Net impairment losses on TREEREBETE
financial assets 3.1(b) (66,709) (11,344)
Other operating expenses Hib &M 8 (21,254) (21,572)
Other income E s 6 223,148 381,594
Other losses — net Hmhigk— 5 7 (109,912) (166,942)
Operating profit KRR 1,580,357 796,479
Finance income E TN 10 118,547 189,585
Finance costs B 75 PR AR 10 (172,712) (206,058)
Finance costs — net BTSN — F 58 (54,165) (16,473)
Share of net loss of associates HAEREY R EG
accounted for using the equity method B4 A &) % &5 18 13b (10,218) (9,369)
Profit before income tax R B 8 B AR A 1,515,974 770,637
Income tax expense FriSfif = 11 (235,334) (140,736)
Profit for the year attributable % 3R PE Ak F R ER A
to the shareholders 1,280,640 629,901
Earnings per share for profit FARREMLEF
attributable to the shareholders BRAER
during the year
(expressed in RMB cents per share) (U BRARE S Z23])
— basic — B 12 50.55 24.86
— diluted 8 12 50.55 24.86
The above consolidated income statement should be read in bt &GRSR pE BRI M R — Of R B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SHiEehaE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—T=-—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Years ended 31 December
BZE+=-BA=+—HLEE

2021 2020

—B-—F —ZEETF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBF T

Profit for the year FRRF 1,280,640 629,901

Other comprehensive income for the year FRH 4RSI - -
Total comprehensive income for theyear RERELFERGESWNSHAEE

attributable to the shareholders 1,280,640 629,901

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bt & BrAR S ek K 8 B BE P Y S — O BIAE -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

eHREARE

As at 31 December 2021 R-Z-—4F+_-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥T AREFIT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y B REE 14 9,284,867 9,748,815
Right-of-use assets FAEEE 15 794,761 766,778
Intangible assets | AE 16 48,323 50,751
Investments accounted for using the HAEDEYERNEE
equity method 13b 9,090 18,818
Financial assets at fair value through BATEAERZDN
profit and loss EMEE 17 5,000 2,000
Prepayment TR FIE 21 59,929 51,189
Deferred income tax assets FIEFTISTRE E 29 107,578 123,353
Total non-current assets IRBEELE 10,309,548 10,761,704
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 20 4,592,966 3,781,228
Trade, other receivables JEUE SRR~ H b B UGRIA
and prepayments SSENNE S 21 2,553,446 3,581,559
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHER 22 4,054,846 1,231,202
Total current assets REBEERE 11,201,258 8,593,989
Total assets EE#E 21,510,806 19,355,693
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable BREGREAR#E
to the shareholders
Share capital f&% AR 23 243,261 243,261
Share premium f& 1D @ B 23 259,434 346,437
Other reserves E S 25 852,483 715,879
Retained earnings REB W= 11,322,576 10,383,829
Total equity EREAE 12,677,754 11,689,406
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
EHREARR(E

As at 31 December 2021 R-ZT-—F+_-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—F —ZEETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Biat AR¥T T ARETIT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities kFBEE
Other payables ot < 5B 26 69,948 66,461
Deferred income IEIE W = 28 776,426 818,450
Borrowings BE 27 2,504,790 464,427
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 1,203 29
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISTAE 29 16,650 26,650
Derivative financial instruments TESMIA 18 90,370 25,031
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEREE 3,459,387 1,401,048
Current liabilities REBEaE
Trade, other payables and accruals ERB SRR - EMERRIE
N EETE A 26 2,780,278 2,609,315
Contract liabilities AHaE 5 685,866 505,105
Current income tax liabilities BNEfFRIS A E 158,409 84,510
Borrowings =P 27 1,722,254 3,008,801
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 774 390
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIT A 18 26,084 57,118
Total current liabilities RBAEHEE 5,373,665 6,265,239
Total liabilities EEAE 8,833,052 7,666,287
Total equity and liabilities EmhaEHaE 21,510,806 19,355,693

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes.

Lt & BFE E B E R EEE Y S — ORI -

The financial statements on pages 68 to 200 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf.

FOESE0 B FIHIBHMEAEETEN _Z
ZZFE=A=tEHERKRATE-

Li Xuechun Li Deheng
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SfERBEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=-T =

Balance at 1 January 2020

Comprehensive Income
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with the shareholders

Profit appropriation

Employee share option schemes:
- Value of employee services

- Expiry of options issued
Provision for safety production fee
Utilisation of safety production fee
Dividends

Total transactions with the
shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2020

Balance at 1 January 2021

Comprehensive Income
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with the shareholders

Profit appropriation

Employee share option schemes:
- Value of employee services

- Expiry of options issued
Provision for safety production fee
Utilisation of safety production fee
Dividends

Total transactions with the
shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2021

RZBZZE-f-

GalE
FEREM

FaRHAR

ERRNRZ
wHDE
EEBRETE
-BERBEE
-CETBRERR
RELERABE
%Eﬁ%ié%%

RRRNRZAE

R-B-Z2F+ZA
=t-RE&R

RZB--£-f-

Baws
R

GaUEAR

RRRNRZ
DR
EEBRETS -
-EERBEE
-CRTRRERER
REEERAAE
FRZ2EEER
(4}

RRRORZLE

RZBZ-F+ZR
=t-REH

—F+=A=+—HILEE

A&t

25

24,25
24,25
25
25
30

A&t

25

24,25
24,25
25
25
30

Attributable to the shareholders

BRI

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
B R EE Hifits @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTR  ARBT: ARBTR
243,261 663,634 665,319 9,803,755 11,376,469
- - - 629,901 629,901
- - - 629,901 629,901
- - 58,572 (68,572) -
- - (1,869) - (1,869)
- - (8,745) 8,745 -
- - 3,600 - 3,600
- - (1,498) - (1,498)
- (317,197) - - (817,197)
- (317,197) 50,060 (49,827) (316,964)
243,261 346,437 715,879 10,383,829 11,689,406
243,261 346,437 715,879 10,383,829 11,689,406
- - - 1,280,640 1,280,640
- - - 1,280,640 1,280,640
- - 139,591 (139,591) -
- - (2,399) - (2,399)
- - (4,410) 4,410 -
. - 6,264 - 6,264
- - (2,442) - (2,442)
- (87,003) - (206,712) (293,715)
- (87,003) 136,604 (341,893) (292,292)
243,261 259,434 852,483 11,322,576 12,677,754

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

IR A Bf4E AR B B 5 R B BE P MY A — DT BIAE -



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
SHBaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -_—F+-A=+—HILFE

BEEKEARALR | F3H 2021

Years ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BHLEE

2021 2020
=B —F —TEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt i ARMT ARBEF T
Cash flows from operating activities K& EZEHREBREFE
Cash generated from operations KEEESIR G 31(a) 3,080,436 549,585
Interest paid ERHE (189,050) (194,966)
Income tax paid EBN P S (155,657) (149,001)
Net cash generated from operating KL EB TSI EFE
activities 2,735,729 205,618
Cash flows from investing activites REZEFIERERE
Payments for property, plant and SIME - BE REEFIR
equipment (497,903) (988,607)
Payment for investment in an associate 7 — 1B & A &) 3% & 5% 13b (490) -
Payment for intangible assets SNEEEENIE 16 (4,675) (16,302)
Payments for financial assets at fair value X & A FEFT ABZH ¢ @
through profit or loss BEFIA (3,000) (2,402,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEREBREER
plant and equipment | 31(c) 789 2,757
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, &K B A RFTSHRIE - Mk
net of cash disposed HEMNERS 31(b) - 17,923
Proceeds from disposal of financial PERAFETABRNES R
assets at fair value through profit or BEMSHIE
loss - 2,400,000
Proceeds from disposal of foreign & SN iR HAFT 1S SR8
currency forwards 7 5,972 -
(Payments for)/Proceeds from disposal &3 X E#ia B (2 1+4) B
of cross currency swaps BIE 18 (21,328) 6,311
Loan granted to a related party RY—ZEETHNER 33(c) (14,510) -
Repayment of loan by a related party —ZBESTEENER 33(c) 9,510 -
Repayments of loan from former RERHBRREENER
subsidiaries - 2,357
Repayment of loans by a third party —REBE-FEENEX - 20,000
Assets-related government grants B B AR A B R B
received 28 52,135 197,436
Interest received EHHE 33,350 43,648
Proceeds from term deposits TE B FE TS A 20 400,000 116,360
Payment of term deposits EHF RIS 22 (509,389) (506,360)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFARSFE (549,539) (1,106,477)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

EHRERER(ZF)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - - —F+-A=+—HILFE

Years ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BHLEE

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid to the Company’s
shareholders

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayments of bank borrowings

Redemption of USD bonds

Principal elements of lease payments

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year

BMEEZBHRE
QESNSIESZNE §)

RENNRE KRS

Iﬁﬁlllbi

IRITEE PSR
EEIRTEE
BEETES
HEMNRNOAEZ S

BMERBMAE(FA)

REFRR

RERRESEEY

2, (Rd) FH8

RELNRERAESEEY

EED

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEETF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥T ARET T
(292,653) (317,091)

31(e) 5,251,052 3,962,594
31(e) (2,794,080) (3,302,644)
31(e) (1,638,552) (441,056)
31 (702) ©11)
525,065 (99,108)

2,711,255 (999,967)

22 831,202 1,831,169
22 3,542,457 831,202

The above consolidated cash flow statement should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bt & GFER &R B K EEBE P Y S — O BIE -



BEEERIA | FH 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&t B R RO

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -_—F+-A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Fufeng Group Limited and its subsidiaries manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
starch-based products. The Group has manufacturing plants
in Shandong Province, Shaanxi Province, Jiangsu Province,
Heilongjiang Province, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region and
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region of the PRC and sells mainly
to customers located in the PRC.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board on 30 March 2022.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of Fufeng Group Limited
and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with HKFRS and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRS
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except that certain financial
assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
are measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S MGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(ii) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2021:

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 —
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The Group also elected to adopt the following
amendments early:

e Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current
or future periods.

2. EEETHERE #)

21 REEEE)
(i) AEBERANIFT RIS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2021 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the Group. These standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

Effective for annual

periods beginning

on or after

Amendments Property, Plant and Equipment: 1 January 2022

toHKAS 16 Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling 1 January 2022
HKAS 37 a Contract

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual 1 January 2022
HKFRS 3 Framework

Revised AG 5 Merger Accounting for Common 1 January 2022

Gontrol Gombinations
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilties as Current 1 January 2023
or Non-current

HKInt 5 (2020) Classification by the Borrower of 1 January 2023
a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to Defintion of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
HKAS 8

Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets and 1 January 2023
HKAS 12 Liabilties arising from a Single

Transaction

Amendments to Sale or contribution of assets To be determined
HKFRS 10 and between an investor and its
HKAS 28 associate or joint venture

Annual Improvements to 1 January 2022
HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

2. EESTHERE»®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE - —

—FtZA=t—RALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

U]

(ii)

(iii)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (see (iii) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

2. EE®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—ZT—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Equity method (Continued)

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.8.

Changes in ownership interests

When the Group ceases consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE - —

—FtZA=t—RALFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

2.5

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwiill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
() Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, which is the Group’s functional and presentation
currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continuead)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year-end exchange rates are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and dividends are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “Finance costs
— net”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated income statement
within “Other losses — net”.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet,

e income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S MGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising plant and
building, machinery, furniture and fixtures and vehicles, are
stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress includes plant under construction
and machinery under installation and testing and which,
upon completion, management intends to hold as
property, plant and equipment. They are carried at cost
which includes cost of construction, plant and equipment
and other direct cost plus borrowing costs that used to
finance these projects during the construction period less
accumulated impairment losses if any. No depreciation is
provided for construction in progress. The relevant assets
are transferred to property, plant and equipment at cost
less accumulated impairment losses when they become
available for their intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Plant and building 15~20 years
Machinery 8~10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3~8 years
Vehicles 5~8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2.7

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the consolidated income statement under “Other
losses — net”.

Intangible assets

U

(ii)

(i)

Patents

Separately acquired patents are shown at historical
cost. Patents have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of patents over their
estimated beneficial period of 10-20 years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives, which do not exceed 10
years.

Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects
(related to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets when
the following criteria are fulfilled:

(@) itis technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use;
(b) management intends to complete the intangible

asset and use it;

(c) thereis an ability to use the intangible asset;
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S MGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(iii) Research and development (Continueq)

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset
will generate probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use the
intangible asset are available; and

() the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development can be reliably
measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period. Capitalised development costs
are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from
the point at which the asset is ready for use on a
straight-line basis over its useful life not exceeding five
years.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -_—F+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets

U]

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement and presented in “Other losses — net”
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE —Z —

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other losses. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in other losses and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated income statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net with other losses
in the period in which it arises.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other losses in the consolidated
income statement as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 21 for further
details.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T -—F+_-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment (Continued)

For notes receivables measured at FVOCI, the
Group measured the impairment as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of the
notes receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

For other receivables, the Group makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records and past
experience, incorporating the forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the debtors.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts
to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Derivative instruments held by the Group are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of these derivative instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement under
“Other losses — net”.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are
disclosed in Note 18. The full fair value of a derivative
is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the derivative is more than 12
months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when
the remaining maturity of the derivative is less than 12
months. Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset
or liability.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories including raw materials, work in progress and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises direct materials, direct labour, and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. It excludes borrowing costs.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEESTTHERE®)

POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Trade receivables 213 ENE IR

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are generally due for settlement within 90 days
and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. See Note 21 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1 for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Borrowing costs

2. EEEBEBE®

218 fFEE R A

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred income tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current income tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T -—F+_-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits — pension

2. EEETHERE #)

220 EE/H-RAE

The companies within the Group operate various pension
schemes. In accordance with the rules and regulations
in the PRC, the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the various local PRC
governments. These local PRC governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired employees payable under the plans described
above. The assets of these plans are held separately from
those of the Group in an independent fund managed by the
PRC government.

The Group’s operating entities in Hong Kong participate
in a MPF scheme for its employees in Hong Kong. Both
the entities and the employees are required to contribute
5% of the salaries of the employees’, up to a maximum
of HKD1,500 per head per month. The assets of MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the entities in an
independent administrated fund.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. The contributions
to these plans and MPF scheme are recognised as
employee benefit expense when incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates six equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the Group receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted,
including the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total amount expensed is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and
grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEESTTHERE®)

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Share-based payments (Continued) 221 BB XA EE (&)

(b) Share-based payment transactions among Group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in a subsidiary, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent company
accounts.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells a range of fermentation-
based food additives, biochemical products and starch-
based products in the worldwide market. Sales are
recognised when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the customer,
the customer has full discretion over the channel and price
to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
delivered to the specified location or have been picked up
by carriers designated by customers for domestic sales,
or have been shipped on board for overseas sales, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of goods (Continued)

The products is often sold with retrospective volume
discounts based on aggregate sales over a 12 month
period. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discount, using expected
value method, and revenue is only recognised to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur.

As receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

The Group does not expect to have any contract containing
financing components. As a consequence, the Group does
not adjust any of the transition prices for the time value of
money.

2.23 Safety production fee

Pursuant to regulation No. [2012]16, “Management
measures of accrual and use of safety production fee of
business enterprises”, issued by the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Work Safety, certain
subsidiaries of the Group are required to accrue safety
production fee. The fee is earmarked for improving the
safety of production.

The fee should be accrued to production costs or profit
or loss for current period, and credited to specific reserve.
The safety expenditures of the Group that are expenses
in nature are directly debited to specific reserve. The
safety expenditures of the Group that are formed into
fixed assets through collection of construction in progress
are recognised as fixed assets when the safety projects
are completed and to the expected conditions for use; at
the same time, specific reserve is written down through
the costs of formed fixed assets, and the same amount
is credited to accumulated depreciation. For these fixed
assets, there will be no further depreciation in the following
accounting periods.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Earnings per share

U]

(ii)

2.25 Leases

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity
other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2. EEEBEBE®

POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in
a similar economic environment with similar terms and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received,

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payment is allocated between the principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,
and

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases of warehouse
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

2.27 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets. Note 6 provides further information on how the
Group accounts for government grants.

2.28Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 10 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

2. EEEBEBE®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE - —

—FtZA=t—RALFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk
Instrument used by the Group

The Board does not consider the exposure to
foreign exchange risk significant to the Group’s
operation as the Group mainly operates in
the PRC with majority of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB.

However, foreign currencies, mainly USD and
HKD, are received from sales of products to
countries or areas outside the PRC (“Export
sales”), the issuance of USD bonds and draw-
down of borrowings. In 2021, the Group
borrowed bank loans of USD417,000,000.
Export sales denominated in foreign currencies
amounted to approximately 32% (2020: 29%)
of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended
31 December 2021. The Group manages the
currency risk arising from sales of products
by requesting customers to pay in advance or
keeping the credit period available to customers
as short as possible in order to reduce the
impact on the fluctuation between USD, HKD
and RMB to the Group. In 2021, the Group
also used foreign currency forward contracts to
hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risks
(2020:nil). The Group manages the currency risk
arising from proceeds from draw down of bank
borrowings by utilisation of the proceeds as
soon as possible. In 2020 and 2021, the Group
manages the currency risk arising from proceeds
from draw down of USD bonds and bank
borrowings by partially applying cross currency
swaps to mitigate exposures arising from the
fluctuations in foreign currencies of bonds and
borrowings.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBRERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. UBEARERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 B¥RERREE &)
(@) Market risk (Continued) (@) WAk (Z)
() Foreign exchange risk (Continued) ) SMEREEE (&)
Instrument used by the Group (Continued) AEEMAIAE)

The foreign currency forwards and cross
currency swaps in relation to USD bonds and
bank borrowings do not satisfy the requirements
for hedge accounting (but are considered
as economic hedges). The foreign currency
forwards and cross currency swaps are subject
to the same risk management policies. However,
they are accounted for as derivative financial
instruments with gains/(losses) recognised in
consolidated income statement.

Exposure

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period, expressed in
RMB, was as follows:

usb
E

HKD
B
RMB’000

31 December 2021 RMB’000

RMB’000

FEAMNEITESR RIRTTIE
EMHINEERMAORRX
BRI EERER
(ERRREBEEY B
Koo SMNERHIA #) ] XX
BRI AR ER
EIEBERH AR - AT
RKNEEERER/ITES
BMIAAR  EFE (18
R)EA P BRAER -

i
REERBERRUAR
B 51| TR B AR 55 [ S P R B
WA

EUR
B

SGD
o
RMB’000

Total
st
RMB’000

“2--f+ZfA=+-H ARETT AR%TR ARETR AR%TR ARETR
Cash and bank balances & RIR1T828 (Hi#220))
(Note 22(c) 3127247 10765 11,098 108 3,149,218
Trade, other receivables and [EME SR 3K » E b UL
prepayments (Note 21(e) B RFEFNFE
(Hrit21e) 565,260 - - - 565260
Borrowings (Note 27) BB (H#27) (2,758,868) - - - (2,758,368)
usb HKD EUR SGD Total
e BT BT FET et
31 December 2020 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB’000
“E-EF+-AZ+—H ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT AR®TR
Cashand bank balances 51 & RIR{THE
(Note 22(c)) (Wit226) 343,727 8,397 1,873 113 354,110
Trade, other receivables and  FEUE 5 8R 7% - H b fE U X
prepayments (Note 21(g) ~ BERFENFIE
(HriF216) 319,588 - - - 319,588
Borrowings (Note 27) &8 (Hito7) (2,153,821) - - - (2,153,821)
Trade, other payables and ~ JEfT & SR  EffERF
accruals BREFTER (35,325) - - - (3532
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ—ZF—

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)
()

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

During the year, the following foreign-exchange
related amounts were recognised in the
consolidated income statement:

—FtZA=t—RALFE

3. MXREKRER®
3.1 BIEBREE (&)

TIBER ()

0

(a)

SMNE RSz (&)
RAEHIBRERNEHE

FRATER RS E
RE FRIERIER -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBF T
Amounts recognised in the RE A ERERS
consolidated income statement Gk
Other losses — net (Note 7) HBL— 55
(H1:£7) (48,856) (77,115)
Finance income and costs (Note 70) B T UR A R B AR
(KtzE10) 82,276 145,937
Total net foreign exchange gains REARBRFTE AR
recognised in profit before income tax FIFE TR T I 3 UK
for the period mEEAE 33,420 68,822
During the year, no foreign-exchange FX - WEREMES

related amounts were recognised in other
comprehensive income.

At 31 December 2021, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 10% against the
USD, HKD and EUR with all other variables
held constant, the net profit for the year would
have been RMB44,214,000 lower/higher
(2020: RMB161,230,000 higher/lower) without
considering the impact of cross currency swaps,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of USD, HKD and EUR
denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, and foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of USD denominated borrowings.

s MERR ([ S AR R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—ZT—

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuead)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for bank deposits and balances,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s exposure to changes
in interest rates is mainly attributable to its
borrowings. A portion of borrowings bear variable
rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. During the year, the Group entered
into a long-term borrowing of USD400,000,000
at floating rates and swap amounts of
USD200,000,000 into fixed rates. The interest
rate swaps in relation to bank borrowings do not
satisfy the requirements for hedge accounting
(but are considered as economic hedges). The
interest rate swaps are subject to the same
risk management policies. However, they are
accounted for as derivative financial instruments
with gains/(losses) recognised in consolidated
income statement.

Fair value interest rate risk arises from USD
bonds, bank borrowings and lease liabilities. The
carrying amounts and fair values of USD bonds
and non-current borrowings have been disclosed
in Note 27. The fair value of lease liabilities
approximates to their carrying amount, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates on
borrowings obtained at variable rates had been
10% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the net profit for the year would have
been RMB1,634,000 (2020: RMB956,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

3.

—F+-A=t—HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt investments carried
at amortised cost, at FVOCI and at FVPL, favourable
derivative financial instruments and deposits with
banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to the customers, including outstanding
receivables.

()

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Bank
deposits and cash at bank are deposited
in reputable financial institutions which are
considered with low credit risk.

For sales of goods, customers of the Group
usually pay in advance before delivery of
products. Credit will only be granted to
customers with long-term relationship. The
Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of
its customers’ financial conditions and generally
does not require collateral on trade receivables.
The credit period granted to the customers is
usually no more than 90 days and the credit
quality of these customers is assessed, which
takes into account their financial position, past
experience and other factors. In view of the
sound collection history of receivables due from
them, management believes that the credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding trade
receivables arising from sales of products due
from them is not significant.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are
considered to be low risk investments. The credit
ratings of the investments are monitored for
credit deterioration.

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—ZT—

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continuead)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The group has two types of financial assets that
are subject to the expected credit loss model:

e trade receivables for sales of inventory, and

° other financial assets carried at amortised
cost

While deposit with banks, including term deposits
and restricted bank deposits, notes receivable
and loan to a third party are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group has trade receivables for sales of
inventory that are subject to the expected credit
loss model.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of 36
month before 31 December 2021 or 1 January
2021 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has considered the business, financial
or economic conditions of the customers and
the performance and behaviour of customers,
and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBRERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. IRARERE &
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIBABREER#E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE)
() =@BEERE (B)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)
B SRR (&)

RUEEE R_T_—F
+ZA=+—RAKRZE=
ZF+-_A=+—HIRE
BN GHRELERNEIR

Trade receivables (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 was determined under HKFRS

9 as follows:
FrE TR E 5 BRI
EEBENT :
Within 3to 12 Over
3 months months 12 months Total
AR 3ZE128F 12ANE @t
31 December 2021 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E_-E4+-fA=t-H ARETRT AR®Tn AR%Tn AR%Txn
Expected loss rate EHBEAR 3.50% 20.39% 98.67%
Gross carrying amount LERE 1,076,622 13,822 4,065 1,094,509
Total loss allowance BEARE 37,117 2,818 4,011 44,546
Within 3t012 Over
3 months months 12 months Total
3SEAN  3E12f8A 12BAMUL @it
31 December 2020 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
“E-ZF+-A=+-H ARETT AREBTT AR®ETT ARETR
Expected loss rate EHBEAE 3.01% 20.57% 99.67%
Gross carrying amount LERE 591,253 31,326 3,985 626,564

Total loss allowance BIRK A 17,809 6,444 3,972 28,225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)
MG ERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

—E-—F+-A=1+—HIFE

KRR ER &)
3.1 BREMEZ (&)
b) EERE(E)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) () TREEHEE)
Trade receivables (Continued) B PR (&)
The closing loss allowance for trade receivables RTZA=+—H2EK
as at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss B SR BIRB LB
allowance as follows: ELHR )18 R BB M BR 10
T
Trade receivables
EWE SRR
2021 2020
—E=-—F —ZTEZEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
Opening loss allowance as at 1 January 7 — A — B&H¥E
KEE 28,225 18,991
Provision for impairment loss allowance — &Hi2E (B 18 kBl 16,709 11,344
Receivables written-off during the year as £ A Hifl 84 /& 7~ A] Ug [E]
uncollectible B FE KR (388) (2,110)
Closing loss allowance at 31 December W+ _A=+—HH
HIRB R EE 44,546 28,225

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include, amongst others, the failure of
a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments for a period greater than 360 days
past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

BHERWERNLES
T A] Ui 3 FE H B A M
1504 5 72 AT W [B] 78 H ) B
SEREEFERE) BH
ARBEERANEEFT &K
HE U RREHERBS
360 KK HAFI REE(E &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ—ZF—

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables including the loan to a third
party. Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivable
has occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

Net impairment losses on financial assets
recognised in profit and loss

During the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, the following losses were recognised
in “Net impairment losses on financial assets”,
respectively in the consolidated income
statement in relation to impaired financial assets:

—FtZA=t—RALFE

3.

KRR ER &)
3.1 BREMEZ (&)
b) EERE(E)

(i)

EAMEENRE (&)
BB AT RO E S
BMEE
R AT RO E M &
BB B E A R WA
(BRERTE=T) °
Hofth & U SR IR B BB TI 4%
12fA AFEMERIERHE
EFEMNERERIEL
AECBTEVSEARE
EEHRBEAEERRIZ
o0 e fis FE U SRIR Y (E B L
BB VIR ERED BE T
m BB LA B M8 17 4B 1 38
HIERIBKRGE -

EHANERNE/REE
BRE B BF R
HE_Z - —FR=-F=
ZF+A=+—HIF
€ THEESRREE
TRIEEFMANIER
& RE EREERF
7R

2021 2020
—EB-—&F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Impairment losses REEE
— loss allowance for other receivables —H b fE UL FRIBHY
B iR 50,000 -
— loss allowance for trade receivables —EWE ZERW
Eia s 16,709 11,344
66,709 11,344
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -_—F+-A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and available credit facilities to meet
obligations when they arise.

Management monitors the funding requirements of
the Group and the availability of credit facilities in order
to ensure the liquidity of the Group.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
their contractual maturities for:

(@ non-derivative financial liabilities, and

(b) net and gross settled derivative financial
instruments for which the contractual maturities
are essential for an understanding of the timing
of the cash flow.

3. BMEAKRER#®
31 BEEBEE )

(c)
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BE - NENARERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBRERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HAIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3. MIKRRER#
31 BERBEE )

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

() RBEEERE)
RTRBENSBER/BHNRMEA
Reng AR BHMRTE
WAREBXN  BR+—EARE
HNGEHREE N EREG

Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities

ERARSNEMA

Less than
1 year

DR-F
RMB’000
AREF R

Between
1 and 2 years

—EMF
RMB’000
AR®TR

Between
2 and 5 years

—EHE
RMB’000
ARET T

Total
contractual
cash flows
=Y ok
RMB’000
ARETR

At 31 December 2021 R-B=-%
t=ZA=+-H
Non-derivatives F6TE
Borrowings & 1,724,403 127514 2,422,766 4,274,683
Interests payments on REEZHEFL)
borrowings (i 74,244 47,290 28,145 149,679
Lease liabilities HEBE 849 831 418 2,098
Trade and other payables ERESEF R EM
(excluding non-financial EEHE(TRE
liabilties) FeRBRE) 2,432,523 - 82,230 2,514,753
Total non-derivatives FOTE AR 4,232,019 175,635 2,533,559 6,941,213
Derivatives 1%
Gross settled BEE(RNEREE)
(cross currency swaps)
~ (inflow) -(A) (247,763) (30,468) (20,613) (298,844)
- outflow = 295,769 44,732 26,589 367,090
48,006 14,264 5,976 68,246
Total st 4,280,025 189,899 2,539,535 7,009,459
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T -—F+_-A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEKRERE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continueq) 31 MEEREBEE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) "BE£REK (&)
Total
Contractual maturities of Less than Between Between Above  contractual
financial liabilities ERAERNIEA 1year 1and2years 2and5 years 5years  cash flows
BHRE

SR—F  —EmME  —EIF  EFNE  RELE
RVB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTRE ARBTT ARETR AREBTT ARETE

At 31 December 2020 R-B-B&+4+_AH

=t+-8
Non-derivatives FiTE
Borrowings BE 2,989,569 442,820 - - 3,432,389
Interests payments on HEEZFFE()
borrowings () 126,607 12,451 - - 139,058
Lease liabilties HEAR 454 27 2 - 483
Trade and other payables ~ EREZERR
(excluding non-financial HEMENRE
liabilities) (TREEER
&) 2,048,667 - 50,520 81,710 2,330,897
Total non-derivatives FFTEAE 5,365,297 455,298 50,522 31,710 5,902,827
Derivatives &
Gross settled BREE(RNEE
(cross currency swaps) )
~ (inflow) -(RA) (85,788) (225,258) - - (311,046)
- outflow = 99,112 249,630 - - 348,742
13,324 24,372 - - 37,696
Total @t 5,378,621 479,670 50,522 31,710 5,940,528
()  The interests on borrowings are calculated based () BEENE *E Tf‘; —E_—
on bank borrowings and USD bonds held as at FRZZEZZEF+A
31 December 2021 and 2020 without taking into =T —HAFRITEER
account of future issues. Floating-rate interests ETLEFFE - MR
are estimated using current interest rate as at 31 HBEE - FBHFNESD J
December 2021 and 2020 respectively. BR-E-_—FR-T=F

F+-A=+-RWBRG
R fiat -



114 FUFENG GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

3.2 Capital management

(a)

Risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to

e safeguard their ability to continue as a going
concern, so that they can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and

e  maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is equal to total borrowings divided by
total assets at the end of corresponding year.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio
below 40% (2020: 40%).The gearing ratios at 31
December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Total borrowings (Note 27) EE®BE (Wit27)
Total assets BEHE
Gearing ratio BEEBELX

KRR ER &)
3.2 EXREHE
(@) REERE

AEENEAEEBRES

s REHRBELKEEEME
BEEMRS  AULEE
FIF REEEMER A A
e - K&

s KBREETEBIRE

REFNABERRE K%
EHEHBEIN TREREROEE
TH RARRBEEELS BT
R EEENREBTR -

AEERBEEABLLRER
HEX -ZLEFHENEBER
BRUALEHEFEFZRE
ERE -

AEBENREAKEEREL
RHFNIO% AT (ZEZZF
F:a40%) RZZBZ—FR
—E_FFFT-A=+—8K

BEEAMBLEENOT
2021 2020
—E-—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
4,227,044 3,473,228
21,510,806 19,355,693
19.65% 17.94%

The increase in the gearing ratio of the Group was
mainly due to the increase in borrowings in 2021.

AEEEEABLERLERFE
HRAR - —FEEEINFT
@(o
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

(a) Risk management (Continued)

(0

Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities,
the Group is required to comply with the
following financial covenants:

e the leverage ratio in respect of each relevant
period shall not exceed 2.50:1;

e the interest cover ratio in respect of each
relevant period shall not be less than 4.00:1;
and

e the consolidated tangible net worth shall
not be less than RMB7,500,000,000 at any
time.

“Leverage ratio” is the ratio of net debt which is
consolidated total borrowings minus cash and
cash equivalents to consolidated EBITDA.

“Interest cover ratio” is the ratio of EBITDA to
interest expense.

“Consolidated tangible net worth” was calculated
by the total equity minus the intangible assets
and deferred income tax assets.

The Group has complied with these covenants
throughout the reporting period. As at 31
December 2021, the leverage ratio was 0.24
(2020: not applicable), the interest cover ratio was
16.30 (2020: not applicable) and the consolidated
tangible net worth was RMB12,521,853,000
(2020: RMB11,515,302,000).

R —F+-A=+—HIFE

3. BIKERER®)
32 BEXREE (&)
(@) RERERE(E)

(0

EH#E
BEFZEERREGRRK
REBBEETUATHBEE
=3

o EHBHMMEREE
TE5HBiE2.50 1

o EHBHRMMFE(E
RN EER4.00 :
1 K

s AHBEREEF
1B 5 E A B R 15
THEERARE
7,500,000,000 7T

[TERR|BEHIEEREE
BERS MRS SEDN
R E A FTEBITDAR
B o

[# B &+ %] BEBITDA
HF ST E-

[EHALEEFE] R
PRESBERETEER
BIEFASIREEMAES
tlj o

AEBPRHERBA—
BEETZEHLFE K=
T —F+ A =+—
H - EREXAE0.24 (=
T-ZTF:TEA)
A BEMNEAE16.30 (=
T-ZTF:T@EA)
mMaHEREEFER
AR #1412 521,853,000
TL(ZE-FTF: AR
11,515,302,0007¢T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MEBER®)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME
(a) Financial assets and liabilities (@ 2REEKEE
() Fair value hierarchy 0 RFEER

This section explains the judgements and RETEAMEFERE O
estimates made in determining the fair values WMEFERRIEATER
of the financial instruments that are recognised ENSBMITAEATFBEME
and measured at fair value in the consolidated B H T R A o RISE
financial statements. To provide an indication BHEERFEMARHA
about the reliability of the inputs used in HEMAEMEE A&
determining fair value, the Group has classified B iRt AR EEAE
its financial instruments into the three levels CHMIES A =EZER-
prescribed under the accounting standards. An BFELRN TRETHEM -
explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.

Recurring fair value
measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1BR  HE2BH  HIER Bt

Note  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
fa AR®TR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR

At 31 December 2021 R-BZ-%5+ZA
=+-8

Financial assets CREE
Financial assets measured BAFEFAERTE

at FVPL REREE
— Equity investments -kERE 17 - - 5,000 5,000
Notes receivable measured at ~ BATFEF AR LS

FVOCI IhmENEREE 219 - - 72859 728,596
Total financial assets SHEEAE - - 73359 733,596
Financial liabilities tREE

Derivative financial instruments ~ #74 4¢& L& 18 - 116,454 116,454
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R —F+-A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MERAKRERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 A¥EMEE)
(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) @ =MEEREEE)
() Fair value hierarchy (Continued) 0 RFEERE)
Recurring fair value
measurements BEHATERE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Z1BH  F2EBL  FEIER w@ar
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wiz ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRL
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-ZF+=-H
=+-8
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets measured BAFETAERTE
at FVPL HEREE
— Equity investments -kERE 17 - - 2,000 2,000
Notes receivable measured at R AFEGFFAE LA
FVOCI WEFENEKEE 219 - - 723478 723478
Total financial assets CHEEME - - 725,478 725,478
Financial liabilities CRAE
Derivative financial instruments {14 €@ T & 18 - - 82,149 82,149

The carrying value less impairment provision
of trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and short-term bank deposits
approximated their fair values. The fair value
of financial assets and liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for

similar financial instruments.

B 5 hEMBERFE R
e MRS EFEYRIEHR
775 3R B0 B T {0 0 1 7
WEEQNFEBE - 1ER
BRzNEREEMAE
NFETEBRBRITHS
MEERARASERE
TR THE) BRARKAHD
REma iy sUEITRET

117
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

()

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into
and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as
at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level
1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case
for unlisted equity securities.

3.

KRR ER &)
3.3 AV EMRE(#E)

(a)

SMEERERE(E)
0 AFEERGE)

AEBBR S ERERBN TR
EHRAFEZHEKTH
BARERIER -

F-RK - wEBRMSLE
ENEMITA(WMAHE
BUTAETARKRAESR)
B R FETHRR | E IR
MM REETE - A& E
B emMEERBNT
LHRERERERE - %
FETAFAE & -

EoHREERMS L
EENLRIE (Hlng
IMTETR) R FERF
BiEERMETE - 25
ERTEEFATEHED
S8k WEAETEE
HREEMA - WErET

BERFEENERNHA
HIEHUER - AZTA
HAE -

B=R: M- EXZEE
A% A BRI IE DA A B
mSEERER - BIZT
At AE =M 8RRk L
MRANRE ST S E 2t o
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MG ERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

e for interest rate swaps — the present value
of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves

e for forward currency forwards — present
value of future cash flows based on forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date,
and

e for foreign currency options — option pricing
models (eg Black Scholes model)

All of the resulting fair value estimates are
included in level 3.

R —F+-A=+—HIFE

3. BMEAKRER#®
3.3 AVEME(E)
(@ cRIEEREREE)

(i)

EBEERFEAIEETE

HheR I AMBSEM
BIEBRE:

o BATIEHME-£
A A] B 5 W 2k A AR Y

ABEFARRBERREN
BB

e BHEERHARM
E-REEAMBXRA
RIBRME R EH
REBRERERE
K

o IMNEHEMF -
#EBRRK (Bt
He e AR AR A AR AL )

FTE B E A M R AR
BHEBEER=R-
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SHMBRRMEE(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MKEEEE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AT EME#E)
(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) @ =MEEREEE)
(i) Fair value measurements using significant (i) HRAEAXT AR AE
unobservable inputs (level 3) B (E=ER) BN FEE
=)

The following table presents the changes in level TREIBE-F-—F
3 items for the periods ended 31 December ey ph =
2021 and 31 December 2020; FEFT A=+ —HIEH

BFE—ERRENES :

[\ [o] 1
receivable Derivative
Equity measured financial
investments at FVOCl instruments

EATEH

ARMERE

Wik st B AY
RERE  EUERR fTEEMIR £
RVB'000 ~ RMB'000  RVMB000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTT ARETRT ARETRL

Opening balance as at R-E-E5-A—-HW

1 January 2020 B g - 972,971 7,769 930,740
Acquisitions e 2,000 723,478 - 725,478
Disposals e - (972,971) (14,649) (987,620)
Losses recognised in REMIBRERREE -

other losses - net* FEE - - (75,269) (75,269)
Closing balance as at R-B-EE+CZA

31 December 2020 =t+-AMERER 2,000 723,478 (82,149 643,329
Acquisitions e 3,000 728,596 - 731,596
Disposals HE - (723,478) 57,118 (666,360)
Losses recognised in RE 18K HERA

other losses - net* B8 - - (91,423) (91,423)
Closing balance as at R-B--%5+=AH

31 December 2021 =+-AMERER 5,000 728,596 (116,454) 617,142

*includes unrealised gains/(losses)* £ & 1 i & HiK A 1)

recognised in profit or loss HEREENERRER

attributable to balances held at Bk & H Uz (E1E)

the end of the reporting period
2021 —Z=- - - (91,423) (91,423)
2020 —E-TF - - (75,269) (75,269)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MKEEEE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AT EME#E)
(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (@ cRIEEREREE)
(i) Fair value measurements using significant (i) HRAEAXT AR AE
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) B (E=ER) BN FEE
= (#&)

Fair value
as at Relationship of
31 December Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description 2021 technique inputs inputs  to fair value
R-ZE--%
+=A
=+—H FABE TUBEEHAHEHE
MATE HEREN BABE BABE®EE ATENEE
RMB’000
ARETT
Notes receivable - bank 728,596  Discounted Expected 2.41%-2.55% A change in the discount
acceptance notes cash flow discount interest rate by 100
interest rates basis points would
increase/decrease
the fair value by
approximately RMB
1,772,000
EUZEE-RITEALEE 728596 ARHEENE EHHERAE  241%-255% HERAEEE 1001
EUHSATEE
n/BPHARE
1,772,000 7C
The Group’s equity investments are mainly REENREREFZH
related to equity assets. These investments do REEERMH ZFRE
not have any quoted market price in an active EERMISH I EEAT
market. The fair value are determined using BHE - A FEERGE
valuation technique, including discounted cash Rt (BREMBERERE
flow model and comparable market multiples. BAIRAI TS EE) &
The main unobservable inputs are the risk- o ETEMAABEH A
adjusted discount rate, earnings growth factor, R AR AR R
price-earnings ratio, price-book ratio, volatility BAEREH TRE -
and lack of marketability discount, etc.. MRE R RRZRE

HERRIRSE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - - —F+-A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are described below.

4.1 Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgements in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

4.

SRR A &

MBEBEZmEFTEZEAGH G R
BEE ZEFeHRAFARISHABRE
RAFR - EEENFERBARENE
TR B 1R I

B RAEE L RENE X AOBE
REMHEMAREER  SBFEERAS
MTEARREHOAIETRR -

AEEHRKELERER - AEE
AR —MEERE LS EEBNERS
RER « LAt dE RREBEE
REBRESIBART AR RFELE
ENBENREEFELERAE -

41 ESREMBWRERERE

TREENBBEEBEEANRHEEOR
S RIEHEBEENBE AEER
TE}Z'K%IE’J}@EEE RAEMSERK
JUUA K Z iR HA R Ay AT B (5T
FRAMELZEBEREEBRAE
AEMNEARE - TANEERK
Fo ABER B MWES (o) 5 -
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T -—F+_-A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EESTHATTRAE 2

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Estimated impairment of property, plant and

4.2 W% - MERRBOMEFRE

equipment

The Group reviews property, plant and equipment for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has been
determined based on the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related assets
values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal or net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group’s financial condition and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the projected
performance and resulting future cash flow projections,
it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement. If there is an indication that
an impairment loss may have decreased, the recoverable
amount should not be more than what the depreciated
historical cost would have been if the impairment had not
been recognised.

WEEHRIBAZSBREEER]
BETN AT EIES - REE SR M
BEEREORE REEEEM
AT El SR E REREEERF
BREERANRSEET - ER
BNYE BELRRERSHRER
Hite st 2B A pE R mRE -

EREAANGEERESHRE  LH
EHH(\REERLETREETRAE
BEEBERITAIKEHEH (i)
A E R (B A FERE B KA
RN EBFHEECRAEEMGTH
ARBFEeREFHREMEFTNRR
BRESXFHZEEENREE
Ko (iii) PR AR LR & 2 TER R A Y
HEXTZRR PEZZReRE
FERESREAEE R XN - i
EREANUTEBRENRRE (B
BE&RhETE) ElJEP}KﬁHmHEﬁTjZi-
RERR) NE - A Tﬁ%?iﬁmﬁ
BT FREEEERLE -
%%K%lﬁ@ﬂﬂ%ﬂkﬂ&ﬂ“%%
B BT RBARBERRE SR
EFEAEHBR BTN E S AIAT8E
BUHEEGHMNERFPIRBERS
8 FRETRERBER DR -
BI AT 4k [B] & 58 1568 18 B 7% 0 f 7
RBERNERATEER LKA -
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—FtZA=t—RALFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continueq)

4.3

4.4

4.5

Useful lives of plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. For deferred government grants related
to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, the
periodic credits to consolidated income statement will also
be increased under the above mentioned circumstances
when such grants are credited to the consolidated income
statement over the assets’ remaining useful lives.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to
industry cycles. Management reassesses the estimates at
each reporting date.

PRC taxes

The Group is mainly subject to different taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are some transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that are initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

4. EERGTHEFT RAE @)

4.3

4.4

4.5

= & 5% 48 B BT 4 A 4 B
FEFHEEEEETERE R&BE
RIfEETRAIE A FHA AR &M -
ZARET AR IR E AR LU E & T B8 B9 R
EERENERANFERATHNES
KEREL - WA E T E LS
HFRERENITEERMIETS
MBEEANEL - WA AFHR2

RIFTfhETr AR AIEEEBSRS
Tﬁ%ﬁﬁi SO B REE SR BRI
filr 368 B B 3F 58 BE B S I SHORT o
EWEYE  BELREEEBN
EEBT#HBIME - B B@REE
BERTEATHEASGHFMBER
WE - & FIBEROTEHERE
HUBFR TN =g o

FENTRRFE
I AR IS E IR B 8RB
T o 8 0 3T 85 BB £ B SR AL
ARHENS - B AR AR
R B 1 RLER
BEGREY  THEESE X2
BB T HE £ R
WITRTIL R E AR - ERER
B & BB AR -

rh B B 1E
AEEBEFRFZEABMTRFIE -
RETMEREBER - BEHERXR
#U%ﬁ" \HEEBBEHR BR%Z

%&W‘ ) B AT 75 TEE S N T T

c AKBIRIERSMEIEHEEIN
E}\ﬁﬁlﬁiugﬂﬁﬁﬁ@mﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘%%@
EEMNET - AZEETENRKH
BERBAINVIAEHENSEE %
EERBTEFELBEATHEN
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T -—F+_-A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company. The executive directors
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources.

The executive directors examine the business performance of
the Group according to the following product segments:

—  Food additives segment: manufacturing and sales of food
additives products, including MSG, starch sweeteners,
glutamic acid, compound seasoning and corn oil;

— Animal nutrition segment: manufacturing and sales of
animal nutrition products, including corn refined products,
threonine and lysine;

— High-end amino acid segment: manufacturing and sales of
high-end amino acid products;

—  Colloid segment: manufacturing and sales of colloid
products, including xanthan gum and gellan gum; and

—  Others: manufacturing and sales of other products,
including fertilisers, synthetic ammonia, pharmaceuticals
and others.

The executive directors assess the performance of the business
segment based on gross profit of the above five product
segments.

7 EER
ERETEBELERRERFARANTE
FoHTEFENARENNL2RB
B UIRRARSRER -

HTEEREUATERD BB AEHE
MR RR -

- RMANEDE: HEMBEERM
ANINEIE @ BIEWE - BH K
B AR - EAERmEEK

- BYEELI HEREEHYWE
BEMR BRIKERESR &S
% & kB | B

- REISEESS HENEESE

REBRER
- BEIH -RENHEBREEM

g

BRERBRELE &

- Hit:RERHEHMER 87
PERE - BRCE - B K EAM -

HITEEERN LM TEERD BENT
HEBDEBERR -
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SHMBRRMEE(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ=-T-—F+-A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 are set out as follows:

5.

DEER @)
KEBRHEZ-_ZT-_—FK

—E-EE

—_ = ==

TZA=ZT—HEFENRAFEIINT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Products by segments BEAMEIDPER RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Food additives BERAME
MSG K45 8,515,656 7,191,798
Starch sweeteners B E R A 1,421,350 1,388,796
Glutamic acid BaE 366,378 416,344
Compound seasoning BEFAR SR 82,150 55,699
Corn ail E oK 3,134 5,937
10,388,668 9,058,574
Animal nutrition BYEE
Corn refined products TORIBBRE @ 3,577,678 2,816,820
Threonine Ak 2,394,716 1,279,870
Lysine Bk 1,647,471 974,133
7,619,865 5,070,823
High-end amino acid SESER
High-end amino acid products BIESEBRESR 1,415,394 943,406
Colloid B
Xanthan gum wmRB 968,753 821,294
Gellan gum #EHRB 73,952 60,202
1,042,705 881,496
Others Hih
Fertilisers fERt 647,122 384,207
Synthetic ammonia ARA 263,081 182,676
Pharmaceuticals At 147,614 153,061
Others HAh 15,392 16,493
1,073,209 736,437
21,539,841 16,690,736
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T - —F+_-A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 7EER ®)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2021 BHE_ZE-_—S+-_A=1+—RALFE
is as follows: D EERT

Food Animal High-end
additives nutrition  amino acid Colloid Others Group

ARFNA  BOEE BEESE B Y 1 |

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TRT AR%®Tn

Revenue LhON 10,388,668 7,619,865 1,415,394 1,042,705 1,073,209 21,539,841

Cost of sales HEMAR (8,963,864)  (6,250,813) (827,526) (701,589) (890,773)  (17,634,565)

Gross profit EH 1,424,804 1,369,052 587,868 341,116 182,436 3,905,276
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—RALEE
is as follows: MAFERAT :

Food Animal High-end
additives nutrition amino acid Colloid Others Group
R nE PNER BREIEER B Hit, KEE

RVB'000 ~ RMB000 ~ RWMB000  RMB000 ~ RVMB000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR

Revenue WA 9,058,574 5,070,823 943,406 881,496 736,437 16,690,736
Cost of sales SHERA (7,632,150)  (4,390,690) (596,359) (686,642) (568,041)  (13,874,382)
Gross profit E7 1,426,424 680,133 346,547 194,854 168,396 2,816,354

The Group’s revenue from its external customers in the PRC
amounted to RMB14,623,085,000 (2020: RMB11,900,485,000)
and the total revenue from external customers in Europe
and other countries amounted to RMB6,916,756,000 (2020:
RMB4,790,251,000).

The Group’s total non-current assets located in the PRC other than
deferred income tax assets and derivative financial instruments
amounted to RMB10,089,890,000 (2020: RMB10,637,650,000),
and the total non-current assets located in Hong Kong, the
United States of America and Singapore other than deferred
income tax assets and derivative financial instruments amounted
to RMB112,080,000 (2020: RMB701,000).

AEBREPBREIMPEFHBABAR
#14,623,085,000 C (ZEZFF : AR
#11,900,485,0007T) @ R 8 BUM & H
HERIBEEELWARBARYE
6,916,756,000 L (ZZE—_ZTF : AR
4,790,251,0007T) ©

et RIBERFAEHEEMITESR T A -

Z’»‘%.{ib_’\qﬂlmghmébéé TE#‘:A
R #10,089,890,0007T (=T —F4F : A
R #10,637,650,0007T) ° T&F K iEiE Ay
SHREEMTESRITE URES -
EREFMERNIERBEELER AA
R#112,080,000 T (ZZT—TF: AR
#701,0007T) °
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SHMBRERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 5. 2EER @)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with HEFZENEREENERADF
customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods at a point AEECREESFEATREANRBAE
in time in the following geographical regions: EEmEFSHEA

Sales of goods
HEEM
Overseas PRC Total

=2 H st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF AR®T R AR®T T

Revenue from external customers 2R B 4MNEEE F &)U A 6,916,756 14,623,085 21,539,841

Timing of revenue recognition at a & &2 U4 A H B R 77
point in time (B 2 6,916,756 14,623,085 21,539,841

Sales of goods

HEE M

2020 T -TF Overseas PRC Total

I # HBET

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T AREF T ARBFTT

Revenue from external customers 2R B 9B F B9 U 4,790,251 11,900,485 16,690,736

Timing of revenue recognition at a & ZR UL A B B S 7

point in time R R R 2 4,790,251 11,900,485 16,690,736
Approximately 68% (2020: 71%) of the Group’s revenue is AEEL8% (ZZEZZF : 71%) I
generated from sales to customers in the PRC. The remaining AREAFEEFPHHEE - AEEHRT
32% (2020: 29%) of the Group’s revenue is generated from 32% (ZF ZFF : 29%) WU A K 5 [
the sales to overseas countries including the Europe, the EINEIRAIIHE - BIERUM - T =M

Latin America, the United States of America, North America, EFBEFTE - bXE - BEERAX -

Southeast Asia and Japan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—T——%+—-_A=+—HI-&FE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 5. 7EER (&)
Liabilities related to contracts with customers HEFZENERERANEARE
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to AEBECHRAANTHEFEREBEBENE
contracts with customers: &

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
ToA=1—H pei=h =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Contract liabilities — sales of goods ARAE-HEER 685,866 505,105
() Changes in contract liabilities () EREENEE
The increase in 2021 was due to the increase in advance CE I —FHENERARKREER
from customers. RO TE USRI N -
In the current reporting period, all the contract liabilities at RAFRER - REIEt AN ES
the beginning of the period were recognised as revenue. AaEEERREA -
6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hfttz=
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARMEF T
Amortisation of deferred income (Note 28) #$5iE {E UL 25 (H17£28) 94,159 89,267
Government grants related to expenses £ 5 s /A B8 89 BX T 48 B 55,946 81,899
Sales of waste products 45 BERHEE 56,921 164,209
Others H A, 16,122 46,219
223,148 381,594
Government grants related to the purchase of property, plant HEESYE BMELIESR BB
and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred B ETAFERE BE - JIERTE K -
income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis WHRNBBEETEBRFHRNUEZETA
over the expected lives of the related assets. B o
Government grants related to expenses are deferred and B35 7 B B BUR A B S TIRE - W iR
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary I & ¥ E RS PTH RN B NER o

to match them with the expenses that they are intended to
compensate.
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SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE=ZT =

7. OTHER LOSSES - NET

—F+=A=+—HILEE

7. HibEX - FH

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment — net (Note 31(c))

Net foreign exchange losses (Note 3.7)

Investment losses from cross currency
and interest rate swaps (Note 18)

Investment gains from foreign currency
forwards

Others

HEME  BELKEEIE—F58
(K&t 31(c)

SRIE 518 (Ma£3.1)

RN EBERFRIGHEENILE
&8 (fat 18)

SN IR B EE A IR B UGS

Hitp

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTT
1,589 6,220
48,856 77,115
55,633 83,607
(5,972) -
9,806 -
109,912 166,942
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

8. EXPENSES BY NATURE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—ZT—

8. BMEED

SHMBRRME(E)

Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work-in-progress
Raw materials and consumables used*
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9)*
Depreciation
— property, plant and equipment
(Note 14)*
— right-of-use assets (Note 15)
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 16)
Transportation expenses
Utilities purchased
Travelling and office expenses
Provision for inventory write-down
(Note 20)
Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Land use tax, real estate tax and other
taxes
Advertisement fees
Others

Total cost of sales, selling and marketing

expenses, administrative expenses and

other operating expenses

HRmEERMNTFEZE)

B R R R R
BERNFAS (Hit9)*
e
—M%E - BELREHE14)"
—[EREEE (Wi 15)
BIVEESE (HE16)

BRI

FEEAE
ERBWAEHZ

5 VMR B s (A7 32.20)

BB B &
— IR
—IFE LR
THfERE  BERMEMRIA

EEE
Hity

HERKA - HERTISHEREM
TTERFI ST R B 4R 2 B ST #B AT

HYBE 32

—FtZA=t—RIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
(49,107) (557,953)
16,048,025 12,735,248
1,121,013 1,065,034
1,218,002 1,227,906
19,752 18,895
7,103 6,214
1,008,583 1,027,861
80,814 69,050
28,809 26,517
33,267 35,849
4,255 4,006
2,793 1,000
149,330 124,243
13,492 12,506
319,880 301,189
20,006,011 16,097,565

The Group incurred expenses amounting to a total of approximately
RMB386,959,000 and RMB324,693,000 related to research and
development of new products, and development of new manufacturing
techniques, etc. for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
respectively. All of these expenses are charged to “Administrative expenses”,
and mainly comprise material costs in “Raw materials and consumables
used”, remuneration paid to certain staff in “Employee benefit expenses”
and depreciation of certain equipment in “Depreciation”.

BE-_T-_—FR-ZZF-_FF+A=+—
HIEFE AEEEENRAZBEONARAR

¥ 386,959,000 7T & A B #5 324,693,000 7T -

BRAERMERNYERMAES - A

ZERXBTRAX MR TEGFEIER

R RN | RO R - [R BRRAFIX
XN ETEINMERIFEIRETR

BEOIE -
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SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

—=—

=

F+-_A=t+—HLEFE

9. EERAAX (BEEEME)

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments)

— Wages, salaries and allowance

— Pension costs — defined contribution

ETIRA(BRESEMHE)

—TE& - HaLoRE
—RRE A —ERBER

plans (a) HEG)
— Share options granted to directors and  — 1% ¥ & = & (& 8 #) B8 IS4
employees (Note 25) (Kiat25)

2021 2020
—B-—F —EEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
1,056,144 1,005,703
67,268 61,200
(2,399) (1,869)
1,121,013 1,065,034

(@) Pension costs - defined contribution plans

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC participated in defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organized by the relevant provincial
governments under which the Group was required to make
monthly contributions to these plans at the percentages
of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages, subject to
certain ceilings. The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Hong Kong participate in MPF scheme as
disclosed in Note 2.20.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no forfeited
contributions were utilised by the Group to reduce its
contributions for the current year (2020: nil).

(a)

RS R —EHERETE

N SET) NSl AV g = PN = o)
E2EMABEABFAENERH
FORARBAE S RIBZETE > K
SHEZEEBRAFERTIENRA
DhRZEEERE MK A
B—TER) R o tAMTEE 2. 20 FTHEER -
REBREBRILNKHERFOE
BE2mBRESHE -

S A

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—H1
FE AEETELQWEZTAR
MBEERTFENHRR(ZEZF
FofE) o
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—T——%+—-A=+—HI-FE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9. EERAMXX(BREEMS)
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (%)
(Continueq)
(b) Five highest paid individuals b) EBBEHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in HE_Z-—F+-A=+—H1
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 included FE AEHE ﬂfé =g AT EE
three directors (2020: two) whose emoluments are reflected —RER(ZZE_ZTF mB) ®
in the analysis shown in Note 36. The emoluments payable ZHME 2 RHIFEI6 25 M AT
to the remaining two (2020: three) individuals during the R e REABENTEHME (=
year are as follows: ToRF =F) ATHBemT
2021 2020
—B=—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR
Salaries and allowances B KoERE 4,667
Pension costs — defined contribution RIRERA— ERBH-RETE
plans 144 61
Share options granted T BB R 311 1,071
4,959 5,799
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, none BHE-Z-—FR-ZFT-_FTHF+=
of the directors or the five highest paid individuals received A=+—BLFE HMEESExA
discretionary bonuses and no emoluments were paid by Ao AT WENERBIEL - AN&E
the Group to them as inducement to join or upon joining MERFEELNEAME - 1EA
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. DA BKTE AN A AN £ [ B A 22 D sk 1
The remunerations paid to the above non-director REBEZZE-_—FR_ZFZTHF
individuals for the years ended 31 December 2021 and +ZA=+—B8LtFE" ﬁJ:LéllE
2020 fell within the following bands: BEFEALTXNOFEMAIE S BIAT
#HA e
Number of individuals
AE
2020
—E-EF
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) AR R (LA TTAIR)
HKD1,000,001 - HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 /& 71,500,000 % 7T - 1
HKD1,500,001 — HKD2,000,000 1,600,001 7% 7T 2,000,000 7 7T - 1
HKD2,000,001 — HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T.~2,500,000 7 7T 1 -
HKD3,500,001 — HKD4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T 4,000,000 7 T 1 1
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SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ=-T-—F+-A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Finance income:

Interest income on bank deposits and
bank balances

Net foreign exchange gains on financing
activities (Note 3.7)

Finance costs:

Interest expenses

— Bank borrowings

— USD bonds

— Other payables

Interest charges paid for lease liabilities
(Note 15)

Net finance costs

BIEWA
RITIF R RARITAERHO R B UA

BB A B IE M W as F R (A6 3.1)

B

FERX

—RITIEE

—ELEH

—H AN FRIB

HAEaEEENFERAY
(K1:£15)

BAFS R AN R

10. B # UL A R R AR
2021 2020
=B —F —EETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
36,271 43,648
82,276 145,937
118,547 189,585
(99,735) (85,633)
(69,440) (117,068)
(3,487) (3,313)
(50) @4)
(172,712) (206,058)
(54,165) (16,473)
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE -T2 -—F+-A=+—HILFE

11. TAXATION 11. H 18
(@) Income tax expense (a) FTEHRiMAx

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T

Current income tax RIEG AT 127
- PRCEIT — Bl EEFTIE T 229,559 131,289
- US income tax —EBAMER - 162
Total current income tax BIERFRIS Tl 4B 58 229,559 131,451
Deferred income tax (Note 29) EIEFTSR (B 3229) 5,775 9,285

235,334 140,736

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands and is exempted from
payment of the Cayman Islands income tax.

The Group’s subsidiaries in BVI are exempted from
payment of the BVI income tax.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to
income tax at a rate of 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) on assessable
profits up to HKD2,000,000.00; and 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)
on any part of assessable profits over HKD2,000,000.00
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group’s subsidiary in Singapore is subject to income
tax at a rate of 17% (2020: 17%) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the United States is subject
to state income tax at a rate of approximately 8.84% and
9.5% (2020: 8.84% and 9.5%) and federal income tax at a
rate of approximately 21% (2020: 21%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2021.

ARARABRBEFRERE QAKX
(—AR—FEP= - B A RIERT)
Eﬁiﬁ%%ﬂﬂﬁkiﬁﬁ%%’ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ

D) WERRHRFASEEEH

AEBENRBREZESHHER A
EHRPRRBELEBIEN -

HE-_Z-_—F+-_HA=+—H1t
FE ALENESHNBRRZEARM
& % 2,000,000.00 78 7T K JE 5 %1 )i
F1%E8.25% (ZE T F : 8.25%)
AT 1S B - i i #8 2,000,000.00
VB TT R E SR i I 89 R fr] 5B 0 Bl 3%
16.5% (ZZE ZFF : 16.5% ) B
Frig®i o

HE-Z-—F+=-A=+—HL
FE - AEENFMEHERRE
EMEATR(ZTE_ZF 1 17%) &
MFT1STR -

HE-ZT-—F+=ZA=+—HL
FE ALEENEBRMNEBARAER
i 5T B SR B i ) 1% B 2 49.8.84% 0l
95% (=T - T4 : 8.84%F9.5%)
BN SRR EL21% (=
ToTF  21%) BUREB IS TSR
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - - —F+-A=+—HILFE

11. TAXATION (Continueq)

(a)

Income tax expense (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC EIT
which is calculated based on the applicable tax rate of 25%
(2020: 25%) on the assessable profits of the subsidiaries in
accordance with PRC tax laws and regulations except for
those as discussed below:

Seven subsidiaries of the Group including Hulunbeir
Fufeng, Shandong Fufeng, Shenhua Pharmaceutical, Baoji
Fufeng, IM Fufeng, Xinjiang Fufeng and Longjiang Fufeng
have obtained the approvals to become a new and high-
technology enterprise and are entitled to a preferential
income tax rate of 15% (2020: 15%). The qualification of
new and high-technology enterprise is subject to renewal
for each three years interval.

According to the Ministry of Finance Announcement No.
23, 2020, “The notice on extending enterprise income
tax policies of the western region development strategy
issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration
of Taxation and the National Development and Reform
Commission” (81 B 2F A & 2020 4 55 23 5% “ Bf B3P »
MEeR BERERNFZENTEEABARAELE
Fr 5 71 B 28 #9 A 25 ) taking effect from 1 January 2021,
companies set up in the western region and falling into
certain encouraged industry catalogue promulgated by the
PRC government will be entitled to a preferential tax rate
of 15%. Four subsidiaries of the Group including Hulunbeir
Fufeng, Baoji Fufeng, IM Fufeng and Xinjiang Fufeng, are
set up in the western development region and fall into the
encouraged industry catalogue, and therefore they are
entitled to the aforesaid preferential tax rate of 15% (2020:
15%).

1. BLE (@)
(a) PRAEBEX @)

A5 B R B B A B B R
EEH - ZHEREPEBEBE
ERIRCERIEN B AR ERR G
MAE B E25% (Z BT F -
25%) 518 - TXATET B BRAIN

AEENLENBARTRERE
R BE  hEEE CBHER
CARHRE HEEZRET
LREEKRASTEMGE  X=F
BE15% (ZEZFF 1 15%) MER
FIiSTHE S BEITcXEREAES
[R=FFIUNELE -

HE NE

RIBE R HEERRERER
WNELZHMAEBHE T -_—F—A
—BREETHMRBRAE_E=-F
FERHIBARATEEAITAFAED
EFBMEENAS]  REEH
R AR 7 B AR B T B R By | T 8
BEEXESNRARBEEREZE
15%BEME - AEEKHHRH B
AR AN GEREY BHEBL .
RNEEBELERHEE ZRIIER %
B WERESEEITEE 8
EREZA L 15%EERR (ZF
TEE 1 15%) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—T=-—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

11. TAXATION (Continueq) 11. B IE (@)
(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense (b) FIEHEXENSENAHEN
to prima facie tax payable HEHER
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBEF T
Profit before income tax expense B B 15 1 6 S2 Bl s A 1,515,974 770,637
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates B & AR R )R N #E A &)
applicable to profits in the respective NIRRT BRI TIE
jurisdictions 416,564 227,104
Preferential tax of certain subsidiaries ETHBERARNESERIE (160,613) (109,854)
Research and development tax credit MEHIBBE R (28,017) (33,645)
Unrecognised tax losses KRR IEE R 710 22,335
Withholding tax on dividends from PRC ~ #F B /& A AIR% B A0 TB
subsidiaries n 37,700 34,000
Previously unrecognised tax losses FERARERNIEFERB®
now recouped to reduce current tax LA A BV EARR TB A 2
expense (32,375) -
Expenses not deductible for tax Bk
purposes 1,593 944
Income not subject to tax BARTHA (228) (148)

235,334 140,736
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—T——%+—-A=+—HI-FE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to the shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year
excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company.

12. BREF

(@) BREXER

BRERE N Ty BR B 158 MR
AEFERD #ETEBRINEF 8
(TERARBAERNEBER)

2021
—E_—fF

RMB cents
AR S

Total basic earnings per share attributable % 5 & 1k 5 A% B 7K 22 K1) 48 58

to the shareholders

50.55

2020
ZETF
RMB cents
AR®ES

24.86

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

e  the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(b) BRBERF

SREERNEANEESRER
BN BIRETTHE - AET R

o HEAMHMNELEENARM
ﬂ%&ﬁi\ﬁﬂmﬂéﬁi$ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁﬁ
BHREREE -

. fE WA B EEEENE

BERRAG AT
F) N 19 85 o

2021
—E-—fF

RMB cents
AR¥SD

Total diluted earnings per share IR FEAE T R B R N A5

attributable to the shareholders

50.55

RSN R AR

2020
—T—EF

—= =

RMB cents
ARES

24.86
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—T=-—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12. 8RB R &)
(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating (c) ARTTESREANMARFZ
earnings per share iR
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBTIT
Basic earnings per share FIRE R E T
Profit attributable to the shareholders ESREARFFAZRKRE
used in calculating basic earnings FE(R & T
per share 1,280,640 629,901
Diluted earnings per share FIREEE T

Profit attributable to the shareholders STEEREERAMA KRR
used in calculating diluted earnings per & 1& ) 7
share 1,280,640 629,901

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the (d) AEIBHNRG MEFHEH
denominator

2020
—T_EF
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt EERERBNERED
shares used as the denominator in A E BN T8 (FA%)
calculating basic earnings per share
(thousands) 2,533,639 2,533,639

Adjustments for calculation of diluted RERESRNFEEDHAE
earnings per share:
— Assumed exercise of share options —BRERITEEARE (TR
(thousands shares) 12 -

Weighted average number of ordinary RETEGREE BN ERED
shares and potential ordinary shares CORERER P YRR il
used as the denominator in calculating ~ #F¥8 (T%)
diluted earnings per share (thousands) 2,533,651 2,533,639
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE - —

—FtZA=t—RALFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(e)

Information concerning the classification of
securities

The Company has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares: share options. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares
that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average annual market share price of the Company’s
shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number
of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options.

The 2,300,000 outstanding share options issued in
November 2016 and December 2016 (2020: 8,600,000
outstanding share options issued in November 2016,
December 2016 and August 2017) are not included in
the calculation of diluted earnings per share because the
average market price of ordinary shares for the year ended
31 December 2021 did not exceed the exercise prices of
each tranche of the share options, hence the share options
are antidilutive for the year ended 31 December 2021.
These options could potentially dilute basic earnings per
share in the future.

12. FRER @)

(e)

FHESZIENER

ARAE—REBCEEEEER B
Petg o LBBREMS RIS #1T
B s e TP 328 ﬁ%%ﬁ‘]i??ﬁg{ﬁ@uﬂi :
AHEE AR BN FE (RA
’Aﬂﬁifﬁﬁ’ﬂiﬁﬁ&m%ﬁif’iﬁﬁm)

ESHRinEE - EXETERNBRD
818 A5 R AR 1T B B I JR B 2
TTE RN 8 B ELLER -

HREE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—
HIEFEERERHTHMmEL KB
BEMRERENITERE SR
E—RF+—ARZE—RF+=
F%17#92,300,000 17 8 AT F AR
B(CE_ZEF: _T—RF+—
A ZE2—XRF+ZAK=ZZ—+
F N\ A #17#98,600,00017 1 K 17
HERE) R EEREE R
AAEERN AtBEREREZEZ
T+ A=+—HLFEA
ERESENE -2 EEREBERR]
SEEREREZF -

HEEI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

13a. fff /B X 7

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had direct and indirect i

Sz

fm -

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity
it 2R
EABRER 2R A

Paid-up capital

—T-—%+-A=+—0 KA
RAT2EME LA A EEREER

— =

Principal activities &
place of operation

FTERBRERME

Directly held:
HEERH:

Acquest Honour

Acquest Honour

Shenhua Health Holdings Limited

TR R AR A A

Indirectly held:
AR

Summit Challenge

Summit Challenge

Absolute Divine

Absolute Divine

Expand Base

Expand Base

Profit Champion International Ltd.

LB AR QA

BV, limited liability usb2
company

RERUHS 2%ETT
BREMERT]

Cayman Islands, uUSD1
limited liability
company

REHE" 1E7T
BREMERA]

BVI, limited liability USD1
company

HERUHS 1E7T
BREAAT

BV, limited liability USD1
company

REBRUHS 1E7T
BREMELA]

BV, limited liability USD1
company

HBRUHE =
BEREMERA

Hong Kong, limited HKD2
liability company

B 2B

BEREERA

Investment holding in BVI

REBREZESNREER

Investment holding in Cayman Islands

RASEHENREER

Investment holding in BVI

RAEBELEENREER

Investment holding in BVI

REBELEENREE

Investment holding in BVI

REBREZEHSNREER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBNREER
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SHMBRRMEE(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

13a. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

13a. M B A E (&)

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity
o i ith 26 %
EAERER

Paid-up capital

EHRA

Principal activities &
place of operation

FTEXRBRERME

Full Profit Investment (Group) Ltd.

LARE (RE)BRAR

Trans-Asia

R

Fufeng International Trade
(Hong Kong) Limited
BEERES (FR)ARRAA

Shandong Fufeng

WiReE

Baoji Fufeng

pi
e
1
fiE

Hong Kong, limited HKD2
liability company

o 2B
BEREERA

Hong Kong, limited HKD2
liability company

B 2B
BREERAR]

Hong Kong, limited HKD2
liability company

R 2B
BREMFAT

PRC, limited liability RMB370,500,000
company

e A # 370,500,000 7T
BREERT]

PRC, limited liability HKD250,000,000
company

- 250,000,000 % 7T

BEREMERQA

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBNREEZER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBNREZER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBNREER

Manufacture and sales of glutamic acid,
monosodium glutamate, corn refined
products, xanthan gum, fertilisers,
starch sweetener and other related
products in the PRC

ERBEEERHEADR KE
KIBRER BRE R RY
FH ORI N2 HAth 48 B 2

Manufacture and sales of glutamic acid,
monosodium glutamate, corn refined
products, fertilisers and other related
products in the PRC

EHESEREEARE K5 E
RIBREM - R REMEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

13a. i B A B (&)

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity
k11 3t B R
EAERER

Paid-up capital

EHRA

Principal activities &
place of operation

FTEXRBRERME

IM Fufeng

ARLES

bl

Shandong Fufeng Biotechnology
Development Company Limited

WRESEMHKAZERAT

Shenhua Pharmaceutical

Beijing Huijinhuaying Commercial

Co., Ltd.
ItRESEREERRAR

Hulunbeir Fufeng

TREAMEY

PRC, limited liability
company

HKD640,000,000

R
BREMERQA

640,000,000% 7T

PRC, limited liability
company

RMB5,500,000

R
BEREMERQA

AR ¥ 5,500,000 7T

PRC, limited liability
company

RMB122,000,000

R
BREMERAA

AR # 122,000,000 7T

PRC, limited liability RMB21,000,000
company
e

BEREERQA

AR #21,000,0007C

PRC, limited liability RMB1,000,000,000

company
- AR
EREMERAF 1,000,000,000 7T

Manufacture and sales of glutamic acid,
monosodium glutamate, corn refined
products, xanthan gum, fertilisers,
starch sweeteners and other related
products, autoclaved aerated
concrete block in the PRC

EHBESGERHEARR KB X
KiEREmR - ®RE - X R
KB R A BEER - RE L E

Biological techniques research and
development, promotion and
industrialisation of new biological
techniques and achievements,
information services of biological
technique in the PRC

FER BT R R Al - EER
EEM R AR A E T EA - A
KA BEY RN E SR

Manufacture and sales of eubacteria
material medicine, preparations and
food additives and other related
products in the PRC

EHBESERHEERAEY - 5
KB R DN A K E 4t 46 A EE

Own and operate self-used office
building
BRERKEEANMOKE

Manufacture and sales of starch,
starch sweeteners, amino acids,
monosodium glutamate, glutamic
acid, fertilisers and other related
products in the PRC

TER B BE RS ERED  RADFRA -
[ER KB A2 BHEE
i 48 B E
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SHMBRRMEE(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

13a. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

13a. i B A B (&)

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity
k11 3t B R
EAERER

Paid-up capital

EHRA

Principal activities &
place of operation

FTEXRBRERME

Fufeng Singapore

Fufeng Singapore

Jiangsu Fufeng Biotechnologies
Co., Ltd.

TEHELZEYMMBRBRDA

Hulunbeir Shengmin Agricultural
Development Co., Ltd.

FRERMRRERME
BREMELA]

Xinjiang Fufeng

MERE

Shenhua Pharmaceutical (Jiangsu)
Co., Ltd.

IR (1) BR QA

Fufeng Marketing and Sales
Co., Ltd.
SEEERAA

Singapore, limited
liability company

SGD1,300,000

ne
BREMERA

1,300,000 7 13 7T

PRC, limited liability
company

RMB5,000,000

A
BREMERAA

A E# 5,000,000 7T

PRC, limited liability RMB10,000,000
company

hE
BREMERA

A E# 10,000,000 7T

PRC, limited liability RMB500,000,000

company

R
BREMERAA

A # 500,000,000 7T

PRC, limited liability
company

RMB10,000,000

R
BEREMERA

AR #10,000,0007T

PRC, limited liability RMB220,000,000
company

-
BREEAF

AR # 220,000,000 7T

Sales of monosodium glutamate
and other related products in the
Southeast Asia.

ERATHERBREMERER

Biological techniques research and
development, promotion and
industrialisation of new biological
techniques and achievements,
information services of biological
technique. Sales of xanthan gum,
amino acids and starch sweeteners in
the PRC

MR FEEYRM - EREDR
MRERITEETENL  UREH
EYEMHESRE - EPEIEE
BRE - QUEB IR EHIRA

Does not carry out any business
activities currently

BRI ERREMELE LD

Manufacture and sales of amino acids,
xanthan gum and other related
products in the PRC

EHEREREERER BERER
Hfth 48 2 2

Manufacture and sales of fungal material
medicine, preparations and food
additives and other related products
in the PRC

R EEERIHERREM I EY - 3
B K R dio7s N DA B B At 48 R 2 o

Sales of monosodium glutamate and
other related products in the PRC
FE o B 34 55 TR B H A AR B E



13a. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

BEEARAR | F£# 2021 145

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Place of

incorporation and

kind of legal entity
k11 3t B R
EAERER

13a. i B A B (&)

Paid-up capital

EHRA

Principal activities &
place of operation

FTEXRBRERME

Fufeng (Hong Kong) Import and
Export Co., Ltd.
2 (HB)EHOBRAF
Full Health Global Limited

Full Health Global Limited

Full Health (Hong Kong) Limited

Fm (&) BRQA

First Biotech Inc.

First Biotech Inc.

Qingdao Yuemei Cosmetics
Co., Ltd.
BEEMELR L HMERAF

Longjiang Fufeng

EIRE

Jiangsu Fufeng Import and Export
Co., Ltd.
AHBEEHOBRAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
BEREERA

BVI, limited liability
company

HREBRAHS
BREERAF

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
BREMERA]

US, limited liability
company

EH -
BREMEAT

PRC, limited liability
company

HE
BREEAT

PRC, limited liability
company

R
BEREMERQA

PRC, limited liability
company

HE
BREMFAT

HKD2

2787

UsD100

100 7T

HKD100

100787

USD100,000

100,000 7T

RMB15,843,000

AR #15,843,000 7T

RMB1,300,000,000

AR
1,300,000,000 7T

RMBO

AR®OTT

Sales of monosodium glutamate and
other related products abroad

ERIMEERE R EMARER

Investment holding in BVI

REBRZBESNREER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBNEEER

Sales of biological products in the US

EXBHEEEMEM

Sales of cosmetic products in the PRC

EHRBEHEE R

Manufacture and sales of threonine,
lysine, starch sweeteners, amino
acids and other related products in
the PRC

EHBEAERHEHAE  Bak -
TRADEHORA - AR R H b E
E

Sales of health food and other related
products abroad

AN E R 2 f & B A AR B
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SHMBRRMEE(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

13a. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of

incorporation and

kind of legal entity
k11 3t B R
EAERER

13a. i B A B (&)

Paid-up capital

EHRA

Principal activities &
place of operation

FTEXRBRERME

Qingdao Wanchuang International
Trading Co., Ltd.
FEEBERKERRAR

Qigihar Lifeng Logistics Co., Ltd.

BER

]
%]

g

MEMRBRAR

Golden Fufeng Fertilizer Co., Ltd.
SEREEIEXARAF
Neimenggu Bio-fermentation

Green Manufacturing Technology
Institute Co., Ltd.

PRC, limited liability
company

R
BREEAT

PRC, limited liability
company

-
BREERAF

PRC, limited liability
company

HE
EREMERAT]

PRC, limited liability
company

S BB B BB R -

FeBR AR

Inner Mongolia Wofeng Agriculture
Development Co., Ltd.
NELAEREERERAA

Qigihar Hefeng Investment Center
(Limited partnership)

EERBMEEREDD
(BRER)

Inner Mongolia Xiangfeng chemical
Co., Ltd.
AELEHEEIERLA

Linyi Junyuan International Trade
Co., Ltd.
BrEeERESAERAG

BEREERA

PRC, limited liability
company

P
BREMEAT]

PRC, limited liability
company

HE
BREAAT

PRC, limited liability
company

-
EREMERQF]

PRC, limited liability
company

R
BREERAT

RMBO

AR®OT

RMB5,000,000

A #5,000,0007T

RMBO

ARMOTT

RMBO

AR®OTT

RMB40,000,000

AR ¥ 40,000,0007T

RMB300,000,000

AR # 300,000,000 7T

RMB100,000,000

A% 100,000,000 7T

RMB500,000

AR 500,000 7T

Sales of monosodium glutamate and
other related products abroad

A8 5 5 & TR S K H At AR B E

Provide logistics service

REDR RS

Does not carry out any business
activities currently

B A1 B R A X155 2

Does not carry out any business
activities currently

B A1 B RAE (A X155 2

Sales of fertilisers and other related
products in the PRC
T B 8 AR e Eo A AR BB EE

Practice investment in corn intensive
processing projects
EERFRMIBEHETERIRE

Sales of synthetic ammonia in the PRC

ERBEHEAKRA

Sales of monosodium glutamate in the
PRC
e B 35 E IR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

13a. M B A E (&)

Place of
incorporation and Principal activities &
kind of legal entity Paid-up capital place of operation
EREE Y5
EABRER EHREA FEXBREXME
Fufeng USA Holdings Hong Kong, limited HKD2  Investment holding in Hong Kong
liability company
Fufeng USA Holdings HE 2T MEEHIREER
BEREERA
Fufeng USA US, limited liability USD100,000 Sales of biological products in the US
company
Fufeng USA EH - 100,000% 7T EXEBEEEEMERD
BREERAF
Hulunbeier Northeast Fufeng PRC, limited liability RMBO Does not carry out any business
Biotechnologies Co., Ltd. company activities currently
Dongfeng Branch
M im BRI EE YRR hE - ARMOT BRIYEFREMEELZD
ERARIRE D AR BREERT
Qingdao Hongfeng International PRC, limited liability RMB10,000,000 Does not carry out any business
Trade Co., Ltd. () company activities currently
EEREEKREFHNA () R AER#¥10,000,0007C B Al 8 R AL EHEE
BREERAT
(@ Qingdao Hongfeng International Trade Co., Ltd. was @ FEREHEKREFIAAR_ZT_—
established on 28 July 2021, with a registered capital of FEAZ+NBKL FEELRE
RMB10,000,000. It is wholly-owned by IM Fufeng. AR #10,000,0007C c EHAR &
BELERE -
13b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 13b. AR ZARNRERE
THE EQUITY METHOD
The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are REHEEEBRPHEANSHENT -
as follows:
At 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—B=—-F —EFTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Associates i R/N] 9,090 18,818
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SHMBRERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

13b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 130, SRAESEEARNRE )
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement REFFBERBERNSELOT :

are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—BHLEE

2021 2020

—B=-—F —T-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARBTT

Associates NG (10,218) (9,369)

Investment in associates REBEQATNRKRE

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 TXE#HIINAEEBER—_ZT=Z—F+=A

December 2021. —t+t—HMBERE -

Place of % of
business/country ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity of incorporation interest relationship method
E 314 BEEREER
ERER = 1 BX 32 B =R Bok BEMEE sTEHE
Jilin COFCO PRC 30 Note 1 Equity
HRFE S 30  HaEt s
Ruixin (a) PRC 49 Note 2 Equity
Iw1E (a) H 49  Kiit2 M
Note 1 Jilin COFCO manufactures products and provides services relating to bio- M1 EMRRREEMESRERRIEH-IEHA
based plastics. It is a strategic business partner for the Group, providing Rs - EAASEBZEAATSRETERN
access to the market of new products. The associate has paid-in capital B EBRA ZBMERANEARAAA
of RMB100,000,000, of which 30% are held by the Group. R # 100,000,000 7T LA AL EFFH 30% °
Note 2 Ruixin provides services relating agricultural professional and ancillary Witz InfsiREREEBERHIEBE@ORS
activities. The associate has paid-in capital of RMB1,000,000, of which ZHE N R EHE AR/ AR 1,000,000 7T -
49% are held by the Group. HEARAREERFE 49% -

(@ During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group @ BE2—ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H
acquired 49% equity holdings of Ruixin at a cash LEFE AEENBESHEBEARK
consideration of RMB490,000. 490,000 7T U & I 15 ) 49% AR HE ©

The associates are private companies and there is no ZEBE RN BLARGE DI E

quoted market price available for their shares. There are no AAMSME - BEELAEEREERQ

commitments or contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s AN AR BN ABE -

interest in the associates.
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SHMBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

13b.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 13b. BRAEREEARNRE 2
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
Summarised financial information of associates BENRNMBEERBE
Jilin COFCO HMRE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for Jilin TRV EMFRRZZEZ—FR=F
COFCO as at and for the years ended 31 December 2021 and CTEF+ A=+ —HEREEZALT
2020 which is accounted for using the equity method. ERHEAESZEARNMEERBE -
Jilin COFCO
EMFE
2021 2020
—B=-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFT
Total assets BEME 335,936 376,978
Total liabilities BEAR 307,617 314,253
Net assets BEFE 28,319 62,725
Revenue & 161,605 83,456
Net loss and total comprehensive loss EEFEMEABIERE (34,569) (31,231)
Ruixin 1=
Set out below are the summarised financial information for TREINHBER = —F+= A
Ruixin as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021 which is T+ ARBEZBLEFEMNHEAES
accounted for using the equity method. EANERN B ERE -
Ruixin
Wi
2021
—E-——F
RMB’000
AR TR
Total assets EELE 12,256
Total liabilities BEHER 10,943
Net assets BEFE 1,313
Revenue W #5 11,895

Net profit and total comprehensive income FRE R E WS EEE 313




150 FUFENG GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBEEERME(F

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HAIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% - BERRHE

2021
—E--F
Plant and Furniture and Construction

building Machinery fixtures Vehicles in progress Total
HERKE HE GARZEE RE ERIR b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR AR%Trn AR®TR ARET:R

Cost s
At 1 January 2021 W-E--%-R—-H 5,153,990 12,309,818 310,393 101,845 235,475 18,111,521
Additions RE 3,008 81,762 39,402 4,061 673,584 801,907
Transfer upon completion R R 51,749 321,364 - - (873,113) -
Transfer toright-of-use assets ~ BB EFRELE
(Note 15) (st 18) - - - - (45,475) (45,475)

Disposals HE (140) (8,327) (1,536) (1,005) - (11,008)
At 31 December 2021 S S

=1+-H 5,208,697 12,704,617 348,259 104,901 490,471 18,856,945
Accumulated depreciation 2EE
At 1 January 2021 WZE--F-f—-H (1,634,607) (6,332,830) (198,148) (68,300) - (8,233,385)
Charge for the year (\ote §) EREZ (Hits) (221,447) (963,562) (22,383) (10,610) - (1,218,002
Disposals HE 65 6,362 1,382 821 - 8,630
At 31 December 2021 R-F-—F

+-A=+-A (1,855989)  (7,200030)  (219,149) (78,089) - (0,443257)

Provision for impairment loss HEBEEE

At 1 January 2021 and RZZ-_-%-A-H
31 December 2021 RZ2=-F
+-A=1+-H (40,495) (87,428) (194) (704) - (128,821)
Net book value FEFE
At 31 December 2021 i

+ZA=+-A 3,312,213 5,327,159 128,916 26,108 490,471 9,284,867
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)
MG ERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—ZT—

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 9%  BERKRE#)

—F+=A=t+—AILFE

(Continued)
2020
—TCZF
Plant and Furniture and Construction in
buiding Machinery fixtures Vehicles progress Total
BERAE BE  RALREE HE rEIR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREFTr  ARBTT AREFr AREFR ARETR
Cost KA
At 1 January 2020 W-Z-ZF—F-H 480210 11628360 255,746 96,384 847930 17,649,130
Additions NE 15,545 81,408 57,931 7,108 373,520 535,512
Transfer upon completion REREER 327,891 651,002 - - (978,893) -
Transfer toright-of-use assets BB EFREAE
(Note 15) (Hit15) - - - - (7,082) (7,082)
Disposals HE (9,656) (50,952) (3.284) (2,147) - (66,039)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZF
+-B=1+-8B 5153990 12,309,818 310,393 101,845 235475 18,111,521
Accumulated depreciation 2EE
At 1 January 2020 W-Z-BF-F-8 (1419792  (5380,731) (181,399) (58,827) - (7,040,749)
Charge for the year (Note §) EREZ (HiHs) (218,334) (979,643 (19,334) (10,595) - (1,227,908)
Disposals HE 3,519 27 544 2,585 1122 - 34,770
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZF
+-R=1+-8 (1634,607)  (6,332,830) (198,148) (68,300) - (8233885
Provision for impairment loss REEERE
At 1 January 2020 RZE-Z#-f—H (43,320) (105,484) (1,075) (1,234) - (151,113)
Disposals HE 2,825 18,056 881 530 - 22,292
At 31 December 2020 i
+-R=1+-8 (40,495) (87,428) (194) (704) - (128,821)
Net book value ERTE
At 31 December 2020 RZEZ%F
+-A=1+-8 3,478,888 5,889,560 112,051 32,841 235,475 0,748,815
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ=-T-—F+-A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% - BERSKHE®)
(Continued)
(@ As at 31 December 2021, no plant and machinery was @ RZBE-—F+-A=+—H 1
pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings (2020: ni). ERREARE MR EBIEAEAS

EENERR(ZT_TF &) -

(b) Depreciation expense included in the consolidated income () EFTAGHFEEROITERIOT -
statement is as follows:

2021 2020

—B-—F —EEHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBFT

Cost of sales FHE KA 1,047,071 1,068,115

Administrative expenses T 170,931 159,791
1,218,002 1,227,906

() As at 31 December 2021, plant and buildings of the Group © RZFEZ—F+ZA=+—8"
with a total net book value of RMB188,125,000 were AREBE@BMFELBBEARE
without real estate titles and the Group is in the process 188,125,000 (ZZE=—FF : AR
to secure the relevant real estate certificates (2020: #171,852,000 7T) B i 5 I RAE 0
RMB171,852,000). BREERMER MAKBEEFED

FERAEEEREFE EEE -



15. LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(i)

BEEKEARALR | F3H 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)
MG ERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T -—F+-A=+—HIFE

Amounts recognised in the consolidated

balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to

leases:

15. &

fMASEBERAEA - BIAHEREER

BB R -

() BRAREHEERERNEHE

BEEARBRERATEEHERHEN

Right-of-use assets

Leasehold land-use rights (a)

Buildings
Equipment

Lease liabilities
Current
Non-current

EREEE
HE+EREE
BF

&

HESE
ik
k)

58
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTT
792,799 766,230
1,935 495
27 53
794,761 766,778
774 390
1,203 29
1,977 419

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2021 were RMB47,735,000 (2020:

RMB7,082,000).

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—H1
FENERAREEABERARE
4773500070 (ZE-ZF : AR

7,082,000 7) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ—ZF—

—FtZA=t—RALFE

15. LEASES (continueq)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet (Continued)

(i)

(@)

Leasehold land-use rights

Leasehold land-use rights represent prepaid operating
lease payments for the leasehold land (with lease
terms of 40 to 70 years) located in Shandong
Province, Shaanxi Province, Heilongjiang Province,
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region, Jiangsu Province and Beijing
in the PRC. Their net book values are analysed as
follows:

15.#HE #)
BINSHEEEERNSE

(i)

(%)
@

HE B

TAE L E AR AEE
REPBRILERE  PEAE - 25
T4 NEHBERE FBs
EHERE IEHEE MEREE
FE i (AEA40ET04F)
Friaft M &M EsRE - HiR
mFEITET :

2021 2020
—E-—&F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
Cost R
At beginning of the year F9) 879,366 872,284
Transfer from property, plantand B #% » B Lk EE%
equipment (Note 14) (H1:2 14) 45,475 7,082
At end of the year FR 924,841 879,366
Depreciation e
At beginning of the year F4 (113,136) (95,143)
Charge for the year (i) FRNF () (18,906) (17,993)
At end of the year FR (132,042) (113,136)
Net book value BREEE
At end of the year FR 792,799 766,230
As at 31 December 2021, there was no leasehold RZZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H"
land pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings AEEWEEBHEE L WIES

(2020: ni).

Depreciation expense is recorded in “Administrative
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group was still in the
process of applying for the ownership certificates for
various parcels of leasehold land with a total carrying
amount of RMB108,837,000 (2020: RMB66,096,000).

ERERNERR(CE-F
FE) -

FERXRA GMBEERT AR
RITBRFAX]

R_E_—F+-A=+—H8"
AEBNRLARERESARE
108,837,0007C (= E = F 4 :
A R #66,096,0007T) #) % g
HELHEAFRAEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE=-ZT——

15. LEASES (Continueq)

(1)

(iii)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

SHMBRRME(E)

F+-A=+—HILFE

15. & (#)

(1)

BRARESHABRNESE

@%E-

2021 2020
—E-—F —TFF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR® T ARBTT
Depreciation charge of FHESERNEXE
right-of-use assets
Leasehold land-use rights TAE 1 (s A 18,906 17,993
Buildings BF 820 877
Equipment B 26 25
8 19,752 18,895
Interest expense (included in FERZ (BEFBA)
finance costs) 10 50 44
Expense relating to short-term B EEE AR
leases (included in administrative  (BR3&7TEBISZ)
expenses) 9,796 10,363
The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was ®n= ﬁi—ifﬂgfﬁﬁfﬁﬁ BB B
RMB10,498,000 (2020: RMB11,274,000). AER#10,498,000 T (ZF=—FF :
AR 11,274,0007T) °
The Group’s leasing activities and how these (i) AEEEETHRZEHEHEN
are accounted for i A BR
The Group leases various offices, warehouses and AEEHERZRHLAE BEERK
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed H-HEANBERE=-FM

periods of 1 to 3 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
pUrposes.

TEEAMR ©

MR REERELERER  EhE
mER R RIET - HE W
EAEMERLE - HEEETHF
FAYEE KA 5 o
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SHMBRRMEE(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1 January 2020
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Accumulated impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2020

Opening net book amount
Additions
Amortisation (Note 8)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2020

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Accumulated impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2021

Opening net book amount
Additions
Amortisation (Note 8)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2021
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Accumulated impairment

Net book amount

16. B EE

Computer

Patents software Total
= E L st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFIT ARETIT
R-ZB-EF
—A—H
X AR 20,672 51,659 72,331
REH S 677) (12,995) (13,672)
R2EHRE (17,996) - (17,996)
BRHEFEE 1,999 38,664 40,663
BE-E-EF
+=-—BA=+—H
IEFEE
FYIREFE 1,999 38,664 40,663
RNE 5,000 11,302 16,302
By (B iE8) (331) (5,883) (6,214)
FRIEEFE 6,668 44,083 50,751
R-ZB-ZEHF+=A
=+-—H
BN 25,672 62,961 88,633
Rt (1,008) (18,878) (19,886)
R2iHRE (17,996) - (17,996)
REFRE 6,668 44,083 50,751
BE-ZE-—F
+=BA=+—H
IEEE
FUREFE 6,668 44,083 50,751
RE 1,325 3,350 4,675
B (KaE8) (975) (6,128) (7,103)
FREMFE 7,018 41,305 48,323
R-ZB-—F
+=BA=+—H
BN 26,997 66,311 93,308
R (1,983) (25,006) (26,989)
Z2ERE (17,996) - (17,996)
BREFE 7,018 41,305 48,323
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T -—F+-A=+—HIFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS

The Group classifies the equity investments for which the entity
has not elected to recognise fair value gains and losses through
OCl at FVPL.

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the
following:

17. B ATV EHFABRENEHEE

AEEBERLEREEBEMEA K
ERATFERGERBBENRERE DR
RRN AR A B -

B A EF ARG ENERE
EBRRATEE:

2021 2020
—B-—F —EEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT

Non-current assets JEMENEEE
— Equity investment —RERE

5,000 2,000

Pursuant to an agreement dated during the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group subscribed 10% share capital of
a company at a consideration of RMB10,000,000. As at 31
December 2021, the Group has accumulatively contributed
capital of RMB5,000,000 (2020: RMB2,000,000). The company
is engaged in biological techniques research and development.

BRERSE-_TE_TF+_A=1+—H
IEFEATLINmE  NEEUEEA
R # 10,000,000 TR — K Q8 H10%
fgR - AT -_—F+_-_A=+—8"
AEBZFHE ARYS5,000,0007T (=
T 4 AR¥2000,0007T) ° %A A
WEEEITAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and
not as speculative investments. However, where derivatives do
not meet the hedging accounting criteria, they are accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss below. The Group has the
following derivative financial instruments:

4=

18. 7T

YE€mIA

TETEERRNEE LS A TAE
BREMERE - AR WOTETAETTE
Hrhgst R BERATRFERFA
Ba AR ARENITESRTANT

— Cross currency and

— Cross currency swaps (a)

Current liabilities nEaE

— Cross currency swaps () —RX B (a)
— Cross currency swaps (b) — R X B (b)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE

interest rate swaps (c)

—RXE¥EH ()

—XXEHE RN EHH (o)

2021 2020
—E-—F BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETIT
26,084 -

- 57,118

26,084 57,118
90,370 -

- 25,031

90,370 25,031

(a) USD38,000,000 Cross currency swaps in 2019

In 2019, the Company entered into cross currency swaps
contract which is non-hedging derivatives and maturing in
September 2022. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
derivative financial liabilities as recognised based on the fair
value of this cross currency swaps contract amounted to
RMB26,084,000 and RMB25,031,000, respectively. For
information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining the fair value of this derivative, please refer to
Note 3.3.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding cross
currency swaps contract at 31 December 2021 was
USD38,000,000 (2020: USD38,000,000) and an unrealised
loss of RMB1,053,000 (2020: an unrealised loss of
RMB18,151,000) was recognised in “Other losses — net”
(Note 7).

(a)

R-ZIE-—HIEXXEEEH
38,000,000 3= T

RZZE—NF XRFRFTURXE
Wi EA 4 ZEHNBIEHPITE
TE - WRZZEZZFHhHAEH-
RZEZ—FRZZF_FF+=H
—t+— B RBREZXIXNEEEHE
WA FERRNITESREBED
Rl & A R 26,084,000 7T & AR ¥
25,031,0007C - AN EFE %074
TERAFERRERANTERBR
ZER - F2HME33 .

R-EB-—F+-A=+—HB8 XK
EEXIXNEEEBRAONZELSD
4 %8 538,000,000k L (ZE - F
£ : 38,000,000 7T ) MoK &30 E5 18
AR #1,053,000 L (ZE T4 :

BI85 &8 A R# 18,151,000 7T)
RIEMmBL—F5E] (H:F7) P g

7
s ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE —Z —

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
(b) USD150,000,000 Cross currency swaps in 2020

(c)

In 2020, the Company entered into cross currency swaps
contract which is non-hedging derivatives and maturing
in August 2021. As at 31 December 2020, the derivative
financial liabilities as recognised based on the fair value
of this cross currency swaps contract amounted to
RMB57,118,000. The swaps was matured and settled at
a net loss of RMB14,315,000. For information about the
methods and assumptions used in determining the fair
value of this derivative, please refer to Note 3.3.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding
cross currency swaps contract at 31 December
2020 was USD150,000,000. As the cross currency
swaps contracts were matured in 2021, a net realised
gain of RMB42,803,000 (2020: an unrealised loss of
RMB57,118,000) was recognised in “Other losses — net”
(Note 7).

USD 200,000,000 Cross currency and interest
rate swaps in 2021

In 2021, the Company entered into new cross currency
and interest rate swaps contract which is non-hedging
derivatives and maturing in August 2024. As at 31
December 2021, the derivative financial liabilities as
recognised based on the fair value of this swaps contract
amounted to RMB90,370,000. For information about the
methods and assumptions used in determining the fair
value of this derivative, please refer to Note 3.3.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding cross
currency and interest rate swaps contract at 31 December
2021 was USD200,000,000 and a realised loss of
RMB7,013,000 and an unrealised loss of RMB90,370,000
was recognised in “Other losses — net” (Note 7).

4=

18. 7T

(b) R=ZF=F

(c)

SHMBRRME(E)

—F+-A=t—HILFE

$Ee®MITEHm)
FR
150,000,000 £ 7t
RZZEZZTF AQAFINRNE
MBI EA 4 ZEHNBIEHRITE
TE WR-_ZE-_—F A5
M_g_i$+:ﬂz+fa~
BEZXXEEEHANHAF
BEREZNTELMABEAARKE
57,118,000 T - Z E = BB B i &
u%ﬁ%%AE%mmamwﬁﬁ

ﬁ%%#ﬁ%ﬁilﬂ“ﬁ@
h%ﬁ%%ﬁ&&?“Zéﬂ
%FﬂWuES.S °

E¥E

RIZZEZZFF+_A=+—HKBX
EEXIXNEERBHEANNEELS
% %8 /4 150,000,000% 7T - AR
X EEBPEOR S - —F5H

B35 W & % 5 A R ¥ 42,803,000
T(ZEZZF REREBEBAR
#57,118,0007T) I [ E M 18 K —F

B (fi7E7) PHER -

R-B-—FXXE¥RAE
5 5f 200,000,000 3 T

RZEZ—F  ARFEFILHRXX
BEEERNEEHEH -ZE0A
FHHTET R R -_WF
NABEH R-ZFTE-_—F+=A8
=+ —H UzEBEBHEHNQTES
EMERNITESHEBEAARKE
90,370,0007T ° B B & EZ T A&
TERAFERREANTEREBR
ZER - F2HME3S8 .

RZEZ—F+ZRA=+—HHX
EEXIXNEERFERERELHNE
% K& & 58 4200,000,000 2 7T BA
LE#HEEEARE7,0130007T
Nk 238 518 A R # 90,370,000 7T
RIEMEL—FE] (M5E7) F

N
27
s ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - - —F+-A=+—HILFE

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 10. ZER P ENEMIA

The Group holds the following financial instruments: AEEFEUA TR A
2021 2020
—B-—F —EEHF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz AR¥T ARET T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost HE#HAARTRE & Bl
BE
Trade and other receivables* JEWE SRR R EM
JE Uy FRIE ¢ 1,101,433 684,094
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHEER 22 4,054,846 1,231,202
Financial assets at FVOCI BAVEFAEMERS
WaEmESmEE 21(9 728,596 723,478
Financial assets at FVPL BEAFEFABGN SR
BE 17 5,000 2,000
5,889,875 2,640,774
Financial liabilities EA =K
Liabilities at amortised cost LB AT RN EE
Trade and other payables* ENEB SRR R H A
FERTFRIE* 2,502,471 2,315,128
Borrowings EE 27 4,227,044 3,473,228
Lease liabilities HEalE 15 1,977 419
Derivative financial instruments at FVPL 2 AP EET ABZREPT4
ST E 18 116,454 82,149
6,847,946 5,870,924
Excluding non-financial assets and liabilities and notes receivable. * TEEFCHEERBBEREBEZEE
The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the AEBEEBHASIMME e T EER
financial instruments is described in Note 3. The maximum MZIERE RIS ARAEENOEAE
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the BRRM O A IS ECHEENRRE -

carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T -—F+-A=+—HIFE

20. INVENTORIES

20. #E

Raw materials R
Work-in-progress TEB
Finished goods BIRK o

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
2,283,532 1,528,282
277,417 372,718
2,032,017 1,880,228
4,592,966 3,781,228

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to RMB15,998,918,000 (2020:
RMB12,177,295,000). These were included in cost of sales
amounted to RMB15,684,630,000 (2020: RMB11,932,100,000)
and administrative expenses amounted to RMB314,288,000
(2020: RMB245,195,000).

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted
to RMB33,267,000 (2020: RMB35,849,000). These were
recognised as an expense during the year ended 31 December
2021 and included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated income
statement.

HE-_ZT-_—F+HA=+—HL
FEBERAAEAAINTEAARE
15,998,018,000 L (ZZE —FF : AR
12,177,295,0007T) » A B IHEHEE M AR
AR 15,684,630,000 7T (—F — F4F
AR #11,932,100,000 7T) M 7T FE &2 A
R #314,288,000 T (ZZE =T F : AR
#245,195,0007T) ©

WMRFTEEZgZRFEARE
33,267,000 L (ZE-_ZF : ARK
35,849,0007T) r REE-ZZT-_—F+=
B=+—BLFERRAERS Tt A
EHFBRPOMEERAR] -
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SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &{

21. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

2T

—F+=A=+—ALEE

1. ERE Z R -

Trade receivables (a)
Less: provision for impairment loss
allowance (b)

Trade receivables — net

Deposits and others

Loan to a related party (Note 33(c))

Loan to a third party (c)

Less: provision for impairment loss
allowance

Loan to a third party — net

Loans to employees

Value-added tax for future deduction
Prepaid current income tax

Interest receivable

Notes receivable (f)

Trade and other receivables (e)

Prepayments to suppliers

Less: non-current portion

Prepayments for non-current assets (g)

FEWE 5 AR (a)
B R ERRE B TR B A (D)

FEWE 5 8RR — %5

e REAM

BT —RBETHNER (B Z33c)
BYT—BE=ZTTHER(E

B R EEREE R R R

BY—RBE=ZTHNER—FHR
HTREMNER

FR B R HIR A IBER
BBV S

& W ) B

FEW IR (f)

& W B 5 B 3K K EL A FE UK A (@)

HIER AN IR

L FERVERER
JERBEETAMNFIHA«Q)

H fth fE W FKIE

=+,

R RIE

2021 2020
—B-—F —EEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
1,094,509 626,564
(44,546) (28,225)
1,049,963 598,339
43,077 34,571
5,008 -
50,000 50,000
(50,000) -
- 50,000
472 1,184
308,069 407,689
464 467
2,913 -
1,409,966 1,092,250
728,596 723,478
2,138,562 1,815,728
474,813 1,817,020
2,613,375 3,632,748
(59,929) (51,189)
2,553,446 3,581,559
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -_—F+-A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

@)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

1. ERE Z R -

Hftb B WK IR

RENRIE 2)

(@)

R —FR=F_FTF+=A
—+—H BKESERIEEEH
HMERR DT

=@AR
BE+ @A

Within 3 months
3 ~12 months
Over 12 months

2021 2020
—E-—&F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
1,076,622 591,253
13,822 31,326
4,065 3,985
1,094,509 626,564

The Group generally sells its products to domestic
customers and receives settlement either in cash or in the
form of bank acceptance notes (Note (f)) upon delivery of
goods. The bank acceptance notes usually have maturity
dates within six months. Certain major customers in the
PRC and overseas with good repayment history are offered
credit terms of not more than three months.

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Note
3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation of the
allowance.

The loan to a third party was arranged via a financial trust
company. As at the balance sheet date, the loan has
past due for collection as the third party was in financial
difficulties. A fully provision of RMB50,000,000 was
recorded on the balance sheet to reflect the increase in
credit risk. As there has been a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group measured the impairment as lifetime
expected credit losses.

AEB-RABNBETHELER
A XX B R B PATR & o A 3R 77 K
HERE (M) RIS E -
RITEE EB—AR A7 E A REIE -
BHRFEREHBNETHERE
IETBRFEELT=MEA AR
EEH -
BERRESO

AEBRBEBMBRELNEQ
SEEL R EEBERES A
FrERWE SRR BREEEFEDR
MBI - M3 1(0) IR IE A
BT E RS -

RZRTEZTHNERRRE—HE
BREFATNEL REERBEBERA
HRE=TTRAMBEE  ZEX
Eaf EREERBARESEH
& # A R 50,000,000 7T + LA /2 B
EERBRAIE N - FEE R EZE
B REBEZEEFENNES
ERBERERE -
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SHMBRRMEE(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

21. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS (continuea)

(d) Except for the loan to a third party as discussed above
in Note(c) and loan to a related party (Note 33(c)), trade
and other receivables are unsecured and interest-free.
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values as at the balance sheet date.

(e) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables excluding notes receivable were denominated

in the following currencies:

21. ERNE Z R - HttEEWFIE
RIEFIE#)
() BERMEFQFRTRERFE=
7 R 2T B 5 5 (H3E33(0)) -
FE Uk B 55 B 2K o L b FE M 2RI e d
EHERGeE RAEAERAD &
WE SRR RE M ERRBNET
HHEEAFEMELE -

) AEEMBEREAZBEROELES
BRI EL A R MR IR BR (B A T

-RMB —AR¥
-UsD —%7T

DEBEE
2021 2020
—E-—&F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
844,706 772,662
565,260 319,588
1,409,966 1,092,250

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date was the carrying value of each class of receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

RHEERH FERRENEER
By Ll & 2R Bl UG IR RO BRI A ©
A& BB ES BRI RERE
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -_—F+-A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

()

As at 31 December 2021, notes receivable were all
bank acceptance notes aged less than six months, and
included a total amount of RMB690,483,000 (2020:
RMB637,886,000) that have been endorsed to the
suppliers. As the notes receivables are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, they are measured at FVOCI.

1. ERE Z R -

Hftb B WK IR

RENRIE 2)

0

RZE-—F+=ZRA=+—8"
FBREEHAKRE LA ASEAN
RITERLEE  BELEAARE
690,483,000 T (ZE-ZTF: AR
#637,886,0007T) BB E FHER
WEE BAREREEFERES
WESHRERHESHEE ' W&
SEERsREEEAINAE R
FE - BIR A FEFTAEMER S W

2EHE -

31 December

Current assets REEE
Notes receivable measured at FVOCI BAFERAHA
SFENEREE

iR e e

2020

—E-FF

= +=—A=+—8H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AREFTT
728,596 723,478

On endorsing these notes receivable, there is no any
related balance within the FVOCI reserve need to be
reclassified to other losses within profit or loss due to the
fair value is equal to its face amount and no premium was
recognised.

Information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining fair value is provided in Note 3.3.

All of the financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in
RMB.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
won a bid for purchasing a package of non-current
assets owned by a bankrupted third party company
at a consideration of RMB51,189,000. A full amount
prepayment of RMB51,189,000 has been paid for
the aforementioned transaction to the agent. As at 31
December 2021, the whole transaction was still under
processing. The rest of non-current portion amounting
to RMB8,740,000 are prepayments for purchase of
leasehold land-use rights pursuant to agreement with local
government during the year (2020: nil).

RERRBETSER  HAFE
At ARAMARS WS R FE T L BT
AT EER O BRERANR
MEMBR REASAFESFNE
EfE B RHEREE

R EERFENTEMBRRA
ERIIRRMIFESS

BAFERARMEA REHE
CREEOUAARKGE-

HE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—81t
FE - RAEEARKS51,189,000
TR ERZEE —MBEEE=ZH
RABEN—BTERHEE - &
xR 528 ARKS51,189,000 7T
MNENFRBEESXHFRE - R=2F
——F+=-A=+—8 EBHEXS
MEBRES - EBRIERBDBH AR
#% 8,740,000 7T B AN F [E IR 1K B & Hh
BN HEBERE T ERED
FENHRE(ZE_ZF  &|) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBRERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T =-_—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22. BERMITHEER
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReFED
— Cash on hand —FERS 380 424
— Cash in banks —iRITHRE 3,542,077 830,778
3,542,457 831,202
Term deposits over 3 months and within BB =EFER —FRAK
one year (a) FHFR (@) 509,389 400,000
Cash and bank balances Be MBTES 4,051,846 1,231,202
Restricted bank deposits (b) PR B SRTT1F 3K (0) 3,000 -
Total cash and bank balances (c) e RIRTTH BB (0 4,054,846 1,231,202
(@ As at 31 December 2021, amounts of RMB500,000,000 @ RZZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H'%
of the term deposit were pledged as security for bank 7 %+ A9 A R # 500,000,000 7T
borrowing of the Group (Note 27). EERAAEAEERITEENEER
(M¥sE27) -
(b) The restricted bank deposits were used for the following (b) ZERBIRITEZAETIIRE

purposes:

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTT

Issuance of bank acceptance notes BITIRITAEA R EE 3,000 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)
MG ERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T -—F+-A=+—HIFE

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued) 22. RERWITEER D)
() Total cash and bank balances are denominated in the ) ReRBITHBBHUATIEER
following currencies: 8
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREF T
-RMB —AR% 905,628 877,092
- USD —%7T 3,127,247 343,727
- HKD —BTT 10,765 8,397
-EUR —BT 11,098 1,873
-SGD — TN TT 108 113
4,054,846 1,231,202
The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in RMB REEUARBERNRS RIEIT
were deposited with banks in the PRC. Conversion of ERT AT BEARIT - BZE
these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies ARBTENGEHR IR RINEAR
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange R [ R A8 A /9 1N B I AR BN K2 3R
control promulgated by the PRC government. 3BR il o
(d) The weighted average effective interest rate on cash and d BEZZE-—F+-A=+—H1
bank balances placed with banks by the Group was 0.26% FE AEEFRNRITHES R
per annum for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RITARMEFLHBERFENER

0.29%). 026EB (=T T4 :029F) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRMEE(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HAIFE

23. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 23. RARIHE
Amount
KX
Number
of shares Ordinary Share
(thousands) shares premium Total
R E B
(FR) =B % 17 % (8 HET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
At 1 January 2020 R-B-2F
—HA—B8 2,633,639 243,261 663,634 906,895
Dividends N - - (817,197) (817,197)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF
+=—B=+—H 2,633,639 243,261 346,437 589,698
Dividends %2 - - (87,003) (87,003)
At 31 December 2021 Rn=2=—
+=ZBA=+—H 2,533,639 243,261 259,434 502,695
The total number of authorised share capital of the Company RZEZ—FRFZFF+=

comprised 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
HKDO0.10 each as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

According to the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of Cayman Islands and the articles of
association of the Company, dividends of the Company can be
declared out of its share premium account subject to a solvency
test.

A=+—RB ARREERARE
10,000,000,000 A% & % E {E0.1078 JT #Y
Bak -

REREHSE2R2ERAE(—NR—
FHRIFEN > KIERA RIER]) RART]
MBERAA > AREEBEBEDN
g AR EERE RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T -—F+_-A=+—HILFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 24. RO
(a) Share options granted on 9 April 2015 (@ A-ZE—HAFNAABREN
iR
The Company granted to certain eligible employees share RAFRRZZE—RAFOANLAMR
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 16,600,000 ETEEREBEERDEARES H®
ordinary shares of the Company on 9 April 2015. These 16,600,000 A& 7 22 &) & 3 Ak B9 8 A%
options vest in tranches over a period of up to 5 years. *%E CHEBMRENRRESFHEARN
There were no options being exercised during the years Ttt BE-BRE_T_—FR_-F
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. TEFFT A=t —BULFEHRE
TR ARHE o
Movements in the number of share options outstanding MARTTEERESE NE S N HEE
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as BN FITEENT :
follows:
2020
—E-EF
Average
exercise
price in HKD
per share Options
option (thousands)
FHIEE A
BhBREET (F1)
At 1 January n—H—H 5.69 2,800
Lapsed [REAN 5.69 (2,800)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H -
The fair value, which was determined by an independent BhENOATEHBELGERME
qualified appraiser using Binominal option pricing model, MiZR B AR EEREAGE
of the options as at the grant date was approximately E’\\&ﬁ HH % & A K% 30,216,000
RMB30,216,000. The following assumptions were adopted TC o T E R H BB A FEAT
to calculate the fair value of the options on the grant date: Tmfﬂ BRERT -
Granted on
9 April 2015
NZZE—AF
mANBEH
Average share price f& 7 (& HKD4.89
4.897 7T
Exercise price B HKD5.69
5.697%8 7T
Expected life of options ERETESTEH 5.0 years
5.0%F
Expected volatility TEFR IR 43.11%
Expected dividend yield TEET AR B % 2.26%

Risk free rate = Ak F = 0.99%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 E#E—-Z = —

F+-_A=t+—HLEFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share options granted on 9 April 2015 (Continued)

The expected volatility is determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies with
similar business to the Group. The expected dividend yield
is determined by the Directors based on the expected
future performance and dividend policy of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, all the related
shares options were lapsed.

The attributable amount reclassified from other reserves to
retained earnings due to lapsing during the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately RMB4,034,000.

Share options granted on 9 November 2016

The Company granted to certain eligible employees share
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 14,700,000
ordinary shares of the Company on 9 November 2016.
These options vest in tranches over a period of up to 6
years. There were no options being exercised during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as
follows:

Average
exercise

price in HKD
per share
option
THTEE
SHERERT

At 1 January
Forfeited

At 31 December

®—HA—H 3.50
B8 3.50

R+-A=1+—H 3.50

24. R F (&)
() A—Z—HEENAIAEEN

(b)

Bk =)

BRI IR TR R A R B XA AR
M EMAREROBEREBERE
EoBAREEHESREAKHE
BHRARKELBRERRET °

BE-_T-_ZTF+-_A=+—HL
FE  2REBBRED KR -

HE-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—H1
FE ARXSAMEBHEMEEETD
HMERBUENEESEHNAAR
# 4,034,000 7T °

RZE—ARF+-AABEHE
H 8 IR e
AKABRZE—AR"F+—ANLAM
ETEEREERIUREBAKL
14,700,000 & 78 A~ &) 3 8 A 79 8 A%
% ZEERERRECFHMEA
THEE - BET-_—FK=F
—EF+ A=+ —HIEFEHE
1T A AE -

HARTTEBRESEMES R HER

BNRETFITERENT -
2020
it 23
Average
exercise
price in HKD
Options per share Options
(thousands) option (thousands)
BRE FHTRE B E
G| BhEREST (F13)
3,300 3.50 12,300
(1,300) 3.50 (9,000)
2,000 3.50 3,300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE T -—F+_-A=+—HILFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (continued)
(b) Share options granted on 9 November 2016

(Continued)

The fair value, which was determined by an independent
qualified appraiser using Binominal option pricing model,
of the options as at the grant date was approximately
RMB17,515,000. The following assumptions were adopted

24, R R (&)
b) RZE—XE+—HFAAEE

WIS ()
BRENATFERBYAERMGE
iz A EEEENGTE
%ﬁﬁaﬁ%@ﬁ/\ﬁ%w,as,ooo
CRTEEIHBEBERENTEM

to calculate the fair value of the options on the grant date: %fﬂ HIRER AT
Granted on
9 November 2016
RZE—RF
+—ALBEYE
Average share price I tnF5E HKD3.45
3.4578 7T
Exercise price 1T (E HKD3.50
3.5078 7T
Expected life of options PR R RETE AT F B 6.0 years
6.0
Expected volatility TEETR IR 44.79%
Expected dividend yield TEET AR B & 2.15%
Risk free rate T [ g M| & 1.39%

The expected volatility is determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies with
similar business to the Group. The expected dividend yield
is determined by the Directors based on the expected
future performance and dividend policy of the Group.

In 2021, one employee resigned and thus all the related
1,300,000 share options were forfeited during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The attributable amount in related to the share options
forfeited after the vesting period reclassified from other
reserves to retained earnings during the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB1,020,000
(2020: RMB4,711,000). The net attributable amount
in related to the outstanding share options and share
options forfeited during the vesting period credited to the
consolidated income statement during the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB193,000 (2020:
RMB2,979,000).

SEENUEDELIY: £ % Y L s
MEMAGERNBERETEE
oA REERRESESREAEE
BEARKREBRERRET

RZZE=—F R —RBEEHT -
2 26 A8 B8 1,300,000 17 & A% 4 7
HzE-_Z-_—F+=-A=+—HL
FEHIZUL

HE-_Z-—4F+=-A=+—8
IHFE AEREBHZ2KANE
kRiEE@EmMEEthHEHEENTHE

ERBUZHEGSENAAR
#1,020,000C (ZZE-ZTFE: AR
#4,711,00070) cHE_FT = —F
+-—A=+—BIFE REHE
SEEHN M ARITEMERE R Z K
MEEREF B M ASHFERD
FEIE £ BIF L A AR 193,000
T (ZEZZFF : AR®2,979,000
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE —T——&F+_-A=+—HIFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued) 24. RS2
(c) Share options granted on 30 December 2016 (c) R=ZE—XRE+=-A=+HR
Y B AR R

The Company granted to certain eligible employee share
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 300,000 ordinary
shares of the Company on 30 December 2016. These
options vest in tranches over a period of up to 6 years.
There were no options being exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding

and their related weighted average exercise prices are as BAINREEIITEELT
follows:
2020
—Z2-%F
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in HKD price in HKD
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option (thousands)
FHTEE BRE TR E ke
SRERERT G BhEREET (F17)
At 1 January ®—A—H 3.82 300 3.82 300
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 3.82 300 3.82 300

RAABR -ZE—REF+-_A=+H
METEERRERDAREBAH
300,000 J& A B 3 A% /0 B A% 4 -
ZEBERERRECFHEAD I
BB -HE_E-_—FRk-ZE_-F
F+-_A=+—HILFEHETE
RS -

RARITERB AR R e s R H AT

The fair value, which was determined by an independent
qualified appraiser using Binominal option pricing model,
of the options as at the grant date was approximately
RMB414,000. The following assumptions were adopted to
calculate the fair value of the options on the grant date:

BRENATFTERBLAERME
iR —mEA PR EEENGTE
REE B EA A AR 414,000 7T °
FTERE L BB R T ERN
IR T -

Granted on

30 December 2016

RZE—RF

+T-A=+AERH

Average share price I tn F5E HKD3.81
3.81%E&7T

Exercise price TR E HKD3.82
3.82% 7T

Expected life of options EIREETFH 6.0 years
6.04F

Expected volatility SER 'PE 44.52%
Expected dividend yield TEETAR B 2.18%
Risk free rate = [ B T'J = 1.70%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &HZ—F ——

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Share options granted on 30 December 2016
(Continueq)

The expected volatility is determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies with
similar business to the Group. The expected dividend yield
is determined by the Directors based on the expected
future performance and dividend policy of the Group.

The attributable amount charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB17,000 (2020: RMB39,000).

Share options granted on 25 August 2017

The Company granted to certain eligible employee share
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 5,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company on 25 August 2017. These
options vest in tranches over a period of up to 6 years.
There were no options being exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as
follows:

24, BB I

2021

—E-—

Average
exercise

price in HKD
per share
option
%R
SHERERT

At 1 January ®—A—H
Forfeited 2

At 31 December

4.96
4,96

(c)

(d)

SHMBRRME(E)

FH-A=+—HILFE

A (78
R-ZB-AE+ZA=1+BK
HE B ()

BRI IR TR R A R B XA AR
M EMAREROBEREBERE
EoBHREEHEEREAKHE
BHRARKELBRERRET °

REE-_Z-—F+=-A=+—H
HFEBAHFMBRIIBOEGLS
FHAAREA7000T (ZE -
£ AR¥39,0007T) °

RZE—+tHENA=+EBRK
o B B R R

KRR _E—+FNA=-+HEHH
METEERRERDARESH
5,000,000 & A8 2 &) & 38 A% /) 85 A%
B-ZEBBRENRRECFHEN
PGB BHE_T-_—FK_F
—EFF A=+ RALEFEHRE
TTP AR AE o

%ﬁbuﬁﬁﬂzfﬁfiﬁﬁﬁ?&DW_-
2020
—_— ? —_— ? ﬁz
Average
exercise
price in HKD
Options per share Options
(thousands) option (thousands)
BRE TH17EE Bk
Grink | BHEREET (F12)
5,000 4,96 5,000
(5,000) 4,96
- 4,96 5,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - - —F+-A=+—HILFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued) 24. RS2
(d) Share options granted on 25 August 2017 (d R=ZF2—ttFNA=-T+HAR
(Continued) H AR R ()

The fair value, which was determined by an independent
qualified appraiser using Binominal option pricing model,
of the options as at the grant date was approximately
RMB7,852,000. The following assumptions were adopted

BRENATFERBYAERMGE
Mz —IEAEETEEXNET -
#ﬁﬁa%m%AEM7%zmo

CHTERBREBHEREAFE

to calculate the fair value of the options on the grant date: %fﬂ HIRER AT
Granted on
25 August 2017
T—+F
NAZ + HHEHFEH
Average share price I tnF5E HKD4.95
4.9578 7T
Exercise price 1T (E HKD4.96
4.96 78 7T
Expected life of options PR R RETE AT F B 6.0 years
6.0
Expected volatility TEETR IR 44.41%
Expected dividend yield TEET AR B & 3.75%
Risk free rate TER R = 1.37%

The expected volatility is determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies with
similar business to the Group. The expected dividend yield
is determined by the Directors based on the expected
future performance and dividend policy of the Group.

In 2021, the employee resigned and thus all the related
5,000,000 share options were forfeited during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The attributable amount in related to the share options
forfeited after the vesting period reclassified from other
reserves to retained earnings during the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB3,390,000
(2020: nil). The attributable amount in related to the share
options forfeited during the vesting period credited to the
consolidated income statement during the year ended
31 December 2021 was approximately RMB2,534,000
(2020: the attributable amount charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31 December
2020 was RMB1,071,000).

SEENUEDELIY: £ % Y L s
MEMAGERNBERETEE
EoTEHRERREEREAEE
BEARKREBRERRET

RZZEZ—F - BARZBEEFIT

2 26 48 8 5,000,000 17 & A% 4 7

HzE-_Z-_—F+=-A=+—HL
FEHIZUL

HE-_Z-_—F+-_HA=+—H1t
FE - FHEREFBE LI ER
EEEmMBEMBEBEENSES
REBUEHNEESENAARE
3,390,000C (Z T —FF : ) o
HE-_ZT-—F+=-A=+—8H
IEFE - AEEE BRI ER
EHEBEmME ASHABRAOEN
éﬁ%%AE%z%4mWﬂ:;

TF AEEZT=FTF+=A
:+ HIEFEME FFERDG
REH 2R ARE 1,071,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (continued)
(e) Share options granted on 31 March 2021

The Company granted to certain eligible employee share
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 2,200,000
ordinary shares of the Company on 31 March 2021. These
options vest in tranches over a period of up to 6 years.
There were no options being exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2021.

24. R 2)
e) R=EBE=-_—H=A=+—HBEK

o /Y B iR R
ARABR—EBE-—F=A=+—H
METREREEREURBEAH
2,200,000 & 78~ 7] & 3 A% 79 8 B
HoZEERERNRECFHMEA
SEBE - BHE-_T_-_—F+_A4
T+ —BUFERETEERE -

Movements in the number of share options outstanding BARITEERESRE NEE R EME
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as BN ITEEL T
follows:
2021
B —fF
Average
exercise
price in HKD
per share Options
option (thousands)
KT EE e
FHBRESRT (F)
At 1 January mn—H—H -
Granted BEEE 2.95 2,200
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 2.95 2,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ—ZF—

—FtZA=t—RALFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (continued)
(e) Share options granted on 31 March 2021

(M

(Continueq)

The fair value, which was determined by an independent
qualified appraiser using Binominal option pricing model,
of the options as at the grant date was approximately
RMB1,156,000. The following assumptions were adopted
to calculate the fair value of the options on the grant date:

24, Hﬂﬂﬁﬁ

( &)

tﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁifg(ﬁ’)
BRENATFERBYAERMGE
Mz —IEAEETEEXNET -
%ﬁﬁa%nﬁAEMH%mm
CHTERBREBHEREAFE
%QWE’JTE““ZZDT

Granted on
31 March 2021

R-ZB-—F
ZA=+—-BRH

Average share price % 0 &
Exercise price I{EE
Expected life of options BB IR TR AT 1
Expected volatility SER 'FE
Expected dividend yield TEEHAR &

Risk free rate TRk T'J x

HKD2.80
280/ T
HKD2.95
295/ T
6.0 years
6.0F
44.35%
6.93%
1.22%

The expected volatility is determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies with
similar business to the Group. The expected dividend yield
is determined by the Directors based on the expected
future performance and dividend policy of the Group.

The attributable amount charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB311,000.

Share options granted on 4 June 2021

The Company granted to certain eligible employee share
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 5,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company on 4 June 2021. These
options vest in tranches over a period of up to 6 years.
There were no options being exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2021.

(f

FERT R 0E T5 AR IR B AN SR [ X A AR
MEMARERNBEREBEE
EoBHREEHESREANKHE
R KR KRB LB BEREE

HE_Z-_—F+-A=+—H1t
FE G BEHFMBRMOBRNELS
LA ANRE 311,000 7T °

RIBEZ—FAANERED
B

PNNISI DA —FEXAMAM
ETAERBEERLUREA K
5,000,000 i% 7K 2 &) & 38 A% &9 B8 A%
B-ZEBRENRRECFHEN
STEB -BHE_T-_—F+=_A
=+ —HUIFERETEERE-

_7_
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24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (continued)
(f) Share options granted on 4 June 2021 (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as

24, R SRR (#)
H R-B-——EXANASEY

BIREE)
RARTTEBARESE MES R HER
BA IR I TEMEMT

follows:
Average
exercise
price in HKD
per share Options
option (thousands)
FIITEE iR AE
SHBREET (F£)
At 1 January mn—H—H -
Granted BEEE 2.68 5,000
Forfeited -2 2.68 (5,000)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H -

The fair value, which was determined by an independent
qualified appraiser using Binominal option pricing model,
of the options as at the grant date was approximately
RMB2,459,000. The following assumptions were adopted
to calculate the fair value of the options on the grant date:

BRENATFERBLAERME
Mz —mEAETEEAET -
REHBHYAAREK?2459,000
Lot ERBEHBHEREATFE
HmmBREnT

Granted on
4 June 2021

R=B=—%F
ANAMAREH

Average share price
Exercise price
Expected life of options
Expected volatility

Expected dividend yield
Risk free rate

Betn (&
TTIEE

R TERT F 1
R IE

BEti 8%
TRBFIE

HKD2.67
2.67% T
HKD2.68
2.687% T
6.0 years
6.0
43.84%
7.26%
0.99%

The expected volatility is determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies with
similar business to the Group. The expected dividend yield
is determined by the Directors based on the expected
future performance and dividend policy of the Group.

TEEHR IR TO AR iR B R R B XA AR
B EmAREHRABEREE
Eo-BHREEHESREAKHE
FEHIRRRE RIS BREE
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24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (continued) 24, R F K@)
() Share options granted on 4 June 2021 (Continued) (H R=F-—FAMNBEHH
BREZ)
In 2021, the employee resigned and thus all the related R —F  -BRZBEEET -
5,000,000 share options were forfeited. No attributable 2 2048 B8 5,000,000 17 B A% A 158
amount charged to the consolidated income statement We-HBHE-_Z-_—F+_A=+—
during the year ended 31 December 2021. HIEFE  WEESOFAERNE
BE(E S8 -
25. OTHER RESERVES 25, Hihf#E
Share-
based
Capital Statutory Safety payment
reserve reserve  production reserve
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) fee (Note 24) Total
SIENE
EXfGEE LERE Z2 it
(&t (a) (B 3£ (b)) tEER (Ff &% 24) @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETRT ARETR
1 January 2020 it 222
—A—8 (370,760) 1,005,175 - 31,404 665,819
Profit appropriation g lpalis - 58,572 - - 58,572
Employee share option BB RERE 2
schemes
—Value of employee services ~ — R ERGBEE
(Notes 9, 24) (a9 - 24) - - - (1,869) (1,869)
— Expiry of options issued -BETERE
(Notes 24(a), 24(b) B (W3
24(z) - 24()) - - - (8,745) (8,745)
Provision for safety production %% £ & & &
fee - - 3,600 - 3,600
Utilisation of safety production AL 24 EEHR
fee - - (1.498) - (1,498)
31 December 2020 it St 222
+=ZA=+-—H (370,760) 1,063,747 2,102 20,790 715,879
Profit appropriation i A - 139,591 - - 139,591
Employee share option schemes & 8 B & 151 &l
- Value of employee services  — (R ERIGEE
(Notes 9, 24) (W19 - 24) - - - (2,399) (2,399)
— Expiry of options issued -BETERE
(Notes 24(b), 24(d) [Em (7
24b) - 24(d) - - - (4,410) (4,410)
Provision for safety production % &4 & & B &
fee - - 6,264 - 6,264
Utilisation of safety production B Z 24 EER
fee - - (2,442) - (2,442)
31 December 2021 —2--f

+=-B=+-H (370,760) 1,203,338 5,924 13,981 852,483
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25. OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Capital reserve

It mainly represents reserve arising from the Group’s
reorganisation completed in July 2006.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the articles
of the association of the PRC companies comprising the
Group, before distributing the net profit of each year, each
of the companies registered in the PRC is required to
set aside 10% of its statutory net profit for the year after
offsetting any prior year’s losses as determined under the
PRC accounting regulations to the statutory surplus reserve
fund. When the balance of such reserve reaches 50% of
each company’s share capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be utilised
to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus shares,
provided that the balance of such reserve is not less than
25% of the entity’s registered capital after the bonus issue.

26. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

25, Efhi#E 2

(a)

(b)

BEXRRE
EARBEIREARER-_TTX
FEATKEBRREENRHE

EEE

RIEPER G RAKAEENET
EPEARNAEBERAMNRTE -
EDIREFHANF - BREETBEE
MR B AR E S ERRE -
REHER L —FEBRR  H&
FREAVEEAMNA0% B AVEE B R
REED - MZEENEHREDS
NABRARE0% + HRA] BITRE
TAER LAERBRHEBEES AR
N B EFEBIRNBETAR
B BRBERT DR BEITARIEL

e B SR (a~ b)
WE - BE RREBENFIA )

Trade payables (a, b)

Payables for property, plant and
equipment (b)

Salaries, wages and staff welfares
payables

Interest payables

Dividends payable

Other payables and accruals

ENEHS TENRBIEF

ANENNS)
FEAT A% B
H b & OB K ERH B A

o FEREE D
H b & H (o)

Less: non-current portion
Other payables (c)

BRTMER25% °
26. ENEZRM  HittENAKE
kREER

2021 2020

—B-—F —EEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTT
1,545,933 1,249,039

490,593 606,975

346,755 359,241

1,149 37,584

407 407

465,389 422,530

2,850,226 2,675,776

(69,948) (66,461)

2,780,278 2,609,315
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26. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the ageing analysis of
trade payables based on invoice date was as follows:

Within 3 months =EAA

3 to 6 months =E=XEA

6 to 12 months RNE+TZEA
1to 2 years —EWF
Over 2 years GESY S

26. ERHE SRR - HihENARE
REGTER®)
@ R-TE-—FER-_FT-_TF+_A
=+—H" Jﬁﬁé’%ﬁﬁ IR EH
B ERER DT IO T
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
1,371,273 1,064,031
73,335 38,902
32,167 18,027
36,865 94,306
32,293 33,773
1,545,933 1,249,039

As disclosed in Note 21(f), notes receivable amounted
to RMB690,4883,000 (2020: RMB637,886,000) were
endorsed to the suppliers of trade payables and payables
for purchase of property, plant and equipment amounting to
RMB573,165,000 and RMB117,318,000, respectively (2020:
RMB473,821,000 and RMB164,065,000, respectively).

The non-current portion of other payables is a borrowing
from certain third parties, which is repayable in 5 years
from the balance sheet date. The interest rate on such
other payables during the year ended 31 December 2021
was 5.25% per annum (2020: 5.25% per annum).

Except for the borrowing from certain third parities as
discussed in Note(c), trade and other payables are
unsecured and interest-free. The carrying amounts of trade
and other payables approximate their fair values and are
mainly denominated in RMB.

WM E2IO R E R EE A
R #690,483,000 L (&~ &
F: AR®637,886,0007T) 52
EEREED ARINA2RA
AR 573,165,000 & A R
117,318,000 (ZZE -ZZ4F : H 5l
A ANR 473,821,000 7T & A R
164,065,000 7T) M FE & S ER K &
BEWE BEMRENEMNTKE -

HEibEARIBERIERSE D ERSE
FE=ZFEF BREEAREXRA
%EFNEE - ZEMEMNKER
HE-_Z-_—F+-_H=+—H1t
FEAMBEANFENEE5.25% (=
TFF  §F5.25%) °

B QM mImETE=71E
C B E 5 MR R A A AR

24
EAMERRE S  HERERA
TEIBE  TEUARE BB -
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27. BORROWINGS 27. 8 &

2021 2020
=B —F —T_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFT

Non-current FERE
Bank borrowings, secured (a) RITIEE (BER) @ 2,504,790 -
Bank borrowings, unsecured MITEE (BEMH) - 464,427
2,504,790 464,427

Current B
Bank borrowings, unsecured SRITIEE (EIKH) 1,222,254 1,361,133
Bank borrowings, secured (a) RITIEE (AR @ 500,000 -
USD bonds (b) EES () - 1,647,668
1,722,254 3,008,801
Total borrowings BE®RE 4,227,044 3,473,228
At 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowings were repayable RZEZ—F+ZH=+—H X&EE
as follows: FEENEEBAEOT
Bank borrowings USD bonds
RITHERE EnEH

2021 2020 2021 2020
== 5 —FT-THF | == 8 T TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IS ARETT BN ARETT
Within 1 year —F N 1,722,254 1,361,133 - 1,647,668
Between 1 and 2 years —EMFA 125,239 464,427 - -
Between 2 and 5 years MERFA 2,379,551 - - -

4,227,044 1,825,560

1,647,668
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27. BORROWINGS (continuea) 27. 18 E (&)
The weighted average effective interest rates at the balance REEBEXRBAINETHERR Z0
sheet dates were as follows: N
2020
—EEF
Borrowings BE 2.19% 4.50%
The carrying amount and fair value of non-current borrowings JEENEIEEMEEmEREAFTEN T :
are as follows:
Carrying amount Fair value
BREE A¥EE
2021 2020 2021 2020
=l —TCFF | emede s CFECRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NEkasran . ARBTT OSSR ARBTT

Bank borrowings wITEE 2,504,790 464,427 2,382,379 461,933
The fair value of non-current borrowings are based on FEEEEENATFEIIBIEHARRERE
discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are EfXRBENRSRETE A HiE
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). BATEEBHEFHNE=Z (MzF3.3) °
The fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying ENHAEEMATESENHEERE  I'H
amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant. BEIRA R EX TNE A -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are NEFBEESWEREN T SEEHE -

denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —E-FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB AR 1,468,176 1,319,407
UsD =T 2,758,868 2,153,821
4,227,044 3,473,228
(@) As at 31 December 2021, the secured non-current bank @ R-E-_—F+-A=+—8"'H
borrowings were secured by the pledge of the capital stock IR IERIRITE B THAEEAK
of certain subsidiaries of the Company and the secured NAEETHEARMBAEAER
current bank borrowings were secured by term deposits of EREARBERTEE AT HF
RMB500,000,000 (Note 22(a)). A R ¥ 500,000,000 7T 1F & & %

(ftsE22(0)) °
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27. BORROWINGS (Continued)
(b) USD bonds issued in August 2018

In August 2018, the Company issued USD bonds at a par
value of USD350,000,000, which was denominated in
USD with a fixed interest rate of 5.875% per annum and
mature date of 28 August 2021. The value of the liability,
net of transaction costs of USD4,733,000, was determined
at issuance of the bonds. During the year ended 31
December 2020, a total of USD 62,799,000 of such USD
bonds were early redeemed.

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of such USD bonds
was USD253,336,000 and was reclassified to current
borrowings.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all of the USD
bonds were redeemed upon mature.

28. DEFERRED INCOME

(b)

SHMBRRME(E)

F+-A=+—HILFE

27. 8 E (&)

RZZE—N\FNABTHNETES
RZE—NFNA ' ARAZETE
FRE5875F FHITUAETFTE®E
85350, ooo ooo%ﬁm%ﬁ%%% '
A E-—FNAZ=+NB -
%1ﬁﬁf§(¢urﬁ,@x%1ﬂm4,733,ooo
EL)RETESFRETE -BHE
E-TF+-A=+— EIJtir“
AARRAEREBETLESFA H
62,799,000 7T °

R-ZE_TF+-_A=+—H"' A
B 5 7T & % 45 #4875 253,336,000 3
A EBRHDEEENHREE -

BHE-_T-—%+-_A=+—HI
FE AETEFHEIHERD -

8. i i W &=

2021 2020
:%: o EE — 7 — E'E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Government grants related to income BB ERREBEHES
tax credit from purchasing qualified BB (a)
equipment (a) 10,382 18,743
Government grants related to acquisition  £2§# B IR R I BT ok = & 48
of environmental protection and A BB BT B (o)
technology improvement equipment (b) 766,044 799,707
776,426 818,450
The movements of the above government grants for the years REBE_E-—FR-_ZT_FF+=A

ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

=t+—RIFE DRBFHEBEESHIT

REL)
RERNESFEE)
BEE P e s (BT aE6 - 31)

At beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Amortised as income (Note 6, 37)

At end of the year

2021 2020
—EB-—&F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
818,450 710,281
52,135 197,436
(94,159) (89,267)
776,426 818,450
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28

29.

. DEFERRED INCOME (Continued)

(@ Government grants related to income tax credit from
purchasing qualified equipment represented reduction in
income tax granted to Baoji Fufeng, IM Fufeng, Hulunbeir
Fufeng, Xinjiang Fufeng and Longjiang Fufeng on the
purchase of certain qualified equipment. Such income
tax credits are recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.

(b) Government grants related to acquisition of environmental
protection and technology improvement equipment
are recorded as deferred income and amortised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related assets.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there

is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets

against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred

income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxed levied

by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or

different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the

balances on a net basis. The deferred income tax assets and

liabilities are as follows:

@)

28. JEFE W 5t ()

HERQERIEMENHELERH
MBRAHDERBEETAERR
BETEHERE RARLEE W
REABEL HMEBEELREIRE
MFBHER ZEMBHRELR
HEEERPFHRAAERERG
PERB &R R

HESRARMRIMAERERBDH
L 428 B A\ BR 5 0 S Wi 25 3 70 AR A
BEERBFHANBEBRENR A HF

ESEFTiSH

¥ EABEAAEREERAMEH
BEEHN A RRHATHE  UREE
ERERAERAEER —BBERAR
PR T R SR B AR

Fris

BB MAERTmARFEEAE

EBNERE  BEEMESHREERAER
THE - ELEMEHEERBENT :

[ 2021 2020
=F=—F —EF-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTIT

Deferred income tax assets: RIEFMSHEE :

— Deferred income tax assets to be — BB+ A & U E §
recovered after more than 12 months RIEFTISREE

— Deferred income tax assets to be — ¥R+ & A Uk E F R E
recovered within 12 months FEMEE

Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFTSREBE:

— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —BREBR+ @A RENT
settled after more than 12 months RIEFTISHRAE

— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — R+ =@ A REN A EE
settled within 12 months e asE

Deferred income tax assets, net FIEFTIS R EEF5E

57,555 75,660
50,023 47,693
107,578 123,353
(16,650) (16,650)

- (10,000)
(16,650) (26,650)
90,928 96,703
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29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29, IRAEFREB (2

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as BEFTISTHIBRBE EZEH T
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARBTIT
Beginning balance of the year FAHEH 96,703 105,988
Charged to consolidated income B & Ot AERINE (M et 11)
statement (Note 11) (5,775) (9,285)
Ending balance of the year FIREERR 90,928 96,703

FRELMEREERABNES (A
A R R — RS RDAEE NS
LN

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTISREE -

Salary
and staff
Unrealised Deferred welfare Impairment
profit income payables losses Total
Ef#HeRk
RERHF EEWA EIRER RESR Hity @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT AR®TR ARE®TR ARETRL
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-Z%-A-H 1,388 97,272 35,117 27,627 6,355 167,759
(Charged)/credited to EAGFIER (K /
consolidated income Bit
statement (533) 14,482 (1,270) (1,291) (4,683) 6,705
At 31 December 2020 W=-Z-E&
—A=+-H 855 111,754 33,847 26,336 1,672 174,464
(Charged)/credited to EABFER (NK)
consolidated income L)
statement 1,377 (4,896) (3,452) 3,675 (398) (3,694)
At31December 2021 H-T-—#&
+=ZA=1+-H 2,232 106,858 30,395 30,011 1,274 170,770
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29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29. RSB (@)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that the W75 ] 8235 i B 18 JE SR T 0m ) 38 R #F
realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profit HIEFZ BEMRETEMEHEE -
is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H ~%£E
assets in respect of tax losses amounted to RMB169,065,000 I 4 kAT 45 6 DUIK B R SR B SR A I E’J
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB379,146,000) that can be HIEEE AR 169,065,0007T (=& =
carried forward to offset against future taxable income, because = AR 379,146,0007T) MR iE
it was uncertain whether there would be sufficient profit to offset FEHEE  RAZHMAKREETA Hvr 7?5
in the near future. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the expiry EEERHFEEEEER -RZF
date of such tax losses is as follows: I RZEZTEFF+ZA=+—H"

BETEEBEIBBNT :

2021 2020

—E-—F —ET-FF

Expiry date RMB’000 RMB’000
BH A AR%T T ARBFT
2021 —E-—fF - 1,514
2022 T 1,114 1,117
2023 —EC-=F 639 640
2024 —ZEZMmF 1,694 2,660
2025 —E-RF 1,955 5,494
2026 ZERF 4,255 -
2029 - Z\ ﬁﬁ 19,663 227,976
2030 —E=FF 139,745 139,745

169,065 379,146
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29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Capitalisation
of borrowing

20, IEEFTBH (2)
EEFEREE

Withholding

tax on
unremitted Lump-sum
earnings of  deduction of
certain  depreciation

costs subsidiaries difference
HETHEADTE
EX{ RBERFZ —RHEHIBR
BB R BB wEEHE #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTTT ARETIT ARETTT
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-Z5—-A—H 372 40,650 20,749 61,771
(Credited)/charged to EEHMER (B
consolidated income il
statement (137) (14,000) 30,127 15,990
At 31 December 2020 R-ZEBZEHF
+=ZA=+—H 235 26,650 50,876 77,761
(Credited)/charged to EEHFIBE (B,
consolidated income Eitls
statement (75) (10,000) 12,156 2,081
At 31 December 2021 R-ZZB=-—%
+=-A=+—H 160 16,650 63,032 79,842

According to the corporate income tax law, starting from 1
January 2008, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the
immediate holding companies established outside the PRC
when their PRC subsidiaries declare dividends out of their profits
earned after 1 January 2008. A lower withholding tax rate of
5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty arrangement between
the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign immediate holding
companies, including those incorporated in Hong Kong.

REEEMBHRE B-FFT/N\F—A
—HE EREARELIMEKINE
BEEBRABZTENBRARAR TN
F-A—-REEMRBENFEIRES
1 652 % B IR R BRI 10% TRH0E ©
WA BEESEEZRZERAR (BRERE
BEMMARIHRF) B RERERZHE
AENBEERE A RRENTET
A R 5% B
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29.

30.

—FtZA=t—RALFE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Such withholding tax is recorded under deferred income tax.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, Trans-Asia, a
subsidiary of the Company, acquired qualification for the lower
tax rate of 5% for dividend received from its subsidiaries in
mainland China. The Group revised its estimate of Trans-Asia for
the accrual based on 5% instead of 10% while the withholding
tax rate for other subsidiaries in Hong Kong were based on
10%. During the year ended 31 December 2021, withholding
tax of RMB10,000,000 was paid as Mainland China subsidiaries
have distributed the retained earnings of RMB200,000,000 as
at 31 December 2020. No withholding tax has been provided
as the Board has confirmed that the Group does not expect
Mainland China subsidiaries to distribute the retained earnings
as at 31 December 2021 in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax liabilities as at 31 December 2021 of
RMB685,750,000 (2020: RMB628,966,000) have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of the subsidiaries in the PRC, totalling

29.

EEFTEH (#)
HFEMR A RNIELESHE - HE—
—NF+_A=1+—BLEFE AR
MEBARIRGEAFEKENEA ﬂwm
RIS B = A EK A 5% T BT B A -
AEEBREIREMTER - £10% AR
£5%  MEMEEHBARMEMEE
B10% HE_ET-_—F+-_A=+—
BLEFEE BRHPEXENBRARED
m# E_EF+_A=+—BHNRHE
I %5 A R # 200,000,000 7T © 0 2 & A+
BT A R ¥ 10,000,000 © EE =
RN B FE B P B oK BE M B A R T
ERARARKDER - -_—F+=- A
=+ —BRBUES I ELTIRTEIR -

I A Tk A BRI B BB R ) B R BB B R i e
EFEH R A £ A R % 11,282,040,000
T(ZE-ZEFE: AR 10,919,799,000
TR ZE-_—F+_A=+—HHER

RMB11,282,040,000 (2020: RMB10,919,799,000). EIEFT 1S B & A R % 685,750,000 7T
—E-FTF . AR¥E628,966,0007T) ©
DIVIDENDS 30. R &
[ 2021 | 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Interim, paid ERFERE 206,712 132,256
Final, proposed BATRARE 240,765 87,003
447,477 219,259

The final dividends paid in 2021 amounted to HKD103,879,000
(equivalent to RMB86,036,000) (2020: RMB185,606,000),
representing HK4.1 cents (equivalent to RMB3.40 cents) (2020:
RMB7.30 cents) per ordinary share of the Company. The
difference between proposed and paid final dividends was due
to the impact of exchange rate fluctuation.

At a meeting held on 30 March 2022, the Board proposed a final
dividend of HKD296,436,000 (equivalent to RMB240,765,000)
(2020: RMB87,003,000), representing HK11.70 cents (equivalent
to RMB9.50 cents) (2020: RMB3.43 cents) per share to be
distributed from the retained earnings account. This proposed
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these
consolidated financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation from the retained earnings account for the year
ending 31 December 2022.

- FETNBMERBRE A
103,879,000 7t (& R AR
8603600075)(_ —EFARE
185,606,000 7T) * Bl AR &) & i & 8 A%

1B (HERARES3409) (22 =

=

T ARHE7.309) - BHAME KRS
BEMEREHRER R DY B -

E/\—y——ﬁz ﬂ +E| TTE’]EH&
F EFeERNMRBREERFDIRERR
HARY B.296,436,00078 7T (HHE R AR
240,765,0007L) (ZE T F : AR
87,003,0007T) * B & M 11.7078 1L (48

BEMARBIS0D) (ZE-ZF: AR
B343%5) - TERMERBE L ERZSE
ARV EBRRIIEEMARE - HEETE

AR - —HF+ - A=+—BItFEY
ERBUWEIREDE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)
MG ERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #j

31. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2T

Profit before income tax B P15 %4 B0 s 1
Adjustments for: BTAIEBEEHFE -
— Provision for inventory write-down —FEMRE®E (Wit 20)
(Note 20)
— Net impairment losses on financial assets ~ — % Bl & E R EE18F 5
— Net provision for safety production fee —RrHEEEREBFEE
— Depreciation of property, plant and % BENMEETE
equipment (Note 14) (Hiat14)
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FREEENE
(Note 15) (H1et15)
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) — i $5E & E (H1:£ 16)
— Amortisation of deferred income (Note 28)  — & #5iE fE W A (H7:£28)
— Net investment losses on derivative —TEemIEAEKREER
financial instruments (Note 7) FEE(HEE7)
— Share of losses of associates (Note 13b) — (LB N R E A
(K7 13b)

—HEME  BFER&RE
R —FRE (Mt 7)

—EEBRETE
(B1i9)

— M B A (FaE 10)

—ME R (K 10)

—RERBAVE W

— Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment — net (Note 7)
— Employee share option schemes (Notes 9)

— Interest income (Note 10)
— Interest expenses (Note 10)
— Net foreign exchange gains on financing

activities (Note 10) FEE (ffaE10)
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
— Inventories —-FE
- Trade, other receivables and prepayments  —EWE S8R - Hith
JE W 3B R T
SKIE

—ZBRHRITER
—ENESER - Bt

— Restricted bank deposits
— Trade, other payables and accruals

JE <RI I AT
EH
- Contract liabilities —GHaE
Cash generated from operations KEEBFRBRS

N REXKFBRE
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REXKFBERSE

—F+=A=+—ALEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AR®TTT
1,515,974 770,637
33,267 35,849
66,709 11,344
3,822 2,102
1,218,002 1,227,906
19,752 18,895
7,103 6,214
(94,159) (89,267)
49,661 83,607
10,218 9,369
1,589 6,220
(2,399) (1,869)
(36,271) (43,648)
172,712 206,058
(82,276) (145,937)
(845,006) (189,930)
545,162 (1,121,270)
(3,000) 39,602
318,815 (156,688)
180,761 (119,609)
3,080,436 549,585
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE —T——&F+_-A=+—HIFE

31. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS NRBEXBMBRE#®)
(Continued)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEHBARMBRIE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AREETF T
Decrease in other receivables, net of Ho b e W IEDR A - IR
unrealised financing income REBFFEWA - 17,818
Amortised as income from unrealised HiH B E A EUGRIA R B IR
financing income of other receivables BB A E R - 105
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, HEKB QR FTEHIE
net of cash disposed HBRHERS - 17,923
(c) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (c) HEYMXE BERREMER
equipment "
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AREETF T
Net book amount for disposals (Note 14)  H & HIBRE FE (47:F 14) 2,378 8,977
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BELEREEE
equipment — net (Note 7) —FE (K7t 7) (1,589) (6,220)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HE&E¥ 3 - = & &xE
and equipment T8 5k38 789 2,757
(d) Major non-cash transactions (d) EE# HERS
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group E_E_—F+A=+—
purchased property, plant and equipment and recorded BIEFE AEEEHEBEYWE -
related payables without cash outflow in the amount of MEREHE HESFERSRD
RMB420,386,000 (2020: RMB310,686,000). WHBEENRIE & %‘E BARE

420,386,000 T (ZZE T F : AR
# 310,686,000 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &f

31. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(Continued)
(e) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing
activities
This section sets out an analysis of liabilities from financing
activities and the related movements for the years ended

M. BEXKMBRE &)
e) MEZTBHEBEYE

SHMBRRME(E)

E_E-—Ft+-A=1t—HBIFE

rHHNBEE—FT-_—FR_FT—
ZEILEFENRETHRELARH

2021 and 2020: BEHHT
Borrowings Borrowings
due within due after Lease
1 year 1 year liabilities Total
R—FR R—F#&
BHER BHER HEAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
At 31 December 2019 RZB-RF
+=ZA=+-H 935,170 2,449,380 1,330 3,385,880
Cash flows Rene
~ Inflow from financing —-BEFHHLRA
activities 3,762,594 200,000 - 3,962,594
- Outflow from financing -BMEEBHR LKL
activities (3,302,644) (441,056) ©11) (3,744,611)
Foreign exchange adjustments  J1\& 752 (37,848) (107,983) - (145,831)
Other non-cash movements ~ Efh3F3 4 &8
- Reclassification -ENNE 1,647,668 (1,647,668) - -
- Amortisation of borrowing ~ — & Ak AR 8
costs 3,861 11,754 - 15,615
At 31 December 2020 R-B-%F
+=ZA=+-H 3,008,801 464,427 419 3,473,647
Cash flows Bene
- Inflow from financing activities — B4 & /& BH & KA 2,712,584 2,538,468 - 5,251,052
- Outflow from financing -BMEEBHRSRD
activities (4,405,652) (26,980) (702) (4,433,334)
Foreign exchange adjustments  J1\& 752 (17,079) (64,135) - (81,214)
Other non-cash movements ~ Efh3F33 4 &8
- Reclassification -B¥HH 415,900 (415,900) - -
- Amortisation of borrowing ~ —f& ZAk AR B 5
costs 7,700 8,910 - 16,610
- New leases —¥HE - - 2,260 2,260
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-F
+=ZA=+-H 1,722,254 2,504,790 1,977 4,229,021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBRERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ=-T-—F+-A=+—HIFE

32. COMMITMENTS 32. A&ih
Capital commitments BARAGE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but not REKRBERTNENREENERRZ N
yet incurred was as follows: N

2021 2020
—E-—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT

Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E %% - BE L &RE

— Contracted but not yet incurred —BRIHBDNAREE 26,182 97,239
Purchase of leasehold land-use right EERE T FAE
— Contracted but not yet incurred —BRIOEMRESE 34,860 -
33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND B.AEFRXZRE
BALANCES
Mr. Li Xuechun is the controlling shareholder of the Group. The ZEMEERBREBZERARE o ERAR
entities controlled by close family members of the controlling REERENBIEFINERWRARES -

shareholder are regarded as related parties.

(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HEBEEFNRS
The following transactions occurred with related parties: HRE T ETINTIR S ¢

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTT

Purchase of products from an associate of M AL EE A FHEE

the Group B 8,291 -
Interest charged from an associate of the  [A] AN & [# B & 2 &) IR ELF B
Group 311 -
8,602 -
The above related party transactions were conducted with FHBERRZFHERE R RIGE

the associate Ruixin. LT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—T=-—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND B.HAEFIRXZREHE)
BALANCES (continued)
(b) Key management compensation b) TEZEEEEWS
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTIT
Salaries and allowances & MoEBh 19,273 15,842
Pension costs — defined contribution plan 3R K & Ak 4 — & 28 {4 2t 2 882 708
Share options granted to key management [f) = Z & 12 B 1% ) H I8 I
(Note 9) (B17E9) (2,399) (1,869)
17,756 14,681
Key management are those persons having authority and TEEREREELRAEEELE
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the ERE - BERESANEEEBN
activities of the Group, directly and indirectly, including AT EHEEEERSBITHAER -

directors and executive officers.

(c) Year-end balances with related parties (c) HBEEFNFRER
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the VAT B A B R 7 2 5 Y B R RN 3R
reporting period in relation to transactions with related EHREAKRER -
parties:
(1) Loans due from a related party (1) ER—BEELER
2021 2020
—B-—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
- Loans to an associate of the Group ~ — [A1 AR & B — R B & 2 7
RHEX
Beginning of the year F40 - -
Loans advanced BNEX 14,510 -
Loan repayments received BIREFERK (9,510) -
Interest charged FEXZIH 311 -
Interest received B W F B (303) -
End of year Fx 5,008 -
The balance with related party was unsecured, WMEETERAERR AR
repayable within one year and the annual interest rate —FRNEERIRFFE3.85%

is 3.85%. B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ=-T-—F+-A=+—HIFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(c) Year-end balances with related parties (Continued)
(2) Other payables to a related party

BBBEEIRZRESRE)

(c) BEAELNFRERE)
(2 EBN—BRESHHMENK

1]
2021 2020
—B-—F —EETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
— A company controlled by a close ——MHRERRE—F
family member of the controlling EERENX BT
shareholder EOVNC| - 26

(d) Terms and conditions

Transactions conducted with related parties were based on
the price lists in force and terms that would be available to
third parties.

34. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE
Other than the proposed final dividend described in Note 30,
there was no significant event of the Group occurred after the
balance sheet date.

(d) PR ARAF
HEE T TR S HIREAR K
BRIFEIANE =77 Al EF O ER
#ETT

M.EEARER

Bk B 5 30 Pt A 2 i R B AR 850 - ANk
BNEERRYEREEANEIR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ =T -—F+-A=+—HIFE

35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

B.ARNREERBREFHRED

Note
Bt

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Right-of-use assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Loans to subsidiaries

Due from subsidiaries
Deposits and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets
EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to

the shareholders
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves

Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)

Total equity

BE

FRBEE

M - BB MR
KK B R BRI E
EREEE

FRBEERE
RBEE
RTHBARNER
JRE K B I8 1~ R R IR
e M At B WRIR
RekReEED

REBEEAE

EEHRE
R
IR EAE R A K

[EEN

B0 s B

H o H
REW R (REHEE)

ERAE

@
@

APREERER
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETF T
27 133
460,066 460,066
1,534 441
461,627 460,640
1,882,955 985,851
1,159,825 1,868,911
627 394
208,168 35,641
3,251,575 2,890,797
3,713,202 3,351,437
243,261 243,261
259,434 346,437
13,981 20,790
283,940 (27,481)
800,616 583,007
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SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ=-T-—F+-A=+—HIFE

35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE B. A NFEEEBRERESD
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) AKPREEEERE)

As at 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings BE 2,504,790 264,427
Lease liabilities HEamEm 922 29
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEHMIT A 90,370 25,031
Total non-current liabilities EREBEELE 2,596,082 289,487
Current liabilities RBEE
Borrowings BE 222,275 2,153,821
Due to subsidiaries FETHI B R R FIAE 44,552 209,177
Lease liabilities HEAE 622 306
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIA 26,084 57,118
Other payables and accruals Hib e RIE R ERE A 22,971 58,521
Total current liabilities nEaEEE 316,504 2,478,943
Total liabilities EEHE 2,912,586 2,768,430
Total equity and liabilities EnkEEHEE 3,713,202 3,351,437

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
of Directors on 30 March 2022 and was signed on its behalf.

Li Xuechun
Director

ARAMEERBERBAESEN _F
T CHF=ZA=THHERRREE -

FEM >l
EFE EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE B.EAQNREEEERRREABED
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued) (%)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (@) XAFREEES
Retained
earnings/
(accumulated (0],1-1¢
losses) reserves
RE Wz
(R5HEE) H &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T
At 1 January 2020 R-E-EF—H—H (394,541) 31,404
Profit for the year F AR 358,315 -
Employee share option schemes: EBERERE
— Value of employee services —EERBERE - (1,869)
— Expiry of options issued —BEEITHERED B 8,745 (8,745)
At 31 December 2020 R=-B=-BF+=-H=+—H (27,481) 20,790
At 1 January 2021 RZZE-——F—HA—H (27,481) 20,790
Profit for the year F i F) 513,723 -
Dividend A% 2, (206,712) -
Employee share option schemes: EEMIRERTE
— Value of employee services —EBRBEE - (2,399)
— Expiry of options issued —ERITHRED D 4,410 (4,410)

At 31 December 2021 R-EB-_—%+=-H=+—H 283,940 13,981
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SHMBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HAIFE

36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 6. EE/ARERS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBSTHAEMS
The emoluments of every director for the years ended 31 REBEEZE_ZE-_—FR-_ZZF
December 2021 and 2020 are set out as below: +ZA=+—HLEFE BHRES
RIEN S &5 T
2021
—EZ-§
Employer’s
contribution
Other to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary benefits (i) scheme Total
ExXaERhe
Espg e H#&  HAER@) RN st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®Tr AR®BTR AR®Tr AR%®T=R

Executive Directors: HITEE -

Li, Xuechun 84 - 4,037 - 15 4,052
Su, Chen Hung (i) ERIRR (i) - 2,314 - 50 2,364
Li, Deheng TEE - 1,647 - 60 1,707
Li, Guangyu FEX - 667 - 60 727

Independent Non-executive 717 FE477Z% -

Directors:
Lau, Chung Wai 2 149 - - - 149
Zheng, Yu i % (i) 50 - - - 50
Zhang, Youming (i) SRR (V) 67 - - - 67
Xu, Zhenghong FIER - - - - -

266 8,665 - 185 9,116
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueqd)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE —Z —

—FtZA=t—RIFE

36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36. EERAREE=E (#)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERESTHRAEME (&)
(Continued)
2020
it S22
Employer’s
contribution
Other to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary benefits (i) scheme Total
EXmEhe
B e ik Hibighl()  sTElmR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TR
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Li, Xuechun E-Tu - 4,216 - 16 4,232
Zhao, Qiang (v) #3BWv) - 1,500 - 18 1,518
Li, Deheng ZEY - 1,150 - 55 1,205
Yu, Yaoming (vi) BIZER (vi) - 1,067 - 27 1,094
Li, Guangyu TEE - 782 - 55 837
Independient Non-executive &7 FE47TEE -
Directors:
Zheng, Yu (i) &1 i 213 - 32 - 245
Xu, Zhenghong FIEE - - - - -
Lau, Chung Wai 2 160 - - - 160
373 8,715 32 171 9,291

=TTz E

Other benefits include share option granted

Appointed on 15 June 2021 and resigned on 25 December 2021

Resigned on 1 April 2021

Appointed on 1 April 2021
Resigned on 1 June 2020
Resigned on 20 July 2020

HpE BER T o R
@/\ﬂ +3:_L = Z%;f—l(&ﬁfi\:

RZZE=Z—

Z:—¢+ AZ+EHBEHE
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ—ZF—

—FtZA=t—RALFE

36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

There was no bonus paid to the directors of the Company
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

No payment was made to directors as retirement benefits
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

No payment was made to directors as compensation for
the early termination of the appointment during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

No payment was made to the any third parties for making
available directors’ services during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

No director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

36.EET/ANRERE®)

(a)

(b)

EEREETHRAEME (&)

ﬁ:?::_j__ﬁzﬁ 7—7£'Z+_
A=+—BLFE TEOER
EE L EMIEA -

BE_T-_—FR-_FT_FTF+=
AZ+—ALFE BEAESF
A SRAE R RERF -

H—Jr HIESFE - $E%4Em§$1/ﬁ
HAFAMERRER LR ENME -

%g—g:_f‘ﬁ&—? — = E'E—'—_
A=+—BLFE HESRESSE
ERBRERE=FIELRK -

HE_Z-_—FER-_ZFF+=
A=Z+—HLEE HMEEBNE
= ZEBEENIEHEAEREEER
BAITZANER EERRHA
5

BMEEENRAAENREBE_F
—HERZETEFA=1+—
B IEFE A ERH B

EERRZ  REISHNE
RER

AR [ 3 F RE (R B TR B AN 2 )
PRl ERAKREEXBEARAE
ERETERNEERBEAEA RS
MEARS ZHREMNTFE -



Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xuechun

Mr. Li Deheng

Mr. Li Guangyu

Mr. Su Chen Hung (appointed on 15 June 2021 and
resigned on 25 December 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Chung Wai

Mr. Xu Zheng Hong

Mr. Zhang You Ming (appointed on 1 April 2021)

Ms. Zheng Yu (resigned on 1 April 2021)

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Principal Place of Business in the PRC
Western section of Huaihai Road

Junan, Shandong, 276600

PRC

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
Suite 1204B-7A, 12/F, Tower 3

China Hong Kong City, 33 Canton Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Company Secretary and Qualified Accountant
Mr. Lee Wai Yin CPA FCCA

Authorised Representatives
Mr. Li Xuechun
Mr. Lee Wai Yin

Audit Committee

Mr. Lau Chung Wai (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Zheng Hong

Mr. Zhang You Ming (appointed on 1 April 2021)
Ms. Zheng Yu (resigned on 1 April 2021)

BEUEEERAF | £ 2021 201

CORPORATE INFORMATION
LAFEH

HITESE

T8t

TEEHLE

TEIEE
BIREEE (R E-_—E A +HBREST
PR-_Z-—F+_-_A_-t+HBEIT)

BIYFHTES

Bl ig s

FFIER
RRPEER-_F_—FWA—ABEM)
WL+ (R=F=—4mA—AFE)

M ERE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

FERETEEXET
s

R EEmE

VG TR ER

T 4% 276600
EARATELCEME

BENERADE
ERE 335 B
31212 1204B-7TAE

PEAIMERECEREETHD
B IR S 4 CPA FCCA

BREAX
TR E
FRASE

EREEE

RS (FR)

HFERLAE
REPEE(RZZE-_—FMNA—BEZT)
Rt (R_E-—F A — B BT



202 FUFENG GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
KFRE(E)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Lau Chung Wai (Chairman)

Mr. Xu Zheng Hong

Mr. Zhang You Ming (appointed on 1 April 2021)
Ms. Zheng Yu (resigned on 1 April 2021)

Nomination Committee

Mr. Li Xuechun (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Chung Wai

Mr. Xu Zheng Hong

Mr. Zhang You Ming (appointed on 1 April 2021)
Ms. Zheng Yu (resigned on 1 April 2021)

Principal Bankers in the PRC
China Construction Bank

Bank of China

Agriculture Bank of China

China Merchants Bank

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
China Minsheng Bank

Principal Bankers in Hong Kong
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Mizuho Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Principal Share Registrar
SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

Branch Share Registrar
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Stock Code
546

Website

www.fufeng-group.com
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Executive Directors

ZEE45 (Li Xuechun), aged 70, is the principal founder of the Group,
the chairman of the Company and an executive Director. Mr. Li is
also a director of Acquest Honour, Summit Challenge, Absolute
Divine, Expand Base, Fufeng Singapore, Shandong Fufeng, Baoji
Fufeng, IM Fufeng, Hulunbeir Fufeng, Xinjiang Fufeng, Longjiang
Fufeng and Shenhua Pharmaceutical. Mr. Li is responsible for the
strategic planning and formulation of overall corporate development
policy of the Group. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in
industrial fermentation from L 5 & T % £ fx (Shandong Institute
of Light Industry) in 1982. Mr. Li was honored with “Outstanding
Achievement” by the government of Shandong Province in April
2003. In the same year, he was also labeled as “Model Labour” of
Shandong Province. Mr. Li first joined L 3 #& I B ik (Shandong Furui
Brewery Group) in 1982 as a factory manager. Mr. Li established the
Group by starting set up Shandong Fufeng in June 1999. He was
appointed as a director of Shandong Fufeng upon its establishment.
He has 40 years of experience in the fermentation industry. Mr.
Li is the sole director of and is beneficially interested in the entire
issued share capital of Motivator Enterprises Limited which in turn is
interested in approximately 39.28% of the issued share capital of the
Company and is a controlling shareholder of the Company. He is the
father of Z& % (Li Guangyu) (an executive Director) and the brother-
in-law of ZX1&# (Li Deheng) (an executive Director).

Z= =1 (Li Deheng), aged 53, is an executive Director and a chief
executive officer of the Group who is responsible for the general
operation of production and purchasing of the Group. He is also a
director of Shandong Fufeng, Baoji Fufeng, IM Fufeng, Hulunbeir
Fufeng and Longjiang Fufeng. Mr. Li graduated from the L 5 &l
¥, B 88 22 f% (Shandong Liaocheng Teacher’s College) in 1992 and
obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry education. He joined the
Group in January 2001 and was appointed as a director of Shandong
Fufeng in November 2003 and has over 21 years of experience in
business management. Mr. Li Deheng is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Li Xuechun. Mr. Li is interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Empire Spring Investments Limited, which in turn is interested in
35,320,160 Shares, representing approximately 1.39% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Z E X (Li Guangyu), aged 43, is an executive Director and a vice
general manager of the Group who is responsible for the Group’s
sales and marketing activities. Mr. Li has over 16 years of experience
in the fermentation industry. Mr. Li graduated from 2= 5 B % K E2 47
L ABT (East China University of Political Science and Law Graduate
School) in 2006 and obtained a master’s degree in Laws. Mr. Li is the
son of Mr. Li Xuechun. Mr. Li is not interested in any shares of the
Company pursuant to Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

B{h 48 (Lau Chung Wai), aged 39, was appointed as an Independent
non-executive Director on 12 June 2019. Mr. Lau Chung Wai has
over 17 years’ experience in the field of accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology with a bachelor of business administration
in accounting in November 2004 and is a fellow practising member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau
has been the chief financial officer and company secretary of Kwung'’s
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1925), a company primarily engaged
in original design manufacturer and supplier of home decoration
product, since March 2019 and is responsible for overseeing the
investment, legal and financial affairs. From August 2015 to March
2019, Mr. Lau served in Da Sen Holdings Group Limited (stock code:
1580) as the chief financial officer and company secretary. Mr. Lau
also served as independent non-executive directors of Metropolis
Capital Holdings Limited (stock code: 8621) and Hongcheng
Environmental Technology Company Limited (stock code: 2265)
since November 2018 and October 2021 respectively. Mr. Lau does
not have any relationship with any directors, senior management,
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Lau did not have any directorships in other
listed public companies in the last three years nor has held any
other position with the Company and any of its subsidiaries. Mr. Lau
does not have any interests in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

#F IE 7= (Xu Zheng Hong), aged 51, was appointed as an Independent
non-executive Director on 1 December 2018. Mr. Xu has over 23
years of experience engaged in the research of microbial ecology of
traditional brewed foods, bio-manufacturing and functional evaluation
of nutrient chemicals. Mr. Xu is currently a professor at the School
of Bioengineering at Jiangnan University, a doctoral tutor and dean.
Mr. Xu graduated from Wuxi Institute of Light Industry, Department of
Fermentation Engineering, with a Bachelor of Engineering degree in
1993, a Master of Science degree from Shandong University, School
of Life Sciences, Department of Cell Biology in 1996, and a Ph.D in
Engineering from Jiangnan University, Department of Fermentation
Engineering, School of Bioengineering in 2005. Mr. Xu does not have
any relationship with any directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company. He did not have any
directorships in other listed public companies in the last three years
nor has held any other position with the Company and any of its
subsidiaries. Mr. Xu does not have any interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Xu has entered into a service agreement with the
Company commencing from 1 December 2018. Mr. Xu has also
confirmed that he has opted not to receive any director’s fee during
the term of the abovementioned service agreement.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continueqd)

ik & B (Zhang You Ming), aged 58, was appointed as an
Independent non-executive Director on 1 April 2021. Mr. Zhang has
over 30 years of experience in research and development of synthetic
biotechnology, microbiology recombinant engineering technology and
microbial natural drugs. Mr. Zhang currently serving as the Director
of the State Key Laboratory of Microbial Technology, Shandong
University. Mr. Zhang received his bachelor’s degree in biochemistry
from Xiamen University in 1985, and then his master’s degree in
biochemistry and molecular biology from the Chinese Academy of
Medical Sciences/Peking Union Medical College in 1988. In 1994,
he received his doctor of philosophy in molecular and cellular biology
from the University of Heidelberg, Germany. Mr. Zhang does not have
any relationship with any directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company. He did not have any
directorships in other listed public companies in the last three years
nor has held any other position with the Company and any of its
subsidiaries. Mr. Zhang does not have any interests in the shares
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Senior Management

Mr. Huang Jingbin, aged 53, is the general manager of the Group. Mr.
Huang obtained a bachelor’s degree in applied chemistry from Tianjin
University of Technology in 1991. Mr. Huang joined the Company in
October 2020 as the senior deputy general manager of the Group,
and was later promoted to the general manager of the Group in
December 2021. He has over 30 years of work experience. Before
joining the Company, Mr. Huang worked as an engineer, production
supervisor and general manager in the PRC branches of various
Chinese and multinational corporations. Mr. Huang is responsible for
the operation and management of the Group, implementing decisions
and plans approved by the Board, making day-to-day operational and
management decisions, and coordinating overall business operations.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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B &8 #2 (Yau Wing Yiu), aged 54, is a chief financial officer of the
Group who was appointed on 15 June 2021. Mr. Yau graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1992 with a bachelor’s
degree of arts in accountancy and is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yau has more than 27
years of working experience in the field of finance, accounting and
company secretarial gained from international accounting firms and
listed companies. Mr. Yau is currently an independent non-executive
director of Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited (1480.HK) which is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. As a chief financial officer
of the Group, Mr. Yau is responsible for financial management, capital
markets, corporate development and investor relations matters,
and assisted the Group to develop strategic planning and long-term
development plan.

Company Secretary And Qualified Accountant
2 & SR (Lee Wai Yin), aged 53, is the qualified accountant and
company secretary of the Company since August 2008. Mr. Lee
graduated from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College in 1993 with a
diploma in accountancy and is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has more than
28 years of working experience in finance and accounting including
some with international accounting firms.
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY
AEFEWE

Year
FE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
ZE—+F ZEZ-N\F ZE-NF ZTZTF [ ===
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFT AREFTT ARETT | &
Operating results - REXxE-HE

Summary
Turnover BERR 13,033,501 13,764,645 16,170,850 16,690,736 21,539,841
Gross profit EF 2,979,471 2,574,770 3,260,634 2,816,354 3,905,276
Profit before income tax Bk AT 15554 Al 3% A 1,652,781 2,210,823 1,399,264 770,637 1,515,974
Profit attributable to 1% B8 {55 F)

Shareholders 1,382,380 1,845,039 1,137,223 629,901 1,280,640
Balance sheets - EEABER-HME

Summary
Non-current assets RBEE 10,859,636 11,339,710 11,465,996 10,761,704 10,309,548
Current assets MBEE 5,106,898 8,992,610 7,992,615 8,593,989 11,201,253
Total assets BEREAE 15,966,534 20,332,320 19,458,611 19,355,693 21,510,806
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE 1,298,851 3,319,892 3,270,836 1,401,048 3,459,387
Current liabilities mEAE 5,207,578 6,008,084 4,811,306 6,265,239 5,373,665
Net assets BEFE 9,460,105 11,004,344 11,376,469 11,689,406 12,677,754
Financial ratio B b =R
Earnings per share (Basic) &% & K| (EAK)

(RMB Cents) (AR 5) 57.04 72.45 44.75 24.86 50.55
Gross profit margin (%)  EFIE (%) (K1)

(Note 1) 23 19 20 17 18
ROE (%) (Note 2) REHEUR 25 (%) (BTt 2) 15 17 10 5 10
Current ratio (Note 3) BN (K77£3) 0.98 1.50 1.66 1.37 2.08
Inventory turnover days T & EEHI(R)

(Day) (Note 4) (H1at4) 118 107 104 101 96
Debtors’ turnover days ~ FEUER X EEEI(H)

(Day) (Note 5) (K15£5) 31 31 37 30 31
Trade receivable turnover & E 5 BR UE 85 HA

days (Day) (Note 6) (R)(K1iz6) 15 17 15 14 19
Creditors’ turnover days ~ FEfTBR A EA (H)

(Day) (Note 7) (K12 7) 56 52 40 33 32
Trade payable turnover & & 5 BR 7% 7 &% &5

days (Day) (Note 8) (B) (#ti#8) 53 50 40 33 32
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 9)  BEBAELL R (%)

(H1:29) 12 20 17 18 20
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY (Continued)
AEWME(E

Notes:

1.

Gross profit margin is equal to gross profit divided by turnover.

Return on equity is equal to profit attributable to shareholders divided by total
equity.

Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities.

The number of inventory turnover days is equal to inventories before provisions at
the end of year divided by the cost of sales for the corresponding year and then
multiplied by 365 days.

The number of debtors’ turnover days is equal to trade and notes receivables
at the end of year divided by the turnover for the corresponding year and then
multiplied by 365 days.

The number of trade receivable turnover days is equal to trade receivable at the
end of year divided by the turnover for the corresponding year and then multiplied
by 365 days.

The number of creditors’ turnover days is equal to trade and notes payables at
the end of year divided by the cost of sales for the corresponding year and then
multiplied by 365 days.

The number of trade payable turnover days is equal to trade payable at the end of
year divided by the cost of sales for the corresponding year and then multiplied by
365 days.

Gearing ratio is equal to total borrowings at the end of the year divided by total
assets at the end of the corresponding year.
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PRODUCTION BASES
&R

Locate in key corn
production regions
in China

R EEEEKEE

Longjiang #&5T

Threonine # S
Lysine ®&
Starch sweeteners &3 &bk Hi

Hulunbeir Ff&m B &

MSG kR $E
Threonine # &
B Production Base :£EE Starch sweeteners B4 &t bk %

M Key products T EER

IM REH

MSG %
Xanthan gum EERERB

Xinjiang ¥75&

High-end amino acid &S &E#&%
Xanthan gum ERERB

Baoji E#
MSG k5

Shenhua Pharmaceutical #i#E %

Healthcare products R m

Shandong X
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MAJOR PRODUCTS PROCESSING MAP
FREREEEFE

Com kernels %t‘%a?%%ecmc'ty mmmm Cod
F KRR o )

|
Thermal power plant
Corn refinery AL ZEE iR
by—ﬁBr%ducjs* - :
< IR e R Bl = Fermentation Tank
BHEE
Cornstarch
TR
Fermentation technology
B B B 1lG
C . .
pr%rtgin Amino acid Xanthan gum
£REAH Products Products
SEMEM EREEMm
Corn ol Cornstarch + yeast
F K syrup + FEE
T AR 52
Synthetic
ammonia
SRR
WESE
residue

Agricultural Animal feeding Frozen Sauce Canned Beverage :Healthcare Oil drilling Pharmaceuticals
planting BN & food g food R products and mining BHEAM
BEME SRRM EERMm REER BMERR

Milk Ice cream Milk

4140 i products

MIEEm
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SHARE INFORMATION
Rz in B #

Stock Code 546
R A3 5% 546
Board lot 1,000 Shares
BFEEEN 1,000 A% A% 17

Price and turnover

BERREXE

Share price Turnover

R0 E 1% AR E

High Share

BS 4

(HKD) (’000)

(Bx) (F)

January —A 3.30 2.84 45,836.2

February - 3.87 2.97 101,350.9

March = 3.52 2.76 67,444.4

April M\ A 3.00 2.74 26,449.0

May Ei=! 2.89 2.51 24,942.6

June 7~ A 2.78 2.46 34,220.5

July + A 2.64 2.37 34,1445

August AV:! 2.98 2.31 32,475.8

September LA 3.15 2.65 50,034.4

October +A 2.85 2.54 36,605.7

November +—A 3.46 2.50 72,2151

December +=A 3.46 2.59 88,308.7
Issued capital at 31 December 2021 2,533,639,037 Shares
R-B-Z—F+-A=+—HWEBITRRK 2,533,639,037 % i% 13
Closing price at 31 December 2021 HKD2.69 per Share

R-EBE-—F+=-A=+—HWKHE FH1R2.69% T
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A= =2
ARl 3

In this annual report (other than the independent auditor’s report as RAERRK (FRE61 267 H 2B ZHAD
set out on pages 61 to 67), the following expressions shall have the WEBRIN) - BRIEXEBSERIE - TAITIH
following meanings unless the context otherwise requires: EEENTEE -

Absolute Divine
Absolute Divine

Acquest Honour
Acquest Honour

ASP
FHEE

Audit Committee

E e

Baoji Fufeng

i

e

g

\

Board
=

BVI
REBREZEHS

CG Code
EERTA

COFCO
i

Company
PIN/NE]

Director(s)
S
EBITDA
EBITDA

EIT
DEMEH

ESG
ESG

Absolute Divine Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Absolute Divine Limited * 78 A BlE 5 2 & M B A 7

Acquest Honour Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Acquest Honour Holdings Limited » 2~ A & & & it /8 A 7]

average selling price(s) of the products of the Group

AEBERNFHEE

audit committee of the Board
EE=ZeETEEY

EHE LA YR AR QA (Baoji Fufeng Biotechnologies Co., Ltd.), an indirect
wholly- owned subsidiary of the Company

BUBLELYMRARRAR  ARRBEEEENBERF

the board of Directors

e

The British Virgin Islands
RBREXES

Code on Corporate Governance Practice under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
LETARRREE T IUIE T EERE RS

China National Cereals, Oils and Foodstuffs Corporation

PREEBRAR

Fufeng Group Limited
EEEERAT]

the director(s) of the Company
RARES

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
HRAE - HE - & REHER T

enterprise income tax

EEFEHR

environmental, social and governance
RIR - HERER



ESG Committee

ESGZE®E

Expand Base
Expand Base

Fufeng Singapore
Fufeng Singapore

Fufeng USA
Fufeng USA

Fufeng USA Holdings
Fufeng USA Holdings

FVOCI
BAFESFARMES WS

FVPL
BAFES AR

Group
&

Hero Elite

Hero Elite

HKFRS
BAM RS A

HKICPA
BAGRAMAE

Hong Kong
E

Hulunbeir Fufeng

FirEREL
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GLOSSARY (Continued)
mR(E)

environment, social and governance committee

RIE HERERZE®

Expand Based Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Expand Based Limited * &2 &) H# 2 &M E QR

Fufeng (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Fufeng (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. * "R &)@ 2 &M B A A

Fufeng USA Incorporated, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Fufeng USA Incorporated * AR &) E#& 2 &K B A &

Fufeng USA Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Fufeng USA Holdings Limited + KA R # 2 & B A 7]

fair value through other comprehensive income

BAFESFARMES K

fair value through profit or loss

WA ARR

the Company and its subsidiaries
ZAN/NCTDSERin) = NG|

Hero Elite Limited, a company with limited liability, the issued share capital of which is
owned as the 14.3% by 8% (Wang Longxiang), 14.3% by KBl = (Lai Fengtang),
14.3% by #|#& & (Liu Zhenyu), 14.3% by # & ## (Zhao Lankun), 10.7% by F £ {£
(Wang Junren), 10.7% by Ez4L1Z (Yan Hongwei), 10.7% by Z £ 1| (Li Manshan) and
10.7% by JL{E# (Shen Dequan)

Hero Elite Limited » Al B F3E4F ~ RELE - 2IHRA& - BHEH - TEE - BRALE -
TENRLEEEASEE EITRA14.3%  14.3% * 14.3% ~ 14.3% * 10.7% -
10.7% * 10.7% K% 10.7% B B R A 7]

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
BB RE LR

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
kTN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEBEBFRIITHRER

i BEEREEZLEYRFE AR QA (Hulunbeir Northeast Fufeng Biotechnologies
Co., Ltd.), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

FirERRILESEMHRBERAR  ARAHEE2EWB QR
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GLOSSARY (Continued)

FSR(E)

IM Fufeng
NEEERE

Jilin COFCO
HFIE

Listing Date
FHHEHA

Listing Rules
R Al

Longjiang Fufeng
EIEZ

Model Code
REEST Al

MPF
wiEE

MSG

Nomination Committee

RAZEE

OCl
H b 4R A W

PRC

FE

Remuneration Committee

FMEEe

Ruixin

=
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NEEHBELL YRR AR A [ (Neimenggu Fufeng Biotechnologies Co., Ltd.), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
AEHBLAYRFEERAR  ARAHEZEWB QR

Jilin COFCO Biomaterial Co. Ltd., an associate of which 30% are held by the Group
SEMRFRREMMEAERAR - REEFH 0% Eam I BE A

8 February 2007, the date on which the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange
—EZF_AN\B ARARRBRA ETE B

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B P& s AR R

BERBRELELE MR ARR A7 (Qghar Longjiang Fufeng Biotechnologies Co.,
Ltd.), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
BEBBREISELEYREBRAR  ARREEZEWBEAFT

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
FHRBIETPIE FREITAEFETESF R HRESTE

mandatory provident fund
BEMEATER

monosodium glutamate, a salt of glutamic acid which is commonly used as a flavour
enhancer and additive in the food industry, restaurant and household application
AREM RERME RERFRELEREFARE KORINGH A 25K EE

nomination committee of the Board

EXeR%%ES

other comprehensive income
Hibir e das

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this report exclude Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

PEARKME - SiAREMS - TEERLE - PERFIFHITHRR LG E

remuneration committee of the Board
E=eriEag

Hulunbuir Ruixin Agricultural Development Co., Ltd., an associate of which 49% are
held by the Group
THRERREREERRERLAG  FEERFFIO%RTNBEA



SFO
&7 M EE P

Shandong Fufeng
IWREE

Share(s)
f& 10

Shareholder(s)
R ER

Shenhua Pharmaceutical

ES

=Sy
-H
M
i
B
At

Stock Exchange
Bt 22 B

Summit Challenge
Summit Challenge

Trans-Asia

IR

Xinjiang Fufeng

Mg

us.
<

HKD
BT
RMB
AR

USD
e

LEEARAT | £ 2021 215

GLOSSARY (Cont/nueo?
Mg (E)

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEENESTI BB H LBAE G

1L 3R & Y2 E2 5 R A &) (Shandong Fufeng Fermentation Co., Ltd.), an indirect wholly-
owned company of the Company

WRESHBERAR  ARAIREZENEARF

share(s) in the share capital of the Company

AR B PRA A BB

holder(s) of the Share(s)
S REST=PN

JT k48 2 85 2 5 R /A &) (Jiangsu Shenhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.), a company
with limited liability established in the Jiangsu Province of the PRC, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

IEHGEREZEBRAG  RPBRIHEKINERAR  ARFHEL2EWNE R
Gl

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBBMERGMERAF

Summit Challenge Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Summit Challenge Limited * A" R Al E#ZE 2 EHI B A

Trans-Asia Capital Resources Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

REBABRAR  ARAHEEZEMB LA

riE e A MBI AR AR (Xinjang Fufeng Biotechnologies Co., Ltd.), and indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

MEBEEEEVMHRBRAR  ARARREL2EMNER

the United States of America
EFREREH

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EBETEEET

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
FEEEEBARKE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

ENBARBEEEERET
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GLOSSARY (Continuea)

EUR Euro, the lawful currency of the participating states within the European Union
BT BB B2 HE H)ATFE S8BT

SGD Singapore dollars, the lawful currency of Singapore

2 T FNBOETE G KT

% per cent

% AL



Fufeng Group Limited
EE2EEEBRLQA
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